
  
 

COUNCIL MEETING 
 

Wednesday, 17 December 2014 - 
2.00 p.m. 
Morecambe Town Hall 
 

Mark Cullinan, 
Chief Executive, 
Town Hall, 
Dalton Square, 
LANCASTER, 
LA1 1PJ 



 

 

  

 

 
 

Sir/Madam, 
 
You are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of the Lancaster City Council to be held in the 
Town Hall, Morecambe on Wednesday, 17 December 2014 commencing at 2.00 p.m. for the 
following purposes: 
 
 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
2. MINUTES  
 
 To receive as a correct record the Minutes of the Meeting of the City Council held on 22 

October 2014 (previously circulated).    
  
3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
 To receive declarations by Members of interests in respect of items on this Agenda.   

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the Localism Act 2011, they are 
required to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests which have not already been 
declared in the Council’s Register of Interests. (It is a criminal offence not to declare a 
disclosable pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting).   

Whilst not a legal requirement, in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 10 and in the 
interests of clarity and transparency, Members should declare any disclosable pecuniary 
interests which they have already declared in the Register, at this point in the meeting.   

In accordance with Part B Section 2 of the Code Of Conduct, Members are required to 
declare the existence and nature of any other interests as defined in paragraphs 8(1) or 
9(2) of the Code of Conduct.    

  
4. ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS  
 
5. ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 
 To receive any announcements which may be submitted by the Mayor or Chief 

Executive.    
  
6. QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC UNDER COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE 12  
 
 To receive questions in accordance with the provisions of Council Procedure Rules 12.1 

and 12.3 which require members of the public to give at least 3 days’ notice in writing of 
questions to a Member of Cabinet or Committee Chairman.    

  



7. PETITIONS AND ADDRESSES  
 
 To receive any petitions and/or addresses from members of the public which have been 

notified to the Chief Executive in accordance with the Council's Constitution.    
  
8. LEADER'S REPORT (Pages 1 - 3) 
 
 To receive the Cabinet Leader’s report on proceedings since the last meeting of Council.   
  
REPORTS REFERRED FROM CABINET, COMMITTEES OR OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY  
 
9. FINANCIAL REFERRALS: TREASURY MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET UPDATE 

(Pages 4 - 28) 
 
 To consider the report of Cabinet providing updates on treasury management progress 

during the year, and on the 2015/16 budget process.   
  
10. REFERRAL FROM COUNCIL BUSINESS COMMITTEE - ATTENDANCE AT 

OUTSIDE BODIES (Pages 29 - 36) 
 
 To consider the recommendations of the Council Business Committee from its meeting 

on 6 November 2014.  
  
11. REFERRAL FROM COUNCIL BUSINESS COMMITTEE - COMMITTEE TIMETABLE 

2015/16 (Pages 37 - 48) 
 
 To consider the recommendations of the Council Business Committee from its meeting 

on 6 November 2014.  
  
MOTIONS ON NOTICE  
 
12. NOTICE OF MOTION - OPPOSITION TO DRIVER-ONLY TRAINS (Page 49) 
 
  

To consider the following motion submitted by Councillors Whitaker, Redfern, Newman-
Thompson, Scott and Margaret Pattison. 
  
This Council: 
 
a)  Registers its opposition to the Northern and Transpennine Express franchise 

requirement for driver only trains and the Government’s plans to make driver 
only trains mandatory.  

 
b)  Expresses its concern at the removal of on board conductors on The Northern 

and Transpennine routes as well as hundreds of essential rail jobs  
 
c)  Believes that, if implemented, the plan would result in cuts to funding, fare rises, 

service and timetable cuts and the loss of local rail jobs. .  
 
d)  Also believes that as a result of the loss of skilled jobs, passenger service and 

passenger safety will be worsened by this plan to remove guards and 
conductors from services and introduce driver only operated trains.  

 
e)  Notes that these proposals come on top of rail fare hikes and the pre-existing 

understaffing of many rail stations and the closure of ticket offices, making 



guards and on board conductors even more essential to passenger safety.  
 
f)  Believes that safeguarding and increasing staffing levels are the most effective 

way of improving security and passenger safety  
 
g)  Notes that the driver is responsible for safe operation of the train and the on 

board conductor is responsible for the protection of the passengers.  
 
h)  Notes that currently, guards and on board conductors are fully trained in the 

operational safety, route knowledge, including safely securing doors, protecting 
the train and acting in emergencies such as driver incapacity. 

 
An officer briefing note is attached.  

  
13. NOTICE OF MOTION - TRANSATLANTIC TRADE AND INVESTMENT 

PARTNERSHIP (Pages 50 - 56) 
 
 To consider the following motion submitted by Councillors Newman-Thompson, Gardner 

and Margaret Pattison: 
 
This Council notes:  
 
1.  That the Transatlantic Trade and Investment Partnership (TTIP) is currently 

being negotiated between the US and the EU supposedly to pursue the 
interest of free trade.  

 
2.  TTIP negotiations are being conducted behind closed doors between 

representatives of the EU and US without transparency or democratic 
accountability.  

 
3.  TTIP would open up access to government procurement markets and 

eliminate preferential treatment to local suppliers and introduce investment 
protection provisions that include investor state dispute settlement (ISDS) 
mechanisms which allow investors to challenge state actions which they 
perceive as threatening to their investment.  

 
4.  ISDS mechanisms allow for disputes between investors and governments to 

be heard by tribunals of "experts" rather that resolved by the host state's 
courts. The United Nations Conference on Trade and Development 
(UNCTAD) recently explained that "foreign investors have recently used 
ISDS claims to challenge measures adopted by states in the public interest 
(for example, policies to promote social equity, foster environmental 
protection or protect public health).  

 
This Council believes that:  
 
1.  The TTIP negotiations are potentially catastrophic for public services as the 

EU/US representatives are negotiating to hand over the right to regulate in 
the public interest without transparency or accountability to their electorates.  

 
2.  IDSD mechanisms would make it hard for any government to reverse 

liberalisation and privatisation without being sued by foreign investors. So 
whatever voters actually wanted, the trade treaty would place major barriers 



in the way of government giving expression to their democratic will.  
 
This Council resolves:  
 
1.  To write to the Prime Minister and the Secretary of State for Business 

Innovation and Skills raising our serious concerns about the TTIP.  
 
2.  To offer support to the campaign by Unite to defend the NHS which is 

drawing attention to the potential impact of the TTIP.  
 
3.  To write to the Local Government Association to urge them to lobby on 

behalf of all Local Authorities on the potential impact of the TTIP.  
 
4.  To do all we can to publicise the dangers arising from this trade agreement 

for our NHS and other public services and jobs. 
 
An officer briefing note is attached.  

  
14. NOTICE OF MOTION - 5-YEAR HOUSING LAND SUPPLY STATEMENT (Page 57) 
 
 To consider a motion submitted by Councillors Hamilton-Cox, Brookes and Barry as 

follows: 
 
This council resolves: 
 
'To ask officers to produce a public briefing note for councillors on the 5-year housing 
land supply statement focussed on how the calculation of the under-supply of 1695 
homes is justified when set against the available data on growth of population, 
household formation and employment  between 2001 and 2011. Full council asks that 
the briefing note should be based on attributable data and should compare the data with 
the projections and forecasts for population, household formation and employment 
which presumably informed the target of 400 homes per year against which housing 
delivery is deemed to have fallen short to 2011. 
 Full council further resolves that the briefing note be circulated to councillors not later 
than Wednesday 14th January 2015. 
 
The proposers of the motion note the census data which shows that the district's 
population increased by 4461 between 2001 and 2011. The city council's Housing Land 
Monitoring Reports show that the number of homes completed in the district between 
2001-02 and 2010-11 was 3223. This is a ratio of 1.38 people per new household. The 
average household size at the 2011 census was 2.27 people.' 
 
An officer briefing note is attached. 

  
OTHER BUSINESS  
 
15. RECORDINGS OF MEETINGS (Pages 58 - 61) 
 
 To consider the report of the Chief Officer (Governance).  
  
16. REVIEW OF POLLING DISTRICTS AND POLLING PLACES 2014 (Pages 62 - 64) 
 
 To consider the report of the Chief Officer (Governance). 

  



  
17. ALLOCATION OF SEATS TO POLITICAL GROUPS (Pages 65 - 68) 
 
 To consider the report of the Chief Executive.  
  
18. LOCAL PLAN FOR LANCASTER DISTRICT 2011 - 2031: THE ADOPTION OF THE 

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT AND MORECAMBE AREA ACTION PLAN 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN DOCUMENTS (Pages 69 - 82) 

 
 To consider the report of the Chief Officer (Regeneration and Planning).  

 
NB: two large documents referred to in the report (The Development Management 
DPD and the Morecambe Area Action Plan) are available to view on the following 
link:  
http://committeeadmin.lancaster.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=305&MId=635
5 
Alternatively, Councillors can request a paper copy by phoning 582170, or view 
one of the paper copies in the Members’ rooms.  

  
19. AMENDMENT OF THE EXECUTIVE SCHEME OF DELEGATION TO OFFICERS – 

ANTI-SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR, CRIME AND POLICING ACT 2014 (Pages 83 - 86) 
 
 To consider the report of the Chief Officer (Governance).  
  
20. MEMBERS’ ALLOWANCES SCHEME - REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT 

REMUNERATION PANEL (Pages 87 - 125) 
 
 To consider the report of the Chief Officer (Governance).  
  
21. QUESTIONS UNDER COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE 13.2  
 
 To receive questions in accordance with the provisions of Council Procedure Rules 13.2 

and 13.4 which require a Member to give at least 3 working days notice, in writing, of the 
question to the Chief Executive.    

  
22. MINUTES OF CABINET (Pages 126 - 143) 
 
 To receive the minutes of meetings of Cabinet held on 4 November and 2 December 

2014.    
  
 

 
 

…………………………………………………. 
                                                                                                        Chief Executive  
Town Hall, 
Dalton Square,  
LANCASTER LA1 1PJ 
Published on Tuesday, 9 December 2014.



COUNCIL  
 
 

Leader’s Report 
 

17 December 2014 
 

Report of the Leader of the Council 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
To present the Leader’s report to Council.   
 

This report is public.   

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
To receive the report of the Leader of Council.   
 
REPORT 

 
1.0 Cabinet 

 
Information on Cabinet matters is provided in the minutes from the Cabinet 
meetings held on 4th November and 2nd December 2014, later in this agenda. 

 
2.0 Decisions required to be taken urgently 
 

There are no urgent decisions to report since the last Leader’s Report on 22 
October 2014. 
 

3.0 Leader’s Comments 
 
 On the 08 October the Chief Executive and I were asked to respond to the 

County’s Peer Review.  We were able to mention our shared services which we 
are benefitting from and the good relationships that we have with County. 

 
 On the 11 October I attended a Diwali evening at Lancaster Town Hall which was 

very well supported and it brings together a diversity of communities. 
 
 The Dukes presentation of “A Farewell to Arms” drew a full audience and was an 

amazing mixture of techniques.  This was from the 15 October onwards by a 
visiting company and was well received. 

 

Agenda Item 8Page 1



 The Lancaster Museums Joint Steering Group met on the 16 October.  A small 
project group from Lancashire County Council Museums Service has met twice 
with the District Librarian to explore options for linking the Museum and the Library 
more overtly.  This should use the space between more efficiently and effectively.  
The proposal to change opening hours was updated and although it was proposed 
to open on Sundays and close on Mondays, the staff have suggested that 
Mondays could be used for Group Bookings and for school visits.  A possible 
“Lawless Lancaster Trail” was suggested by a County officer, including our 
Courtroom visit, the Castle courtroom, The Judges’ Lodgings and the story of 
Buck Ruxton. 

 
 The launch of the new Lancaster Destination Brand was held on Lancashire Day at 

The Storey. 
 
 A joint Universities and City event took place on the 21 October.  This was held in 

the Ashton Hall and it attracted a large audience.  It was daunting to be on a panel 
with four professors!  Fifty years of our two Universities was well worth celebrating.  
What would our district be like without them. 

 
 At the Lancashire Leaders’ meeting on the 03 November an LGA Peer Review of 

the Health and Wellbeing System Lancashire was discussed.  The County had 
requested this.  The County Public Health Grant has been used for a second year 
to support district councils to deliver affordable warmth interventions. 

 
 A Notice of Motion, passed at County in October, has led to an initial discussion 

about future options available for our region.  Areas such as Lancashire would 
need to follow the examples of Greater Manchester and Merseyside and work 
towards the creation of a combined authority with other local authorities in the 
county.  All parties at the meeting expressed an interest and an early meeting was 
requested for further information and discussion. 

 
 On the 27 November a meeting of Leaders and Chief Executives of the 12 district 

plus the two unitary authorities was held at County.  It was addressed by 
David Sparks, chair of the LGA.  All districts confirmed that we need a further 
meeting with some options to discuss.  A Working Group of some Chief Executives 
was to be set up to produce a paper for a 09 December meeting as a starting point 
for further discussion. 

 
 On the 24 November I attended a meeting with the Deputy Leader and the Chief 

Executive of South Lakeland District Council.  We discussed their Local Plan and 
about the process of achieving it.  They emphasised the need for housing and of 
the need to control where it goes.  Inward Investment was also discussed and their 
dialogue with business.  Combined authorities is also on the Cumbrian agenda and 
the Energy Coast councils of Barrow, Copeland, South Lakes and Lancaster. 

 
 The Cabinet met the Chamber and BID group on the 25 November.  The Market, 

Inward Investment, Twin Towns, the Future of Cities and United Utilities were 
discussed.  A BID update was given and car parking and branding on lampposts 
were raised.  Over a period of time now BID have expressed a desire to support 
improvements to the public realm of the City centre. Already they have funded 
hanging baskets and some improvements to planted areas. They are also currently 

Page 2



working on a project to improve the appearance of a number of the historic ginnels 
in the City. In addition to this further to a City Council review of street cleansing 
schedules, following the Square routes work they have agreed to fund 50% of the 
extra funding needed to increase cleansing levels in the town centre.  The meeting 
was useful and these meetings are to the advantage of all and should continue.  
The meeting was held at The Storey so that Cabinet Members could see the 
Tasting Garden, which was an item on the Cabinet agenda. 

 
 Thanks to all for your good natured questioning and cooperation during the year.  

May I wish everyone a Happy Christmas and a good New Year. 
 

 
4.0 Other Matters 

 
Cabinet minutes are attached at the end of this agenda.  
 

 

5.0    Key Decisions 
 
 The following Key Decisions were taken by Cabinet on 4 November 2014: 
 

(1) The Dukes - Review of Lease 
(2) The Dukes – Review of Service Level Agreement 

 
The following Key Decisions were taken by Cabinet on 2 December 2014: 
 

(1) Smokefree Play Areas – Introduction of a Voluntary Code 
(2) Budget and Policy Framework Update 2015/16 
(3) Sites off Bailrigg Lane, Lancaster 

 
 
The following Officer Delegated (Key) Decisions were taken during this period: 
 

(1) Corporate Non-Housing 1st Year Delivery Slippage Plan 2014-15 Procurement 
Group Intermediate Works – Bridge End Depot, Ryeland Park Changing Rooms, 
Old Man’s Rest, Cottage Museum and Slyne Road Scout Hut. 

(2) Corporate Non-Housing  Year 2 Delivery Plan – Lancaster Town Hall Lift 
Replacement 

(3) Ground Works for Marsh – Phase 2 
(4) Banking Contract 
(5) Elections Management Software Contract 
(6) Phase 2 Communal Refurbishment on Branksome Estate 
(7) Sheltered Accommodation Upgrade – Ripley Court – Remodel of Bedsits 
(8) Replacement of 3 Compact Sweepers 

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Cabinet agenda and minutes of the meetings held on 4th November and 2nd December 
2014  

Page 3



COUNCIL  
 
 

 
 

Financial Referrals:  Treasury Management and 
Budget Update 

17 December 2014 
 

Report of Cabinet  
 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

To provide updates to Council on treasury management progress during the year, and on 
the 2015/16 budget process. 

This report is public. 

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
(1) That the mid-year treasury management progress report set out at 

Annex A be noted. 

(2) That the budget update report as set out in Annex B be noted. 

 

 

1 Introduction 

 
1.1 At its meeting in December, Cabinet received reports on the Council’s 

financial position, including treasury management activities. 
 

1.2 In line with regulatory requirements, the mid-year treasury management report 
is now attached at Annex A, for Council’s information. 

 
1.3 A more general update on the Council’s budgetary position is attached at 

Annex B.  Given that the Local Government Settlement has not yet been 
received, the report is also primarily for information. 
 

1.4 At the time of writing this referral report, it was expected that the Local 
Government Settlement would be announced on or around 17 December;  the 
date of this Council meeting. 
 

 
 

Agenda Item 9 Page 4



CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and Rural 
Proofing) 

See attached budget update report. 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

See attached reports. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
See attached reports. 
 

OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

See attached budget update report. 

 

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS 

See attached reports;  the s151 Officer has no further comments to add.. 

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 

See attached reports;  the Monitoring Officer has no further comments to add.. 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

None. 

Contact Officer: Nadine Muschamp 
Telephone:  01524 582117 
E-mail: nmuschamp@lancaster.gov.uk 
Ref:  

 

Page 5



!!!!""#$!%"

#$%&'%(")*+,-.*/"0,1,2+3+14"5*62*+--"7+86*4"
%%"96:+3;+*"#$%&"<=.,*4+*"#>"

7+86*4"6?"@AB+?"C??BD+*"<7+-6.*D+->

%E F14*6G.D4B61

!"#$ %&'()$ %*+#$ *,$ '-./01/#$ *2$ !-#.34-5$ 6.2.7#8#20$ -#941-#3$ 0".0$ -#74:.-$ 8*210*-127
-#;*-03$ <#$ ;-#3#20#+$ 0*$ 6#8<#-3$ *2$ 0-#.34-5$ ./01=101#3>$ $ !"#3#$ -#;*-03$ ?1::$ 2*-8.::5$ <#
;-#3#20#+$.,0#-$0"#$#2+$*,$@42#A$B#;0#8<#-A$C#/#8<#-$.2+$6.-/"$.3$;.-0$*,$0"#$%*42/1:D3
;#-,*-8.2/#$8.2.7#8#20$,-.8#?*-E>

%*42/1:$ .;;-*=#+$ 0"#$ FGHIJHK$ !-#.34-5$ B0-.0#75A$ ?"1/"$ 12/*-;*-.0#3$ 0"#$ &2=#308#20
B0-.0#75A$.0$ 103$8##0127$*2$FL$(#<-4.-5$FGHI>$ $!"13$ -#;*-0$*40:12#3$./01=101#3$42+#-0.E#2$ 12
;4-34.2/#$*,$0"*3#$30-.0#71#3$+4-127$0"#$,12.2/1.:$5#.-$4;$0*$0"#$#2+$*,$M0-$F>

!-#.34-5$8.2.7#8#20$13$.$0#/"21/.:$.-#.>$$!*$.33130$?10"$0"#$42+#-30.2+127$*,$0"13$-#;*-0A$.!
7:*33.-5$*,$0#-83$/*88*2:5$43#+$12$!-#.34-5$6.2.7#8#20$13$.00./"#+$.0$A!!"#$%& A> $ $ & 2!
.++101*2A$0"#$%*42/1::*-D3$N41+#$0*$O*/.:$N*=#-28#20$(12.2/#$.:3*$".3$.$3#/01*2$*2$0-#.34-5!
.2+$ /.3"$ 8.2.7#8#20$ .2+$ .2$ 4;+.0#+$ N41+#$ 13$ 2*?$ .=.1:.<:#$ 0"-*47"$ 0"#$ 6#8<#-!
&2,*-8.01*2$3#/01*2$*2$0"#$&20-.2#0>

#E H.33,*/I"J+,GKB1+"0+--,2+-

! FD+K,1GBD"F1:+-43+14-"P$Q2:5$RSST$301::$+4#$,-*8$TB(A$.2+$RLHKT$"#:+$12$.2
#3/-*?$.//*420$12$-#3;#/0$*,$N:1021->

! L6**6MB12"!D4B:B4B+-"P$ 2*$ 2#?$ <*--*?127$ ".3$ <##2$ 42+#-0.E#2$ +4-127$ 0"#
3#/*2+$94.-0#-$*,$0"#$5#.-A$.2+$2*$:*.23$".=#$<##2$-#;.1+>

! F1:+-43+14"!D4B:B4B+-"P$12=#308#20$120#-#30$13$RST$."#.+$*,$0.-7#0$.0$0"#$#2+
*,$0"#$3#/*2+$94.-0#->

NE OD6163BD".8G,4+"<8*6:BG+G";/"@,8B4,K"!--+4"H+*:BD+->
),0#-$ 30-*27$ UT$ NC'$ 94.-0#-:5$ 7-*?0"$ *,$ G>SVA$ G>WV$ .2+$ G>SV$ 12$ 94.-0#-3$ FA$ X$ .2+$ I
-#3;#/01=#:5$12$FGHXA$YFGHX$.224.:$-.0#$F>SVZA$.2+$G>SV$12$MH$.2+$G>[V$12$MF$FGHI$Y.224.:
-.0#$X>FV$12$MFZA$10$.;;#.-3$=#-5$:1E#:5$0".0$30-*27$7-*?0"$?1::$/*20124#$0"-*47"$FGHI$.2+$120*
FGHK$.3$,*-?.-+$34-=#53$,*-$0"#$3#-=1/#3$.2+$/*230-4/01*2$3#/0*-3A$.-#$=#-5$#2/*4-.7127$.2+
<4312#33$ 12=#308#20$ 13$ .:3*$ 30-*27:5$ -#/*=#-127>$ $ !"#$8.24,./04-127$ 3#/0*-$ ".3$.:3*$<##2
#2/*4-.7127$0"*47"$0"#$:.0#30$,174-#3$12+1/.0#$.$?#.E#2127$12$0"#$,404-#$0-#2+$-.0#$*,$7-*?0">
\*?#=#-A$,*-$0"13$-#/*=#-5$0*$<#/*8#$8*-#$<.:.2/#+$.2+$3430.12.<:#$12$0"#$:*27#-$0#-8A$0"#
-#/*=#-5$2##+3$0*$8*=#$.?.5$,-*8$+#;#2+#2/#$*2$/*2348#-$#];#2+104-#$.2+$0"#$"*43127
8.-E#0$ 0*$ #];*-0127A$ .2+$ ;.-01/4:.-:5$ *,$ 8.24,./04-#+$ 7**+3A$ <*0"$ *,$ ?"1/"$ 2##+$ 0*
34<30.201.::5$18;-*=#$*2$0"#1-$-#/#20$:./E:430-#$;#-,*-8.2/#>$$!"13$*=#-.::$30-*27$7-*?0"$".3
-#34:0#+$ 12$42#8;:*58#20$ ,.::127$84/"$,.30#-$ 0"-*47"$0"#$ 12101.:$ 0"-#3"*:+$*,$SVA$3#0$<5$ 0"#
6*2#0.-5$'*:1/5$%*88100##$Y6'%Z$:.30$)47430A$<#,*-#$10$3.1+$10$?*4:+$/*231+#-$.25$12/-#.3#3
12$^.2E$_.0#>$ $ !"#$6'%$".3A$ 0"#-#,*-#A$ 34<3#94#20:5$ <-*.+#2#+$ 103$ ,*-?.-+$ 741+.2/#$ <5

Page 6



.+*;0127$ ,1=#$ 94.:10.01=#$ ;-12/1;:#3$ .2+$ :**E127$ .0$ .$ 84/"$ ?1+#-$ -.27#$ *,$ .<*40$ #17"0##2$
12+1/.0*-3$ 12$ *-+#-$ 0*$ ,*-8$ .$ =1#?$ *2$ "*?$ 84/"$ 3:./E$ 0"#-#$ 13$ 12$ 0"#$ #/*2*85$ .2+$ "*?$
941/E:5$3:./E$13$<#127$43#+$4;>$!"#$6'%$13$;.-01/4:.-:5$/*2/#-2#+$0".0$0"#$/4--#20$394##`#$
*2$ 0"#$+13;*3.<:#$ 12/*8#3$*,$/*2348#-3$3"*4:+$<#$ -#=#-3#+$<5$?.7#$ 12,:.01*2$ -13127$<./E$
.<*=#$ 0"#$ :#=#:$*,$ 12,:.01*2$ 12$*-+#-$ 0*$#234-#$ 0".0$ 0"#$ -#/*=#-5$?1::$<#$3430.12.<:#>$ $!"#-#$
.:3*$2##+3$0*$<#$.$8.a*-$18;-*=#8#20$12$:.<*4-$;-*+4/01=105A$?"1/"$".3$:.27413"#+$.0$+138.:$
:#=#:3$ 312/#$ FGGWA$ 0*$ 34;;*-0$ 12/-#.3#3$ 12$ ;.5$ -.0#3>$ $ 6*30$ #/*2*81/$ ,*-#/.30#-3$ .-#$
#];#/0127$7-*?0"$0*$;#.E$12$FGHI$.2+$0"#2$0*$#.3#$*,,$.$:100:#A$0"*47"$301::$-#8.12127$30-*27A$12$
FGHK$.2+$FGHL>$ $U2#8;:*58#20$ 13$ 0"#-#,*-#$#];#/0#+$ 0*$ E##;$*2$ 103$ +*?2?.-+$ 0-#2+$.2+$
0"13$ 13$ :1E#:5$ 0*$#=#204.::5$ ,##+$ 0"-*47"$ 120*$.$ -#04-2$ 0*$31721,1/.20$ 12/-#.3#3$ 12$;.5$ -.0#3$.0$
3*8#$;*120$+4-127$0"#$2#]0$0"-##$5#.-3>$$\*?#=#-A$ a430$"*?$84/"$0"*3#$,404-#$12/-#.3#3$12$
;.5$ -.0#3$ ?1::$ /*420#-./0$ 0"#$ +#;-#331=#$ #,,#/0$ *,$ 12/-#.3#3$ 12$ ^.2E$ _.0#$ *2$ /*2348#-$
/*2,1+#2/#A$ 0"#$ -.0#$ *,$ 7-*?0"$ 12$ /*2348#-$ #];#2+104-#$ .2+$ 0"#$ <4*5.2/5$ *,$ 0"#$ "*43127$
8.-E#0A$.-#$.-#.3$0".0$?1::$2##+$0*$<#$E#;0$42+#-$-#74:.-$-#=1#?>$

):3*$#2/*4-.7127$".3$<##2$0"#$3".-;$,.::$12$12,:.01*2$Y%'&ZA$-#./"127$H>KV$12$@4:5A$0"#$:*?#30$
-.0#$ 312/#$ FGG[>$ $ (*-?.-+$ 12+1/.01*23$ .-#$ 0".0$ 12,:.01*2$ 13$ :1E#:5$ 0*$ ,.::$ ,4-0"#-$ 12$ FGHI$ 0*$
;*331<:5$HV>$$!"#$-#04-2$0*$30-*27$7-*?0"$".3$.:3*$"#:;#+$:*?#-$,*-#/.303$,*-$0"#$12/-#.3#$12$
N*=#-28#20$+#<0$<5$RSX<2$*=#-$0"#$2#]0$,1=#$5#.-3A$.3$.22*42/#+$12$0"#$)40482$B0.0#8#20A$
.2+$<5$.2$.++101*2.:$RFI<2A$.3$.22*42/#+$12$0"#$6.-/"$FGHI$^4+7#0$b$?"1/"$.:3*$,*-#/.30$.$
-#04-2$0*$.$31721,1/.20$<4+7#0$34-;:43A$Y*,$RK<2ZA$12$FGHWbH[>$$\*?#=#-A$8*20":5$;4<:1/$3#/0*-$
+#,1/10$,174-#3$".=#$+13.;;*120#+$3*$,.-$0"13$5#.->$

&2$ B#;0#8<#-A$ 0"#$ U>B>$ (#+#-.:$ _#3#-=#$ /*20124#+$ ?10"$ 103$ 8*20":5$ cHG<2$ -#+4/01*23$ 12$
.33#0$ ;4-/".3#3A$?"1/"$30.-0#+$ 12$C#/#8<#-$FGHI>$)33#0$ ;4-/".3#3$".=#$2*?$ ,.::#2$ ,-*8$
cWK<2$0*$cHK<2$.2+$.-#$#];#/0#+$0*$30*;$12$Q/0*<#-$FGHIA$;-*=1+127$30-*27$#/*2*81/$7-*?0"$
/*20124#3>$ $(1-30$94.-0#-$NC'$,174-#3$?#-#$+#;-#33#+$<5$#]/#;01*2.::5$<.+$?120#-$?#.0"#-A$
<40$94.-0#-$F$-#<*42+#+$30-*27:5$0*$I>LV>$

!"#$d4-*`*2#$13$,./127$.2$12/-#.3127$0"-#.0$,-*8$+#,:.01*2>$$&2$B#;0#8<#-A$0"#$12,:.01*2$-.0#$
,#::$ ,4-0"#-A$ 0*$ -#./"$ G>XV>$ $\*?#=#-A$ 0"13$ 13$ .2$ .=#-.7#$ ,*-$ .::$ de$ /*420-1#3$ .2+$ 12/:4+#3$
3*8#$/*420-1#3$?10"$2#7.01=#$-.0#3$*,$ 12,:.01*2>$$)//*-+127:5A$ 0"#$d%^$+1+$0.E#$3*8#$-.0"#-$
:1810#+$./01*2$12$@42#$.2+$B#;0#8<#-$0*$:**3#2$8*2#0.-5$;*:1/5$12$*-+#-$0*$;-*8*0#$7-*?0">"

&E L6**6MB12"!D4B:B4B+-
f*$2#?$<*--*?127$?.3$42+#-0.E#2$+4-127$M0-$H>$!"#$,*::*?127$7-.;"$3"*?3$0"#$'gO^$-.0#3
,*-$0"#$,1-30$".:,$*,$0"13$5#.->

Page 7



O,*K/"7+8,/3+14"6?"P+;4"
Q,,1/#-3$ /*20124#$ 0*$ 8*210*-$ ;*0#201.:$ 3.=127$ *;;*-042101#3$ .33*/1.0#+$ ?10"$ 0"#$ #.-:5$
-#;.58#20$*,$#]130127$+#<0>$ $!"13$ 0.E#3$ 120*$.//*420$ 0"#$;-#81483$*-$+13/*4203$.33*/1.0#+$
?10"$#.-:5$-#;.58#20$.2+$0"#$;-*a#/0#+$/*30$*,$-#,12.2/127$*-$:*33$12$12=#308#20$120#-#30>$$)0$
;-#3#20A$ 10$ ?*4:+$ 2*0$ <#$ ,12.2/1.::5$ ;-4+#20$ 0*$ -#;.5$ .25$ +#<0$ <.3#+$ *2$ 0"#$ /4--#20$ -.0#3$
<#127$*,,#-#+>$

(E F1:+-4B12"!D4B:B4B+-
)3$ :.1+$ +*?2$ 12$ 0"#$ .;;-*=#+$ &2=#308#20$ B0-.0#75A$ 0"#$ .18$ 13$ 0*$ ;-1*-1013#$ 3#/4-105$ .2+
:1941+105$*,$0"#$%*42/1:D3$12=#308#203>$$!"13$13$0*$#234-#$0".0$0"#$%*42/1:$".3$34,,1/1#20$/.3"$0*
34;;*-0$103$<4312#33A$<40$.:3*$0*$8121813#$.25$,4-0"#-$/".2/#$*,$.$/*420#-;.-05$,.1:127$.2+$0"#
%*42/1:$2*0$<#127$.<:#$0*$-#8*=#$.25$/.3"$+#;*310#+>

)::$ 12=#308#20$./01=105$".3$<##2$ 12$ :12#$?10"$ 0"#$.;;-*=#+$!-#.34-5$B0-.0#75$,*-$FGHIJHK>$)
,4::$:130$*,$0"#$12=#308#203$.0$0"#$#2+$*,$M0-$F$13$3"*?2$<#:*?$Y!.<:#$L>HZh

!.<:#$L>H$%*420#-;.-05$<.:.2/#3

C4A+*"F1:+-43+14- C8+1B12 0B1 0,Q @K6-B12
F1GBD,4B:+"
*,4+

@.3.K,4B:+"
F14+*+-4

R R R R R
%.::h$_^B G G G G G>FKV G
%.::h$O.2/.3"1-#$%*4205$%*42/1: HFAGGGAGGG HAXWKAGGG HHAXWXAGGG FAGFIAGGG G>FKV SAGSW
%.::h$B=#23E.$\.2+#:3<.2E#2 G G KAWLIAGGG KAWLIAGGG G>IGV [AWLX
C6)C( G G G G G>FKV G
N*=#-28#20$O1941+105$66( XAGXWAGGG LAGGGAGGG LAGGGAGGG LAGGGAGGG G>FSV SAGGH
O1941+105$(1-30$66(> LAGGGAGGG LAGGGAGGG LAGGGAGGG LAGGGAGGG G>IGV HHASLK
&2317"0$66( LAGGGAGGG LAGGGAGGG LAGGGAGGG LAGGGAGGG G>XSV HGASGH
O:*5+3 XAGGGAGGG LAGGGAGGG LAGGGAGGG LAGGGAGGG G>LGV HSAFLG
B4<b0*0.: FSAGXWAGGG FKAWWWAGGG LXALL[

^#:*?$13$.$7-.;"$?"1/"$+13;:.53$0"#$+1,,#-#20$12=#308#20$;-*+4/03$43#+$<5$0"#$%*42/1:>$!"#$
8.a*-105$ *,$ 0"#$%*42/1:D3$ <.:.2/#3$ .-#$ "#:+$ ?10"12$ 1230.20$ .//#33$66(D3$ *-$ /.::$ .//*4203>$
!"13$ 13$ ;.-0:5$ <#/.43#$ 0"#-#$ .-#$ ;-4+#201.:$ /*20-*:3$ 0".0$ #234-#$ .$ /#-0.12$ ;#-/#20.7#$ 13$
188#+1.0#:5$ .=.1:.<:#$ .2+$ .:3*$ 0"#-#$ 13$ *2:5$ .$ 38.::$ ;**:$ *,$ /*420#-;.-01#3$ 0".0$ 8##0$ 0"#$
%*42/1:D3$/-#+10$/-10#-1.$ ,*-$ ,1]#+$0#-8$+#;*3103>$Q0"#-$UT$<.2E3A$ 0".0$8##0$0"#$/-10#-1.$34/"$
.3$\B^%A$-#941-#$84/"$:.-7#-$12=#308#20$.2+$8.-E#0$0"#83#:=#3$.0$84/"$:.-7#-$123010401*2.:$
12=#30*-3$*-$/*-;*-.01*23>$

N-.;"$L>H$&2=#308#20$<.:.2/#3$

Page 8



H.33,*/"6?"L.G2+4"56-B4B61",1G"5+*?6*3,1D+$
&2$0#-83$*,$;#-,*-8.2/#$.7.1230$#]0#-2.:$<#2/"8.-E3A$0"#$-#04-2$*2$12=#308#203$/*8;.-#+$
0*$0"#$S$+.5$O&^&C$.2+$<.2E$-.0#3$*=#-$0"#$5#.-$0*$+.0#$13$.3$,*::*?3h$

^.3#$_.0#$ $ G>KGGV$
S$+.5$O&^&C$ $ G>XKWV$
O.2/.30#-$%105$%*42/1:$12=#308#203$ G>XWGV$

!"#3#$-.0#3$+*$2*0$0.E#$120*$/*231+#-.01*2$0"#$,42+3$"#:+$12$.$,*-#172$<.2E$.//*420$,-*8$.2$
&/#:.2+1/$<.2E$3#00:#8#20>$!"#3#$,42+3$.-#$.00-./0127$120#-#30$.0$I>FV>$

&2$0#-83$*,$;#-,*-8.2/#$.7.1230$<4+7#0A$0"#$+#0.1:3$.-#$.3$,*::*?3h$

L.G2+4"46"
P,4+"
R$$$S-"

!D4.,K-"46"
P,4+"
R$$$S-"

T,*B,1D+"

R$$$S-"
FD+K,1GBD"@*+GB4-" HF$ HK$ YXZ$
@,-A"F14+*+-4" LG$ LI$ YIZ$
)64,K" U#" UV" <U>"

&2=#308#20$-#04-23A$#]/:4+127$<.:.2/#3$"#:+$ 12$ 0"#$&/#:.2+1/$.//*420A$#]/##+$0"#$<4+7#0#+$
:#=#:>$!"13$13$+4#$0*$/.3"$<.:.2/#3$<#127$:.-7#-$0".2$#];#/0#+$.3$.$-#34:0$*,$+#:.53$?10"12$0"#$
/.;10.:$;-*7-.88#>$

WE 7B-X"3,1,2+3+14
!"#-#$".3$<##2$2*$8.0#-1.:$/".27#$ 12$ 0"#$;*:1/5$*-$*;#-.01*2$*,$ 0"#$ 0-#.34-5$ ,42/01*2$*=#-
0"#$ 94.-0#->$ $ \*?#=#-A$ *,,1/#-3$ .-#$ 2*?$ :**E127$ .0$ .:0#-2.01=#$ 12=#308#20$ 8.0-1/#3$ 0*
+#0#-812#$1,$12=#308#20$-#04-23$/*4:+$<#$12/-#.3#+$?"1:30$8121813127$0"#$%*42/1:D3$#];*34-#
0*$ .++101*2.:$ -13E3>$ $ B#/*2+:5A$ .3$ 0"#$ /.3"$ ,:*?$ 2##+$ 0*$ E##;$ 12=#308#203$ 3"*-0$ ".3
+181213"#+A$ ;.-01/4:.-:5$ 12$ :17"0$ *,$ 0"#$ :.0#30$ 3#00:#8#20$ +.0#$ *2$ /#-0.12$ 31721,1/.20$ ffC_
.;;#.:3$<#127$;43"#+$<./E$0*$FGHSA$*,,1/#-3$?1::$2*?$<#$,1-8127$4;$/.3"$,:*?$,*-#/.303$?10"$.
=1#?$0*$;:./127$:*27#-$0#-8$12=#308#203>

!"#$,42+3$<#127$"#:+$12$&/#:.2+$301::$#];*3#$0"#$%*42/1:$0*$#]/".27#$-.0#$-13E3A$<40$0"#3#$.-#
42.=*1+.<:#>

!"#-#$13$,12.2/1.:$-13E$.00./"#+$0*$0"#$:*27#-$0#-8$+#<0$;*-0,*:1*A$.33*/1.0#+$?10"$120#-#30$-.0#
#];*34-#$<40$.::$*,$0"#$+#<0$13$*2$,1]#+$120#-#30$.2+$0"#-#$".3$<##2$2*$/".27#$0*$0"13$*=#-$0"#
94.-0#->$ $O*?$ 12=#308#20$ -#04-23$8#.2$ 0".0$43127$/.3"$ 12=#30#+$ 0*$ -#;.5$+#<0$/.2$.;;#.-
8*-#$.00-./01=#A$<40$0"#$%*42/1:$ 13$2*0$5#0$ 12$.$/:#.-$#2*47"$;*3101*2$0*$<#$,*::*?127$34/"$.
30-.0#75>

%.3"$<.:.2/#3$"#:+$?10"$!"#$%**;#-.01=#$^.2E$/*20124#$ 0*$<#$8*210*-#+$*2$.$+.1:5$<.313
,*::*?127$ 0"#$<.2E3$ /-1313$ 12$ -#:.01*2$ 0*$ 103$ ,42+127$7.;>$!"#$<.2E$ ,.::3$ 3"*-0$ *,$ 0"#$ /*42/1:
/-#+10$-.0127$/-10#-1.$.2+$".3$2*0$<##2$*2$0"#$.;;-*=#+$:#2+127$:130$,*-$3*8#$018#>

UE 5*.G+14B,K"F1GBD,46*-
!"#3#$12+1/.0*-3$.-#$;-#3/-1<#+$<5$0"#$'-4+#201.:$%*+#$0*$"#:;$+#8*230-.0#$0".0$0"#$%*42/1:!
/.2$ ,12.2/#$ 103$+#<0$.2+$".=#$ ,42+3$.=.1:.<:#$?"#2$2##+#+>$!"#$;-4+#201.:$ 12+1/.0*-3$.-#!
:130#+$12$A!!"#$%& B>

YE @61DK.-B61
&2=#308#20$./01=105$".3$ -#8.12#+$ -#:.01=#:5$42/".27#+$.2+$ -#04-23$.-#$#];#/0#+$ 0*$ -#8.12
,.1-:5$30.01/$4201:$0"#$,12.:$94.-0#-$*,$0"13$,12.2/1.:$5#.->

Page 9



!&&#"'($"!
)*+,-.*/"0,1,2+3+14"ZK6--,*/"6?")+*3-"

! !11.B4/$P$8#0"*+$*,$ -#;.5127$.$ :*.2$?"#-#$ 0"#$;.58#20$.8*420$ -#8.123$421,*-8$ 0"-*47"*40
0"#$:1,#$*,$0"#$:*.2A$0"#-#,*-#$0"#$3;:10$=.-1#3$34/"$0".0$0"#$;-*;*-01*2$*,$0"#$;.58#20$-#:.0127$0*
0"#$;-12/1;.:$12/-#.3#3$.3$0"#$.8*420$*,$120#-#30$+#/-#.3#3>

! @F5[!"P$0"#$%".-0#-#+$&2301040#$*,$'4<:1/$(12.2/#$.2+$)//*420.2/5A$13$0"#$;-*,#331*2.:$<*+5$,*-
.//*420.203$ ?*-E127$ 12$ O*/.:$ N*=#-28#20$ .2+$ *0"#-$ ;4<:1/$ 3#/0*-$ *-7.213.01*23A$ .:3*$ 0"#
30.2+.-+$3#00127$*-7.213.01*2$,*-$O*/.:$N*=#-28#20$(12.2/#>

! @,KK",DD6.14"P$1230.20$.//#33$+#;*310$.//*420>

! @6.14+*8,*4/"P$.2$123010401*2$Y#>7>$.$<.2EZ$?10"$?"*8$.$<*--*?127$*-$12=#308#20$0-.23./01*2$13
8.+#>

! @*+GB4"7,4B12"P$ 13$.2$*;121*2$*2$ 0"#$/-#+10b?*-0"12#33$*,$.2$ 123010401*2A$<.3#+$*2$ a4+7#8#203
.<*40$0"#$,404-#$30.043$*,$0".0$123010401*2>$$&0$13$<.3#+$*2$.25$12,*-8.01*2$.=.1:.<:#$-#7.-+127$0"#
123010401*2h$;4<:13"#+$ -#34:03A$B".-#"*:+#-3D$ -#;*-03A$ -#;*-03$ ,-*8$ 0-.+127$;.-02#-3A$ .2+$.:3*$.2
.2.:5313$ *,$ 0"#$ #2=1-*28#20$ 12$?"1/"$ 0"#$ 123010401*2$ *;#-.0#3$ Y#>7>$ 103$ "*8#$ #/*2*85A$ .2+$ 103
8.-E#0$3#/0*-Z>$$!"#$8.12$-.0127$.7#2/1#3$.-#$(10/"A$B0.2+.-+$.2+$'**-D3A$.2+$6**+5D3>$$!"#5
.2.:53#$/-#+10$?*-0"12#33$42+#-$,*4-$"#.+1273h

! HA6*4")+*3"7,4B12$P$ 0"#$;#-/#1=#+$.<1:105$*,$ 0"#$*-7.213.01*2$0*$8##0$ 103$*<:17.01*23$ 12
0"#$3"*-0$0#-8A$0"13$?1::$<#$<.3#+$*2$8#.34-#3$*,$:1941+105>

! \612")+*3"7,4B12"P$ 0"#$.<1:105$*,$ 0"#$*-7.213.01*2" 0*$ -#;.5$ 103$+#<03$ 12$ 0"#$ :*27$ 0#-8A
<.3#+$*2$*;121*23$-#7.-+127$,404-#$30.<1:105A$#>7>$103$#];*34-#$0*$i-13E5D$8.-E#03>

! F1GB:BG.,K'[B1,1DB,K"H4*+124A"7,4B12"P$ .$8#.34-#$*,$ .2$ 123010401*2D3$ 3*42+2#33$ *2$ .
30.2+b.:*2#$<.313$<.3#+$*2$103$30-4/04-#A$;.30$;#-,*-8.2/#$.2+$/-#+10$;-*,1:#>

! \+2,K" H.886*4" 7,4B12" P$ .$ =1#?$ *,$ 0"#$ :1E#:1"**+A$ 12$ 0"#$ /.3#$ *,$ .$ ,12.2/1.:$ 123010401*2
,.1:127A$ 0".0$ 103$ *<:17.01*23$?*4:+$ <#$8#0A$ 12$ ?"*:#$ *-$ ;.-0A$ <5$ 103$ 3".-#"*:+#-3A$ /#20-.:
<.2EA$*-$2.01*2.:$7*=#-28#20>

!"#$-.0127$.7#2/1#3$/*230.20:5$8*210*-$12,*-8.01*2$-#/#1=#+$-#7.-+127$,12.2/1.:$123010401*23A$.2+$
?1::$.8#2+$0"#$/-#+10$-.01273$.33172#+$.3$2#/#33.-5>$

! P0!P[",1G"4A+"P0C"]"!"#$C6)C($13$0"#$iC#<0$6.2.7#8#20$)//*420$C#;*310$(./1:105Dj$0"13$13
"17":5$3#/4-#$,1]#+$0#-8$+#;*310$.//*420$?10"$0"#$C#<0$6.2.7#8#20$Q,,1/#$YC6QZA$;.-0$*,$\#-
6.a#305D3$!-#.34-5>

! OF5" ]"d94.:$ &230.:8#203$ *,$ '-12/1;.:A$ .$ 05;#$ *,$ :*.2$ ?"#-#$ #./"$ ;.58#20$ 12/:4+#3$ .2$ #94.:
.8*420$12$-#3;#/0$*,$:*.2$;-12/1;.:A$0"#-#,*-#$0"#$120#-#30$+4#$?10"$#./"$;.58#20$-#+4/#3$.3$0"#
;-12/1;.:$13$#-*+#+A$.2+$3*$0"#$0*0.:$.8*420$-#+4/#3$?10"$#./"$1230.:8#20>

! ZBK4-$ P$ 0"#$ 2.8#$ 71=#2$ 0*$ <*2+3$ 1334#+$ <5$ 0"#$ U$ T$ N*=#-28#20>$ $ N1:03$ .-#$ 1334#+$ <#.-127
120#-#30$.0$.$3;#/1,1#+$-.0#A$"*?#=#-$ 0"#5$.-#$ 0"#2$0-.+#+$*2$ 0"#$8.-E#03$ :1E#$3".-#3$.2+$ 0"#1-
=.:4#$ -13#3$ *-$ ,.::3$ .//*-+127:5>$ $ !"#$k1#:+$ *2$.$ 71:0$ 13$ 0"#$ 120#-#30$ ;.1+$ +1=1+#+$ <5$ 0"#$6.-E#0
l.:4#$*,$0".0$71:0>
d>7>$."XG$5#.-$71:0$ 13$1334#+$12$H[[I$.0$RHA$<#.-127$120#-#30$*,$WV>$$&2$H[[[$0"#$8.-E#0$=.:4#$*,
0"#$71:0$13$RH>IK>$$!"#$51#:+$*2$0".0$71:0$13$/.:/4:.0#+$.3$WVJH>IK$m$K>KV>
B##$.:3*$'gO^>

Page 10



! \FLFP$ P$ !"#$ O*2+*2$ &20#-b^.2E$ ^1+$_.0#A$ 0"#$ -.0#$?"1/"$ <.2E3$?*4:+$ ".=#$ 0*$ <1+$ 0*$ <*--*?
,42+3$,-*8$*0"#-$<.2E3$,*-$.$71=#2$;#-1*+>$$!"#$*,,1/1.:$-.0#$13$;4<:13"#+$<5$0"#$^.2E$*,$d27:.2+
.0$HH.8$#./"$+.5$<.3#+$*2$0-.+#3$4;$0*$0".0$018#>

! \FLC7" P$ !"#$ O*2+*2$ &20#-b^.2E$ Q,,#-$ _.0#A$ 0"#$ -.0#$ .0$ ?"1/"$ <.2E3$ ?10"$ 34-;:43$ ,42+3$ .-#
*,,#-127$0*$:#2+$0"#8$0*$*0"#-$<.2E3A$.7.12$;4<:13"#+$.0$HH.8$#./"$+.5>

! \B^.BGB4/"P$_#:.0#3$0*$0"#$.8*420$*,$-#.+1:5$.=.1:.<:#$*-$3"*-0$0#-8$12=#308#20$8*2#5$?"1/"$/.2
<#$43#+$,*-$#10"#-$+.5$0*$+.5$*-$42,*-#3##2$#];#23#3>$(*-$#].8;:#$%.::$)//*4203$.::*?$1230.20
+.1:5$.//#33$0*$12=#30#+$,42+3>

! 0,4.*B4/"P$!5;#$*,$ :*.2$?"#-#$*2:5$;.58#203$*,$ 120#-#30$.-#$8.+#$+4-127$ 0"#$ :1,#$*,$ 0"#$ :*.2A
?10"$0"#$0*0.:$.8*420$*,$;-12/1;.:$,.::127$+4#$.0$0"#$#2+$*,$0"#$:*.2$;#-1*+>

! 061+/"0,*X+4"[.1G" <00[>"P$!5;#$*,$ 12=#308#20$?"#-#$ 0"#$%*42/1:$ ;4-/".3#3$.$3".-#$*,$ .
/.3"$ ,42+$ 0".0$ 8.E#3$ 3"*-0$ 0#-8$ +#;*3103$ ?10"$ .$ <-*.+$ -.27#$ *,$ "17"$ 94.:105$ /*420#-;.-01#3>
!"#3#$ .-#$ "17":5$ -#74:.0#+$ 12$ 0#-83$ *,$ .=#-.7#$ :#270"$ *,$ +#;*310$ .2+$ /*420#-;.-05$ 94.:105A$ 0*
#234-#$)))$-.0#+$30.043>

! 56KBD/" ,1G" H4*,4+2/" P6D.3+14-" P$ +*/48#203$ -#941-#+$ <5$ 0"#$ %&'()$ %*+#$ *,$ '-./01/#$ *2
!-#.34-5$ 6.2.7#8#20$ 12$ O*/.:$ )40"*-101#3>$ $ !"#3#$ 3#0$ *40$ 0"#$ ,-.8#?*-E$ ,*-$ 0-#.34-5
8.2.7#8#20$*;#-.01*23$+4-127$0"#$5#.->

! 5.;KBD"_6*X-"\6,1-"L6,*G"<5_\L>$P$.$/#20-.:$7*=#-28#20$.7#2/5$;-*=1+127$ :*27$.2+$3"*-0
0#-8$ :*.23$ 0*$O*/.:$)40"*-101#3>$ $_.0#3$.-#$ 3#0$ +.1:5$ .0$ .$8.-712$*=#-$ 0"#$N1:0$ 51#:+$ Y3##$N1:03
.<*=#Z>$ $O*.23$8.5$<#$ 0.E#2$.0$ ,1]#+$*-$=.-1.<:#$ -.0#3$.2+$.3$)224105A$6.04-105A$*-$d&'$ :*.23
Y3##$3#;.-.0#$+#,12101*23Z$*=#-$;#-1*+3$*,$4;$0*$,1,05$5#.-3>$$(12.2/127$13$.:3*$.=.1:.<:#$,-*8$0"#
8*2#5$8.-E#03A$"*?#=#-$<#/.43#$*,$103$2.04-#$0"#$'gO^$13$7#2#-.::5$.<:#$0*$*,,#-$<#00#-$0#-83>

! @,8B4,"!--+4"H+*:BD+-""P$.-#$0"#$%105$%*42/1:D3$!-#.34-5$6.2.7#8#20$.+=13*-3>$$$$!"#5$;-*=1+#
.+=1/#$*2$<*--*?127$30-.0#75A$ 12=#308#20$30-.0#75A$.2+$=#00127$*,$ 12=#308#20$/*420#-;.-01#3A$ 12
.++101*2$0*$.+$"*/$741+.2/#$0"-*47"*40$0"#$5#.->

! `B+KG$P$3##$N1:03

6#8<#-3$8.5$.:3*$?13"$0*$8.E#$-#,#-#2/#$0*$The Councillor’s Guide to Local Government Finance. 

Page 11



!&&#"'($"L"

57aPO9)F!\"F9PF@!)C7H"b"\!9@!H)O7"@F)`"@Ca9@F\$

#$%&'%($ #$%('%W$ #$%W'%U
Rc$$$$ Rc$$$$ Rc$$$$ Rc$$$$

)((Q_C)^&O&!k"
5F"%I$ d3018.0#3$*,$-.01*$*,$,12.2/127$/*303$0*$2#0$-#=#24# 30-#.8 f*2 b \_) HF>WV HF>IV$ HF>KV HF>WV

\_) FX>XV FF>KV$ FH>WV FG>[V
Q=#-.::$ HS>HV$ HL>LV$ HL>XV$ HL>FV$

$

""5F"NI" d3018.0#3$*,$0"#$12/-#8#20.:$18;./0$*,$2#?$%.;10.:$&2=#308#20$+#/131*23$*2$0"#$$$
%*42/1:$!.]$ bRL>SG$ RHH>FS$ RX>IW$ RG>[S$

!"13$12/:4+#3$0"#$18;./0$*,$.::$#:#8#203$*,$,42+127A$12/:4+127$.25$12/-#.3#$12$
0"#$2##+$0*$<*--*?A$-#941-#+$0*$,12.2/#$2#?$3/"#8#3$.++#+$0*$0"#$%.;10.:$
'-*7-.88#$

bX>IV$ K>LV$ H>SV$ G>KV$

%)'&!)O$dn'dfC&!U_d"
5F"(I$ d3018.0#3$*,$/.;10.:$#];#2+104-#$ f*2 b \_) HS>F[G HG>HSG$ X>[HG I>GXG

\_) I>WSG I>S[G$ I>[XG I>LLG
!*0.:$ FF>HLG$ HI>[LG$ W>WIG$ W>L[G

5F"UI$ d3018.0#3$*,$%.;10.:$(12.2/127$_#941-#8#20$ f*2 b \_) IGAFWH IKAHGH$ IKALKH ILAKIS
\_)$ IIAISX IXAIXF$ IFAX[H IHAXKG
!*0.:$ WIASKI WWAKXX$ WWAGIF WSAW[S

dn!d_f)O$Cd^!"
5F"VI$ )40"*-13#+$O1810$

)40"*-13#+$O1810$,*-$̂ *--*?127$ HGH$ HGH$ HGI$ HGI
)40"*-13#+$O1810$,*-$Q0"#-$O*27$!#-8$O1.<1:101#3$ H H H H
)40"*-13#+$O1810$,*-$d]0#-2.:$C#<0$ HGF HGF$ HGK HGK

5F"%$I$ d]0#-2.:$C#<0h$Q;#-.01*2.:$̂ *42+.-5$ WK$ WW$ WW$ WW

$

$

'_UCdf%d"

$

""5F"%&I$ f#0$+#<0$.2+$0"#$/.;10.:$,12.2/127$-#941-#8#20$

)201/1;.0#+$12+#<0#+2#33$Y*;#-.01*2.:$<*42+.-5Z$ WIAKXH$ WWAXHG$ WWAXHG$ WSAWH[
)201/1;.0#+$12=#308#20$ HGAXGH$ HWAFHG$ HWA[GG$ H[A[LG
%(_$ WIASKI$ WWAKXX$ WWAGIF$ WSAW[S
U2+#-J*=#-$<*--*?#+$YbJoZ$ bHGAGSW$ bHSA[WS$ bH[AHLW$ bH[AWWF

5F"%NI""!-#.34-5$6.2.7#8#20h$.+*;01*2$*,$%&'()$/*+# *, '-./01/#
!"#$%*42/1:$".3$.+*;0#+ 0"# 4;+.0#+ !-#.34-5

6.2.7#8#20$/*+#$*,$;-./01/#$YFGHHZ>$

5F"%#I""\_)$:1810$*2$12+#<0#+2#33$ LGAH[I LGAH[I$ LGAH[I LGAH[I

5F"%%I"")/04.:$#]0#-2.:$+#<0$ _#;*-0#+$.,0#-$#./"$,12.2/1.:$5#.-$#2+$

5F"YI""")/04.:$%.;10.:$(12.2/127$_#941-#8#20$ _#;*-0#+$.,0#-$#./" ,12.2/1.: 5#.- #2+

5F"WI""")/04.:$/.;10.:$#];#2+104-#$ _#;*-0#+$.,0#-$#./" ,12.2/1.: 5#.- #2+

5F"&I d3018.0#3$*,$0"#$12/-#8#20.:$18;./0$*,$%.;10.:$&2=#308#20 *2
\*43127$_#203$ f1: f1:$ f1: f1:

5F"N!I""&::430-.01=#$&8;./0$*,$)++101*2.:$^*--*?127$RH$81::1*2 7+8,/3+14"5+*B6G
("`+,*-" %$"̀ +,*- #( `+,*-

&2/-#.3#$12$%*42/1:$!.]$YRZ$ RI>WL$ RF>LK$ RH>IS$
&2/-#.3#$12$%*42/1:$!.]$YVZ$ F>IWV$ H>XKV$ G>[[V$

5F"#I""")/04.:$-.01*$*,$,12.2/127$/*30$0*$2#0$-#=#24#$30-#.8 _#;*-0#+$.,0#-$#./"$,12.2/1.: 5#.- #2+

Page 12



!"

!"#$%&'

#()*+,-./)-012345-67.8+917:-;<).,+-=>?@A?B-
>=-C+4+8D+7-=>?E-

F+<17,-1G-!H3+G-IGG34+7-JF+K1(74+KL-

0;F0IM&-I6-F&0IF'-

#$%&"'()*'+")'*,%-(&"./"0)-.+("*/"+$("1*0/2%34&"5%/./2%.3")*&%+%*/"+*"$(3)"%/5*'6"-(,(3*)6(/+"
*5"1.7%/(+4&"70-8(+")'*)*&.3&9"""

N+5-C+43K31/- - %1/ON+5-C+43K31/- F+G+77.2-G718-IGG34+7- P
C.,+-1G-/1,34+-1G-G17,H4183/*-
:+5-)+43K31/-

:*,(67('";<!="

'H3K-7+<17,-3K-<(D234Q-

I66$!&F-F&!IRR&%C"'$I%MS-

?Q 'H.,-!.D3/+,-/1,+K- ,H+-)7.G,-D()*+,.75-<1K3,31/- G17-4(77+/,-./)- G(,(7+-5+.7K
.K-K+,-1(,-3/-,H+-7+<17,T-.44+<,3/*-,H.,-,H3K-3K-./-3/,+738-(<).,+Q

=Q 'H.,-,H+-(<).,+-D+-7+G+77+)-1/-,1-C+4+8D+7-!1(/432-G17-3/G178.,31/Q

!" $%'FIC;!'$I%-

!9!" #$%&" '()*'+"70%3-&"*/" +$(">0.'+('";" 5%/./2%.3"6*/%+*'%/8" %/230-(-"(3&(?$('("*/" +$("
.8(/-.@" +*" )'*,%-(" ." 6*'(" 0)" +*" -.+(" .&&(&&6(/+" *5" +$(" 1*0/2%34&" 70-8(+.'A"
)*&%+%*/" %/" ,%(?" *5" %+&" 5%/./2%.3" &+'.+(8A9" " B%,(/" +$.+" +$(" C*2.3" B*,('/6(/+"
D(++3(6(/+"$.&"/*+"A(+"7((/"'(2(%,(-"./-"*+$('"70-8(+.'A"?*'E"%&"/*+"A(+"&2$(-03(-"
5*'"2*6)3(+%*/@"+$("'()*'+"%&"./"%/+('%6"0)-.+("*/3A@")'%6.'%3A"5*'"%/5*'6.+%*/9"

;" M'F"'&U$!-!I%'&V'-

;9!" 'W&-!I;%!$XYM-0IX$!Z-6F"R&[IFN-

;9!9!" F*'"%+&";<!=G!H"1*')*'.+("I3./@"+$("1%+A"1*0/2%3"'(+.%/(-"%+&")'%*'%+%(&".&J"

!" K2*/*6%2"B'*?+$"
!" L(.3+$"./-"M(337(%/8"
!" 13(./@"B'((/"./-"D.5("I3.2(&@"./-"
!" 1*660/%+A"C(.-('&$%)"

!""#$%&

Page 13



;"

;9!9;" #$(&(".'("/*?"0/-(')%//(-"7A"./"(+$*&".3%8/(-"+*"7(%/8"./"K/&0'%/8"1*0/2%39"
"

;9!9N" O/" 1.7%/(+" .))'*,%/8" +$%&" A(.'4&" 70-8(+" +%6(+.73(@" %+" ?.&" .2E/*?3(-8(-" +$.+" +$("
5*20&" *5" ./A" 70-8(+" ./-" )3.//%/8" )'*)*&.3&" ?*03-" 7(" +*" '(-(5%/(" ./-" '(-02("
.2+%,%+%(&" .8.%/&+" (P%&+%/8" )'%*'%+%(&@" '.+$('" +$./" +$('(" 7(%/8" ./A" 50/-.6(/+.3"
2$./8(&" 7(%/8" -(,(3*)(-9" " O+" $.&" .3'(.-A" 7((/" '(2*8/%&(-" +$.+" 7%8" 5%/./2%.3"
2$.33(/8(&"&+%33" 3%(".$(.-"./-" +$.+" +$("1*0/2%3Q&"2*/+'%70+%*/" +*"(.2$")'%*'%+A"?%33"7("
&%8/%5%2./+3A".55(2+(-" %/" 50+0'("7A" '(-02+%*/&" %/"B*,('/6(/+" 50/-%/89" "F0'+$('6*'(@"
+$(" %6).2+" *5" *+$('" .0+$*'%+%(&4" R1*0/+A@" F%'(" S" I*3%2(T" ./-" *+$('" &+.E($*3-('&4"
70-8(+"-(2%&%*/&".'("(P)(2+(-"+*"$.,("6.U*'"-%'(2+"%6)3%2.+%*/&"5*'"+$("-%&+'%2+@"?%+$"
E/*2E"*/"%6)3%2.+%*/&"5*'"+$("1%+A"1*0/2%3"./-"%+&"*?/"-(3%,('A"*5"&(',%2(&9"
"

;9!9=" #*" $(3)" +.2E3(" +$(&(" 5%/./2%.3" 2$.33(/8(&@" .&" ).'+" *5" %+&" V(-%06" #('6" F%/./2%.3"
D+'.+(8A" RV#FDT" +$(" 1*0/2%3" 2*/+%/0(&" +*" +.E(" &.,%/8&" -(2%&%*/&" %/" A(.'" ?$('("
)*&&%73(@"./-".&"." '(&03+" +$("D+'.+(8A"(P)3%2%+3A" &+.+(&" +$.+"0/-('&)(/-%/8&"&$*03-"
7(" (P)(2+(-" +*" .'%&(" -0'%/8" +$(" 2*0'&(" *5" +$(" A(.'@" %/" '(,%&%/8" +$(" 20''(/+" A(.'4&"
70-8(+" .&" ?(33" .&" .+" *0++0'/9" " #$(" 70-8(+" 0)-.+(" &$*03-" 7(" 2*/&%-('(-" %/" +$%&"
2*/+(P+9"
"
"

;9;" XI!"X-UI\&F%R&%'-6$%"%!&-M&''X&R&%'-
"
;9;9!" #$(" )'*,%&%*/.3" C*2.3" B*,('/6(/+" F%/./2(" D(++3(6(/+" %&" /*+" (P)(2+(-" +*" 7("

.//*0/2(-" 0/+%3" &*6(+%6(" .5+('" +$(" 1$./2(33*'4&" W0+06/" D+.+(6(/+@" ?$%2$" %&"
&2$(-03(-"5*'"<N"X(2(67('9""W"7'%(5%/8"/*+("?%33"7(")'*-02(-"5*'".33"V(67('&"*/2("
+$("D(++3(6(/+"$.&"7((/"'(2(%,(-"./-"%+&"%6).2+".&&(&&(-@"&07U(2+"+*"+%6%/89""O/"./A"
(,(/+@"%+"?%33"7("'()*'+(-"5*'6.33A"%/+*"Y./0.'A4&"1.7%/(+"6((+%/89"

"
;9;9;" #$("2*/+(/+"*5"+$("W0+06/"D+.+(6(/+"%&"(P)(2+(-"+*"%/530(/2("7*+$"+$("%6).2+"./-"

+%6%/8"*5"+$("D(++3(6(/+9""W&"."'(2.)J"
"

!" #$(" V#FD" .))'*,(-" 7.2E" %/" F(7'0.'A" .&&06(-" +$.+" +$(" D(++3(6(/+" F0/-%/8"
W&&(&&6(/+"RDFWT"5'*6"B*,('/6(/+"?*03-"'(-02("7A"Z!9[V"*'"!H9<\"%/";<!]G!H"
%/"2.&$"+('6&@"./-"7A"."50'+$('"Z<9]V"R]\T"+$("A(.'".5+('9"

"
!" #$(" ;<!]G!H" 5%80'(" ?.&" ." &)(2%5%2" (&+%6.+(" .&" )'*,%-(-" 7A" B*,('/6(/+^" " +$("

;<!HG![" 5%80'(" ?.&" ./" _55%2('" %/-%2.+%,(" (&+%6.+(" */3A@" %/" +$(" .7&(/2(" *5" ./A"
5%'6('"%/5*'6.+%*/9"

"
!" W&" ." 7'*.-" 6(.&0'(@" (,('A" !\" 2$./8(" %/" B*,('/6(/+" 50/-%/8" .6*0/+&" +*"

.'*0/-"Z`<a"5*'";<!]G!H@"*'".'*0/-"!9;\"%/"2%+A"2*0/2%3"+.P"+('6&9"
"
;9N" #$(" *0+2*6(" *5" +$(" D(++3(6(/+" 2*03-" $.,(" ." -%'(2+" 7(.'%/8@" +$('(5*'(@" */" +$("

1*0/2%34&" &$*'+" ./-" 6(-%06" +('6" )3.//%/8" ./-" +$(" &2*)(" *'" /.+0'(" *5" %+&" 50+0'("
)'%*'%+%(&9"

"
"
N" U&%&F"X-6;%C-F&\&%;&-#;CU&'S-M;RR"FZ-

-
N9!" !;FF&%'-Z&"F-0IM$'$I%-
"
N9!9!" O/" &0))*'+" *5" +$(" (P%&+%/8" 1*')*'.+(" I3./@" .+" 1*0/2%3" */" ;H" F(7'0.'A" V(67('&"

.))'*,(-"+$("20''(/+"A(.'4&"70-8(+".+"Z!b9]=<V@"(P230-%/8").'%&$")'(2()+&@"8%,%/8"
'%&(" +*" ." 2*0/2%3" +.P" '(c0%'(6(/+" *5" Z[9HV9" " D%/2(" +$(/@" ,.'%*0&" 2$./8(&" $.,("

Page 14



N"

7(2*6(" .)).'(/+" +$'*08$" 6*/%+*'%/8" ./-" 6*'(" &%8/%5%2./+3A@" /06('*0&" &.,%/8&"
6(.&0'(&"$.,("7((/"+.E(/"%/")'().'.+%*/"5*'"50+0'("A(.'&4"2$.33(/8(&9"

"
N9!9;" #*" -'.?" +$(&(" +*8(+$('@" ./" %/d-()+$" 0)-.+(" *5" +$(" 20''(/+" A(.'" 70-8(+" $.&" /*?"

7((/" 2*6)3(+(-@" +$(" '(&03+&"*5"?$%2$".'(" %/230-(-".+"Appendices A and B9" ":(+"
&)(/-%/8" *5" Z![9[H=V" %&" /*?" 5*'(2.&+@" 8%,%/8" ." )'*U(2+(-" /(+" 0/-('&)(/-%/8" *5"
Z[[Ha@" )'%*'" +*" +$(" '(,%(?" *5" )'*,%&%*/&@" '(&(',(&" ./-" e.3./2(&9" " #$(" )*&%+%*/" %&"
(P)3*'(-"50'+$('"%/"&(2+%*/"]"*5"+$%&"'()*'+9"

"
N9!9N" #.E%/8".22*0/+"*5"+$("2$./8(&@"f(,(/0("e.3./2(&"?*03-"&+./-".+"Z=9<N!V".&".+"N!"

V.'2$";<!]9" "#$%&" %&"Z!9<]NV"$%8$('" +$./"(P)(2+(-"7.2E" %/"F(7'0.'A@"70+" +$('(" %&"
&+%33"+%6("5*'"+$("'(,%&(-"70-8(+")*&%+%*/"+*"2$./8("50'+$('"*,('"+$("2*6%/8"?((E&9"

"
"
N9;" 6;';F&-Z&"FMY-6IF&!"M'M-
"
N9;9!" #$(" 5%'&+" -'.5+" *5" /(P+" A(.'4&" 70-8(+" $.&" .3&*" 7((/" )'*-02(-@" %/" .22*'-./2("?%+$"

F%/./2%.3"f(803.+%*/&"./-"+$("V#FD9""10''(/+3A"%+"&+./-&".+"Z![9<HHV"5*'";<!]G!H@"
.&"&$*?/"%/"Appendix A."

"
N9;9;" O/" +$("&.6(",(%/@" 5*'(2.&+&" 5*'";<!HG!["./-";<![G!b"$.,(".3&*"7((/"0)-.+(-9" " O/"

&%6)3("+('6&"+$("*0+3**E"%&".&"5*33*?&J"
"
"

" =>?@A?B-
]Y>>>-

=>?BA?^-
]Y>>>-

=>?_A?_-
]Y>>>-

" - - -
_'%8%/.3"e0-8(+"C%6%+" " !b@b[[" " !`@!]=" " /G."
C(&&"_'%8%/.3"F*'(2.&+"g&("*5"e.3./2(&" " R!@<<<T" d" " " "

%+,-F+`+/(+-#()*+,-a"<<71`+)-6+D-=>?Eb ?^T_^^ ?cT?@E -
" " " "
!(77+/,-%+,-617+4.K,- - ?^T>BB- - ?_Tdcc- - ?_TcB=-
" " " "
F+)(4,31/-3/-G17+4.K,-%+,-M<+/)3/*-- - Jc@cL- - J^@@L- - /A.-

F+)(4,31/-3/-G17+4.K,-;K+-1G-#.2./4+K" " ?E_- " dd" " /A.-
" " " "
"
"
N9;9N" W"/067('"*5"E(A")*%/+&".'("$%8$3%8$+(-J"
"

–" e.&(" 70-8(+" 2$./8(&" %/" '(&)(2+" *5" ).A@" )'%2(" ./-" *+$('" (2*/*6%2" 2*/-%+%*/&"
$.,(" 7((/" )'*,%-(-" 5*'9" " I.A" %/53.+%*/" %&" 7.&(-" */" +$(" '(2(/+" /.+%*/.3" ).A"
)'*)*&.3&"./-"(&+%6.+(-".+"!\")('"A(.'"+$('(.5+('9""B(/('.3"%/53.+%*/"%&")'*,%-(-"
5*'" .+" !9H\" )('" A(.'@" 70+" +$%&" ?.&" -(+('6%/(-" 7(5*'(" +$(" e./E" *5" K/83./-4&"
:*,(67('" O/53.+%*/" '()*'+"?.&" '(2(%,(-@"./-" +$('(5*'("8(/('.3" %/53.+%*/" 5.2+*'&"
.'("3%E(3A"+*"2$./8(".8.%/"5*'"'()*'+%/8"./-"5%P%/8"%/"Y./0.'A9""#$("0)-.+("*/"+$("
1*0/2%34&" 5((&" ./-" 2$.'8(&" )*3%2A" $.&" 7((/" -(5(''(-@" +*" .33*?" 5*'"
'(2*/&%-('.+%*/"*5"%/53.+%*/"(P)(2+.+%*/&9"

"
–" M$%3&+"*)('.+%*/.3"&.,%/8&"$.,("7((/"70%3+"%/@"+$("-'.5+")*&%+%*/"-*(&"/*+"%/230-("

./A" &)(2%5%2" &.,%/8&")'*)*&.3&" +$.+"1.7%/(+"6.A"?%&$" +*" 2*/&%-('@"/*'"-*(&" %+"

Page 15



="

.33*?" 5*'" ./A" /(?" 8'*?+$" *)+%*/&" R*'" +$(" 2*/+%/0.+%*/" *5" )'(,%*0&" 5%P(-" +('6"
*/(&T9"

"
–" :(?"L*6(&"e*/0&"%/2*6("(&+%6.+(&"$.,("7((/"0)-.+(-@"'(.2$%/8"."6.P%606"

*5"Z!9[V"%/";<![G!b9""F*'"(3%8%73(")'*)('+%(&@"+$("7*/0&"%&").%-"5*'"&%P"A(.'&"./-"
.&"+$("&2$(6("&+.'+(-"%/";<!!G!;@"5'*6";<![G!b"+$("(.'3A"A(.'&4".33*2.+%*/&".'("
&+.'+%/8"+*"-'*)"*0+9""W+")'(&(/+@"+$%&"%&"/*+"%6).2+%/8".-,('&(3A"*/"+$("1*0/2%34&"
6(-%06"+('6")3.//%/8"70+"%+"%&"&*6(+$%/8"+*"E(()"0/-('"'(,%(?9""O+"%&"/*+"E/*?/"
?$(+$('@"*'"+*"?$.+"(P+(/+@"+$(":Le"&2$(6("?%33"'(6.%/".&".")('6./(/+"5(.+0'("
*'"$*?"%+&"50+0'("6%8$+"%6).2+"*/"*+$('"50+0'("B*,('/6(/+"50/-%/8"&+'(.6&9"

"
–" 1.)%+.3" 5%/./2%/8" 2*&+&" $.,(" 7((/" 0)-.+(-" +*" '(53(2+" +$(" 3.+(&+" -'.5+" 2.)%+.3"

)'*8'.66(@"&(+"*0+"3.+('"%/"+$%&"'()*'+9"
"

–" W+"+$%&"&+.8("+$("70-8(+"%&"7.&(-"*/")'(,%*0&3A".))'*,(-"0&("*5"e.3./2(&@"%9(9"."
*/(d*55"Z!V"2*/+'%70+%*/"7(%/8"0&(-"%/";<!]G!H"70+".-U0&+(-"-*?/"7A"Z!=ba"+*"
7.3./2("*55"+$("70-8(+@"8%,(/"+$("/(+"&.,%/8&"+$.+"$.,("7((/"%-(/+%5%(-"+*"-.+(9"""

"
"
N9;9=" _/"."6*'("&)(2%5%2"6.++('@" +$("1*0/2%3"$.&".))'*P%6.+(3A"Z;;a"*5"8'./+"'(6.%/%/8"

%/"'(3.+%*/"+*"6*'+8.8("'(&20(@"*'")'(,(/+%/8"$*6(*?/('&"5'*6"3*&%/8"+$(%'"$*6(&9""
M$%3&+" +$%&"&)(2%5%2" &2$(6("$.&"/*?" 5%/%&$(-@" +$("70-8(+")'*,%-(&" 5*'" +$(&(" 50/-&"
7(%/8"0&(-"+*"(P+(/-"+$("5%P(-"+('6"&+.55%/8"'(&*0'2("5*'"$*6(3(&&/(&&")'(,(/+%*/"
0/+%3" +$(" (/-" *5" ;<!]G!H^" " +$%&" %&" */" +$(" 7.&%&" +$.+" +$(" )*&+&" %/,*3,(-"?*03-" -(.3"
&)(2%5%2.33A" ?%+$" ./A" $*6(*?/('&" 5.2%/8" '()*&&(&&%*/@" .&" ?(33" .&" *+$('"
$*6(3(&&/(&&" )'(,(/+%*/" ?*'E9" " #$(" 70&%/(&&" 2.&(" ./-" 6(./&" 7A" ?$%2$" +$%&"
$*6(3(&&/(&&" )'(,(/+%*/" 2.).2%+A" 2*03-" 7(" 6.-(" )('6./(/+" .'(" .3&*" 7(%/8"
(P)3*'(-9"

"
N9;9]" g/-*07+(-3A"+$("70-8(+")*&%+%*/"?%33"2$./8("50'+$('"%/"+$("2*6%/8"?((E&"./-"6*'("

%/5*'6.+%*/"?%33"7("5(-"%/+*"+$("Y./0.'A"1.7%/(+"6((+%/89-
"
"
=" 0FI\$M$I%MT-F&M&F\&M-"%C-#"X"%!&M-JU&%&F"X-6;%CL-
"
=9!" _+$('" +$./" '(,%(?%/8" +$(" f(+.%/(-" e0&%/(&&" f.+(&" f(&(',(" ./-" .33*?%/8" 5*'" +$("

/*'6.3"%/dA(.'".))3%2.+%*/"*5"50/-&@"+$('("$.&"7((/"/*"?%-('"'(,%(?"*5"'(&(',(&"./-"
)'*,%&%*/&".&"A(+9"
"

=9;" O/"+('6&"*5"e.3./2(&@".&"%/-%2.+(-".7*,("/(P+"A(.'4&"70-8(+"&+%33".33*?&"5*'"+$("0&("*5"
Zb];a9""#$%&"0&("%&"'(.&*/.73("./-"6./.8(.73("%/"+$("2%'206&+./2(&@"70+"%+"&$*03-"
/*+"7("*,('3**E(-9" " "M%+$*0+" %+@" +$("1*0/2%3"?*03-"$.,("+*" %-(/+%5A"6*'("&.,%/8&"+*"
2*,('"+$("50/-%/8"8.)9"
"

=9N" O+" %&" .3&*" ?*'+$" $%8$3%8$+%/8" +**" +$.+" &02$" '(3%./2(" */" +$(" 0&(" *5" e.3./2(&" %&" ."
2*6).'.+%,(3A"'(2(/+".--%+%*/" +*" +$("1*0/2%34&" 5%/./2%.3")3.//%/8".''./8(6(/+&@" +$("
.))'*,(-")'%/2%)3(&"7(%/8"+*J"

"
!" 0&("&*6("&0')30&"e.3./2(&"+*"$(3)")'*+(2+"E(A"&(',%2(&"+*"+$(")073%2"5*'"."

)('%*-^"
!" 3(.,("'(6.%/%/8"e.3./2(&"+*"$(3)".--'(&&"+$("50/-.6(/+.3"70-8(+"2$.33(/8(&"

+$.+".'("(P)(2+(-"7(A*/-";<!]G!H^""./-"
!" '(-02("+$("70-8(+(-"2.33"*/"e.3./2(&"%5"+$("1*0/2%3"6.E(&"(P+'."&.,%/8&9"

Page 16



]"

"
=9=" #.E%/8".22*0/+"*5"+$("20''(/+"A(.'4&"5*'(2.&+"0/-('&)(/-%/8"./-"/(P+"A(.'4&"0&.8(@"

+$%&" ?*03-" 3(.,(" Z;9![`V" *5" e.3./2(&" .,.%3.73(@" %5" .-,%2(" */" 6%/%606" 3(,(3&"
'(6.%/&"0/2$./8(-9""#$(&("6.++('&"?%33"7("(P)3*'(-"50'+$('"%/"+$("2*6%/8"?((E&9"

"
"
]" XI!"X-'"V"'$I%-
"
]9!" !1(/432-'.P-F.,+K-./)-'.7*+,K-
"
]9!9!" W3*/8&%-(" +$(" D(++3(6(/+" .//*0/2(6(/+@" B*,('/6(/+" %&" (P)(2+(-" +*" 2*/5%'6" %+&"

)'*)*&.3&" '(8.'-%/8" 50+0'(" 2*0/2%3" +.P" 5'((h(" 2*6)(/&.+%*/" &2$(6(&" ./-" 2*0/2%3"
+.P"'(5('(/-06"+$'(&$*3-&9"

"
]9!9;" X'.?%/8"*/" 3.&+" A(.'4&" (P)('%(/2(@" ." 3*2.3" '(5('(/-06" +$'(&$*3-"*5" U0&+"7(3*?";\"

R!9``\T"%&"&+%33".&&06(-@"%/"3%/("?%+$"(P%&+%/8"V#FD"+.'8(+&9""W"!\"2$./8("%/"2*0/2%3"
+.P"/*?".6*0/+&"+*".'*0/-"Z[[a9"
"

]9!9N" f(8.'-%/8" +$(" +.P" 5'((h(" 2*6)(/&.+%*/" &2$(6(@" 7.2E" %/" F(7'0.'A" B*,('/6(/+"
.//*0/2(-" +$.+" 2*6)(/&.+%*/" 7'*.-3A" (c0%,.3(/+" +*" !\" ?*03-" 7(" .,.%3.73(" 5*'"
;<!]G!H9" " D02$" 2*6)(/&.+%*/" (/+%+3(6(/+" %&" +*" 7(" 70%3+" %/+*" +$(" &)(/-%/8" '(,%(?"
7.&(3%/(@" +$(" %/5('(/2(" 7(%/8" +$.+" .0+$*'%+%(&" ?$*" 5'((h(" 2*0/2%3" +.P" ?%33" /*+" &(("
&02$"50/-%/8"-'*))%/8"*0+".0+*6.+%2.33A"%/"50+0'(9"":*/(+$(3(&&@"+$('("?*03-"&+%33"7("
."/(+"%/2*6("8.%/"*5".))'*.2$%/8"!\"'(.-%3A".,.%3.73("+*"+$*&("2*0/2%3&"+$.+"2$**&("
+*"%/2'(.&("+.P"'.+(&@"0/3(&&"+$("'(5('(/-06"+$'(&$*3-"50'+$('"'(-02(&9"
"

]9!9=" _/2(" B*,('/6(/+" $.&" 6.-(" +$(" '(3(,./+" .//*0/2(6(/+&@" +$(" ,.'%*0&" &2(/.'%*&"
?%33"7(")'(&(/+(-"+*"1.7%/(+"%/"*'-('"+$.+"%/5*'6(-"'(2*66(/-.+%*/&"2./"7("6.-("
'(8.'-%/8" 50+0'(" 2*0/2%3" +.P" '.+(&" ./-" +.'8(+&9" " #$%&" %&" &2$(-03(-" 5*'" Y./0.'A"
1.7%/(+9"

"
]9;" X14.23K+)-!1(/432-'.P-M(<<17,-JX!'ML-
"
]9;9!" F*33*?%/8"*/"5'*6"1*0/2%34&"-(2%&%*/"+*"'(+.%/"(P%&+%/8"&0))*'+" 3(,(3&@"+$("(P)(2+(-"

5%/./2%.3" %6).2+"5'*6"+$("&2$(6("$.&"2*/+%/0(-"+*"7("6*/%+*'(-9""C.+(&+"(&+%6.+(&"
.'(" +$.+" +$("2*&+"*5" +$("&2$(6("2*/+%/0(&" +*" 5.33" &3%8$+3A^" " %/" +$%&"A(.'"(55(2+%,(3A"."
)'*U(2+(-"2*&+"*5"Z`9bV"$.&"7((/".33*?(-"5*'9""O/"50+0'("A(.'&@"+$("%6).2+"%&"&%6)3A"
(P)(2+(-"+*"'%&("%/"3%/("?%+$"2*0/2%3"+.P"'.+(&@"%9(9"."3%++3("0/-('";\9""#$("*0+2*6("*5"
+$("&2$(-03(-"/.+%*/.3"'(,%(?"&$*03-"$(3)"+*"%/5*'6"50+0'(")*3%2A"*/"+$%&"6.++('9"
"

]9N" !1(/432-'.P-!122+4,31/-
"
]9N9!" 1*0/2%3" +.P" %/2*6(" R%9(9" +$(".6*0/+"2*33(2+.73(T" 2*/+%/0(&" +*" '%&(" %/" A(.'"7A"6*'("

+$./"(&+%6.+(-9""#$("%/2'(.&("%&"+$("/(+"'(&03+"*5".33"+$(",.'%*0&"2$./8(&"+$.+"*220'"
%/"+$("+.P"7.&("-0'%/8"+$("A(.'@"7("+$(A"%/"'(3.+%*/"+*"/(?"$*6(&"7(%/8"70%3+@"(6)+A"
)'*)('+%(&"2*6%/8"7.2E"%/+*"0&(@"2$./8(&"%/"C1#D".?.'-(-"5'*6"+$.+"70-8(+(-@"./-"
+$("6A'%.-"*5"*+$('"7./-%/8@"-%&2*0/+"./-"(P(6)+%*/"2$./8(&"+$.+"*220'"*/"."-.%3A"
7.&%&9""F0'+$('6*'(@".2+0.3"2*33(2+%*/"%&"$*3-%/8"0)"'(.&*/.73A"?(339"
"

]9N9;" #$(&(")*%/+&"'(&03+"%/"+$("20''(/+"(&+%6.+(-"&0')30&"*5".'*0/-"Z!V"*/"+$("1*33(2+%*/"
F0/-@"+*"7("&$.'(-"?%+$"*+$('"6.U*'")'(2()+%/8".0+$*'%+%(&9""Z!N<a"?*03-"7("-0("+*"
+$("1%+A"1*0/2%3" ./-" +$%&" %&" '(53(2+(-" %/" +$(";<!]G!H"-'.5+"70-8(+9" "F%80'(&"?%33" 7("
5%/.3%&(-"%/"Y./0.'A@"%/"3%/("?%+$"&+.+0+*'A"'(c0%'(6(/+&9"

"

Page 17



H"

]9N9N" C**E%/8".$(.-" 5*'"/(P+" A(.'"*/?.'-&@" +$("2*0/2%3" +.P"7.&(")'*U(2+%*/&"$.,("7((/"
)'*,%&%*/.33A"0)-.+(-".&"5*33*?&J"
"
!" %/";<!]G!H@"+$("7.&("$.&"%/2'(.&(-"5'*6"Nb@;<<"+*"Nb@]<<@"(c0.+%/8"+*"ZH!@<<<"

.--%+%*/.3"%/2*6(^"
"

!" %/";<!HG![@"+$("7.&("$.&"%/2'(.&(-"5'*6"Nb@=]<"+*"N`@!<<@"(c0.+%/8"+*"Z!N]@<<<"
.--%+%*/.3"%/2*6(^"

"
!" +$%&"+'(/-"$.&"7((/"5.2+*'(-"%/+*";<![G!b".3&*9"

"
]9N9=" O+" %&" %6)*&&%73(" +*" 5*'(2.&+" +$(" +.P" 7.&(" ?%+$" .7&*30+(" 2('+.%/+A" ./-" &*" '%&E&" ?%33"

.3?.A&" (P%&+9" " :*/(+$(3(&&@" +$(" (P)*&0'(" %&" 2*/&%-('(-" 6./.8(.73(" ./-" %/" ./A"
(,(/+@".33"%/-%2.+%*/&".'("+$.+"$*0&%/8"/((-&"?%33"2*/+%/0("+*"8'*?9"
"

]9N9]" _/" +$(" -*?/&%-(@" ." 7%88('" )*)03.+%*/" %/2'(.&(&" +$(" -(6./-" 5*'" 2*0/2%3" &(',%2(&9""
W&"5.'".&")*&&%73("+$(&("$.,("7((/"2*/&%-('(-"%/"-'.5+%/8"+$("70-8(+"70+"+$%&"%&"/*+"
./"(P.2+"&2%(/2("./-"%+"?%33"/((-"+*"7("E()+"0/-('"'(,%(?9"

"
]9=" #(K3/+KK-F.,+K-$/418+-
"
]9=9!" B(++%/8" 7($%/-" +$(" e0&%/(&&" f.+(" f(+(/+%*/" D2$(6(" 2*/+%/0(&" +*" 7(" ." 6.U*'"

2$.33(/8(" 5*'" %/5*'6%/8" B(/('.3" F0/-" 70-8(+" &(++%/8" ./-" 5%/./2%.3" &+'.+(8A9" " #$("
1*0/2%34&"$08(3A"-%&)'*)*'+%*/.+("(P)*&0'(" +*" '.+%/8".))(.3&" 3**E&"&(+" +*"2*/+%/0("
%/+*";<!["./-")'*7.73A"7(A*/-9" "W3+$*08$"*)+%*/&" 5*'"6*'(" 50/-.6(/+.3" '(5*'6"*5"
+$("&A&+(6"6.A"7("2*/&%-('(-".+"&*6(")*%/+@"'(.3%&+%2.33A" +$("*0+2*6("?*03-"7("."
6.++('"5*'"+$("3*/8('"+('69"
"

]9=9;" #$("2*6)3(+%*/"*5" 3.&+" A(.'4&".22*0/+&"/*?"8%,(&" 2('+.%/+A" %/" +('6&"*5" +$.+" A(.'4&"
)*&%+%*/@"$*?(,('9""#$%&"./-"*+$('"%/5*'6.+%*/"$.&"7((/"0&(-"+*"0)-.+("50+0'("A(.'&4"
.&&06)+%*/&"./-"70-8(+")'*U(2+%*/&9""#$("5*33*?%/8")*%/+&"&$*03-"7("/*+(-J"
"
"" _5" +$(" Z!9[V"e0&%/(&&"f.+(&"f(&(',(" *)(/%/8" 7.3./2(" 5*'" +$%&" A(.'@" .'*0/-"

Z=<<a" &$*03-" 7(" .,.%3.73(" +*" 0/-(')%/" +$("1*0/2%34&" 70-8(+" )'*U(2+%*/&9" " #$("
'(6.%/%/8" Z!9NV" %&" (P)(2+(-" +*" 7(" 0&(-" +*" *55&(+" +$(" 1*0/2%34&" &$.'(" *5" +$("
1*33(2+%*/"F0/-"Re0&%/(&&"f.+(&T"-(5%2%+"(P%&+%/8".&".+"+$("&.6("-.+(9""
"

"" O/" +('6&" *5" +$(" )*+(/+%.3" Z;V" 8'*?+$" R*,('" ./-" .7*,(" +$(" 1*0/2%34&" 7.&(3%/("
50/-%/8" 3(,(3T" %-(/+%5%(-" .&" ).'+" *5" >0.'+('" ;" 6*/%+*'%/8@" +$%&" 3**E&" 3%E(3A" +*"
'(-02(" +*".'*0/-"Z!9=V"+.E%/8".22*0/+"*5"6*'(" '(2(/+" %/5*'6.+%*/9" " O+" %&"23(.'"
+$*08$"+$.+"20''(/+"A(.'4&"8'*?+$"2*03-"2*/+%/0("+*"5302+0.+("./-"%/"./A"(,(/+"%+"
?%33" /*+" 7(" 5%/.3%&(-"0/+%3"D()+(67('" ;<!]@"?$(/" +$(" 5%/.3"B*,('/6(/+" '(+0'/&"
.'("2*6)3(+(-9"

"
"" O/" (55(2+@" +$('(" %&" ." +?*dA(.'" -(3.A" 7(+?((/" +$(" A(.'" %/" ?$%2$" 8'*?+$" %&"

%-(/+%5%(-@"./-" %+"7(%/8"2('+.%/"(/*08$" 5*'" %+".33" +*"7("70%3+" %/+*" +$("/(P+"70-8(+"
'*0/-"R(989"./A";<!=G!]".2+0.3"8'*?+$"%/"%/2*6("?%33"7(".,.%3.73("+*"$(3)"&0))*'+"
+$(";<!HG!["70-8(+T9"

"
"" W&&06%/8"+$.+"+$("1*0/2%3"2*/+%/0(&"+*"(P)('%(/2("."+'(/-"*5"%/2'(.&%/8"8'*?+$"

%/"70&%/(&&"'.+(&@"$*?(,('@"./-".&"3*/8".&"'(&(',(&"2./"&0))*'+"+$(")*&%+%*/@"%+"
%&" '(.&*/.73(" +*" &+.'+" 70-8(+%/8" 5*'" e0&%/(&&" f.+(&" %/2*6(" .+" +$(" 7.&(3%/(@"
'.+$('"+$./".+"+$("&.5(+A"/(+9""#$%&"$(3)&"+$("1*0/2%34&"70-8(+"7A".36*&+"Z=<<a"
)('"A(.'@"./-"%+"%&"/*?"5.2+*'(-"%/"5'*6"+$("20''(/+"A(.'"*/?.'-&9"

Page 18



["

"
"" f%&E&".'*0/-" +$%&"/(?".))'*.2$"?%33"7("6./.8(-" +$'*08$" +$("e0&%/(&&"f.+(&"

f(&(',(9" " #$(" '(6.%/%/8" Z=<<a" *)(/%/8" 7.3./2(@" ./-" .36*&+" Z=<<a" *5"
.--%+%*/.3"%/2*6("/*?"'(2*8/%&(-"%/"+$("20''(/+"A(.'@"$.,("7((/"'(+.%/(-"%/"+$("
f(&(',("5*'"+$%&")0')*&(9"

"
]9=9N" W33" +$(".7*,(")*%/+&"?%33"7(" +(&+(-" 50'+$('"./-" +$('(" %&"."6.U*'"2.,(.+".++.2$(-@" %/"

+$.+" +$(" 5*'+$2*6%/8" D(++3(6(/+" ./-" .&&*2%.+(-" B*,('/6(/+" '(+0'/&" -0(" +*" 7("
'(2(%,(-" ./-" 2*6)3(+(-" %/" Y./0.'A" 2*03-" 50/-.6(/+.33A" 2$./8(" 20''(/+"
.&&06)+%*/&9""O+"'(6.%/&".",('A"2*6)3(P"./-"0/2('+.%/"&%+0.+%*/9"""

"
"
H" \"F$"%!&-"%"XZM$MS-[WZ-W"\&-#;CU&'-0FIe&!'$I%M-!W"%U&Cf-
-
H9!" #*" -'.?" %/5*'6(-" 2*/230&%*/&" .7*0+" +$(" '*70&+/(&&" *'" *+$('?%&(" *5" +$("1*0/2%34&"

70-8(+%/8@" %+" %&"/(2(&&.'A"+*"0/-('&+./-"6*'("*/"+$("/.+0'("./-"'(.&*/%/8"7($%/-"
+$(",.'%./2(&@"./-"+*"0/-('&+./-"+$("2*6).'.+*'&9"

"
H9;" W+" +$(" $%8$(&+" 3(,(3@" 6*,(6(/+&" .8.%/&+" +$(" )'(,%*0&3A" %-(/+%5%(-" 70-8(+" 50/-%/8"

8.)&"R*'"&.,%/8&"'(c0%'(6(/+&T"2./"7("./.3A&(-"&%6)3A".&"5*33*?&J"
"
"
" =>?@A?B-

]Y>>>-
=>?BA?^-
]Y>>>-

" - -
f(-02+%*/"%/":(+"D)(/-%/8"R.33*?%/8"5*'"e.3./2(&T" " R`]`T" " R[]]T"
K&+%6.+(-"1*33(2+%*/"F0/-"R1*0/2%3"#.PT"D0')30&"
F*'(2.&+"%/2'(.&("%/"1*0/2%3"#.P"e.&("R%/"Z"+('6&T"
"

" R!N!T
- RH!T-

" " d"
" R!N]T"

-
'1,.2-M.`3/*K-$)+/,3G3+)-,1-).,+-

" "
" R!@!]!T"

" "
" Rb`<T"

"
"

" "

_'%8%/.3"F0/-%/8"BWI"G"K&+%6.+(-"D.,%/8&"f(c0%'(6(/+"
(MTFS, February 2014) 

" !@<<N" " ;@];["

" " "
X%55('(/2(J""(%+$('" " " "

F+)(4,31/-3/-4.22-1/-#.2./4+K""""*'" " ?E_- " "

;<).,+)-M.`3/*K-F+g(37+8+/,-A-6(/)3/*-U.<- " " ?TBd^-
" " "
"
"
H9N" O+"2./"7("&((/" +$.+"2$./8(&" %/"2*0/2%3" +.P" %/2*6("$.,("./"(55(2+@"./-" +$(&("$.,("

.3'(.-A"7((/"(P)3.%/(-"%/"&(2+%*/"]9N9"
"

H9=" O/" +('6&"*5" /(+" &)(/-%/8@" ." 5033('" ./.3A&%&" %&" .++.2$(-".+"Appendix B9" " #$("6.%/"
'(.&*/&"5*'",.'%./2(".'("2*/&%-('(-"+*"7(J"

"
!" .2+%,("6./.8(6(/+"./-"-(,(3*)6(/+"*5"+$("70-8(+@"%/"&0))*'+"*5"+$("1*0/2%34&"

5%/./2%.3"&+'.+(8A^"
!" 2$./8(&"%/"-(6./-"5*'"&(',%2(&@"./-")'%2("5.2+*'&^"./-"
!" 2$./8(&"%/"+$("(&+%6.+(-"+%6%/8&"*5",.'%*0&"%/%+%.+%,(&"./-"&)(/-").++('/&9"

Page 19



b"

"
"
H9]" O+" %&")3(.&%/8" +*"/*+(" +$.+"0/-('&)(/-%/8&"2*/+%/0("+*".'%&(" 5'*6")'*.2+%,("&.,%/8&"

6(.&0'(&@".&"?(33".&"*+$('"70-8(+.'A"2$./8(&9""V.E%/8"&.,%/8&"-0'%/8"+$("A(.'"%&"
./"%6)*'+./+"./-".22()+(-"(3(6(/+"*5"+$("1*0/2%34&".))'*,(-"5%/./2%.3"&+'.+(8A9"

"
H9H" W&" %/")'(,%*0&"A(.'&@" +$(" &.3.'%(&"70-8(+"$.&".8.%/"-(3%,('(-" +$(" 3.'8(&+" &.,%/8&9""

#$%&" %&" %/(,%+.73(" 8%,(/" +$(" &%h(" *5" +$(" 70-8(+" RZ;<VT" ./-" +$(" (P+(/+" *5" 2$./8("
*/8*%/89" " W&" ./" (P.6)3(" ./-" */" +*)" *5" )3.//(-" '(&+'02+0'%/8&@" '.+$('" +$./" 5%33" .33"
,.2./2%(&" %66(-%.+(3A" ?$(/" +0'/*,('" .'%&(&@" +A)%2.33A" &(',%2(&" .'(" 2*/&%-('%/8"
?$(+$('"./-"$*?"+*".--'(&&"+$("'(-02+%*/"%/"&+.55%/8"'(&*0'2(@"./-"+$%&"*5+(/".--&"
+*"+0'/*,('"&.,%/8&9"

"
H9[" W/*+$('"./83(" +*"2*/&%-('" %&" +$("&2.3("*5"./A"0/-('d"*'"*,('&)(/-%/89" "M$%3&+" %+" %&"

+A)%2.33A"(P)'(&&(-".&".")('2(/+.8("*5"+$("/(+"'(,(/0("70-8(+@"+$%&"-*(&"/*+"8%,("."
5033")%2+0'("i"/*+"3(.&+"7(2.0&("+$("1*0/2%34&"8'*&&"70-8(+"R./-"+$('(5*'("+$("&2*)("
5*'",.'%./2(&".'%&%/8T"%&"602$"$%8$('@".+".'*0/-"Z!<<V")('"A(.'9"

"
H9b" M$(/" 2*6).'(-" .8.%/&+" +$(" 8'*&&" 70-8(+" )*&%+%*/@" 0/-('&)(/-%/8&" .))(.'"602$"

3*?('" %/" )('2(/+.8(" +('6&" i" .+" 3(&&" +$./" !\9" " O/" 3%8$+" *5" +$(" 1*0/2%34&" 5%/./2%.3"
&+'.+(8A"./-"70-8(+%/8".))'*.2$@"+$%&"%&"2*/&%-('(-"8**-")('5*'6./2(9"
"

H9`" :*/(+$(3(&&@"%+"%&" %6)*'+./+"+$.+"+$("1*0/2%3"2$.33(/8(&"%+&"70-8(+"&(++%/8".))'*.2$"
+*" (/&0'(" +$.+" %+" '(6.%/&" 5%+" 5*'" )0')*&(@" ./-" +*" %-(/+%5A" ./A" 50'+$('" &2*)(" 5*'"
%6)'*,(6(/+9""F*'"%/&+./2(J"

"
"" X*(&"+$("1*0/2%34&".))'*.2$"+*"70-8(+%/8"2.0&("./A"0/-0(".-,('&("%6).2+"*/"

&(',%2("-(3%,('A@"+*"?.''./+"./A"6.U*'"2$./8(&"%/"+$(".))'*.2$j"
"
"" W'(" +$('(" ./A" &%8/%5%2./+" ,.'%./2(&" +$.+" 2*03-" $.,(" R./-" &$*03-" $.,(T" 7((/"

5*'(&((/"./-".33*?(-"5*'"%/"&(++%/8"+$("70-8(+j"
"
H9!<" 1$%(5"_55%2('&" .'(" 2*/&%-('%/8" &02$" c0(&+%*/&@" .&" &(',%2(&" -(,(3*)" +$(%'" 70&%/(&&"

)3./&9" " _+$('" +$./" 0/-('+.E%/8" ." 50'+$('" '(,%(?" *5" ,.2./+" )*&+&" ./-" +0'/*,('"
)'*,%&%*/&@"/*"6.U*'"%6)'*,(6(/+&"*'"2$./8(&")0+"5*'?.'-"7A"_55%2('&".+"+$%&"+%6(9""
W3&*@" 6*'(" 6%/*'" %6)'*,(6(/+&" .'(" .2$%(,(-" +$'*08$" +$(" 0&0.3" 70-8(+" '(,%(?"
)'*2(&&(&9""1.7%/(+"%&"'(c0(&+(-"+*"2*/&%-('"%+&",%(?&"*/"+$%&9"

"
"
[" #"X"%!$%U-'W&-#;CU&'-"%C-XI%U&F-'&FR-&V0&!'"'$I%M-
"
[9!" B%,(/" +$.+" +$(" D(++3(6(/+" .//*0/2(6(/+" %&" %66%/(/+@" .+" +$%&" &+.8(" +$('(" %&" 3%++3("

)*%/+" %/"6*-(33%/8"./A".3+('/.+%,("&2(/.'%*&" 5*'"/(P+"A(.'"*'" +$('(.5+('9" " "F'*6"+$%&"
70-8(+"0)-.+(@" %+" %&" 23(.'" +$.+" .++(/+%*/"60&+" 5*20&")'(-*6%/./+3A"*/";<!HG!["./-"
7(A*/-" 70+" %+" %&" 0/E/*?/" +*" ?$.+" (P+(/+" +$%&" )('%*-" ?%33" 7(" 2*,('(-" 7A" +$("
B*,('/6(/+4&"5*'+$2*6%/8".//*0/2(6(/+&@"%5".+".339"

"
[9;" #$('(" %&" ./*+$('" &%8/%5%2./+" 2.0+%*/.'A" /*+(" .3&*9" " #$(" '(2(/+3A" .//*0/2(-" )073%2"

2*/&03+.+%*/"*/"+$("1*0/+A"1*0/2%34&"70-8(+")'*)*&.3&"$(3)&"+*"$%8$3%8$+"+$("%&&0(@"
./-")('$.)&"%+"$(3)&"6.E("+$("(P)(2+.+%*/"*5"50+0'("70-8(+"&(++%/8"-%55%203+%(&"6*'("
'(.39" " Y0&+" -'.?%/8" */" */(" &02$" 70-8(+" )'*)*&.3@" +$(" (/-" *5" +$(" 2*&+d&$.'%/8"
.8'((6(/+"%/"2*//(2+%*/"?%+$"?.&+("6./.8(6(/+"?%33".--".'*0/-"Z!9!V"+*"+$("1%+A"
1*0/2%34&"*?/"50/-%/8"8.)" %/";<!bG!`@"?$%2$" %&"20''(/+3A" U0&+"7(A*/-"+$("1*0/2%34&"
20''(/+" '(,(/0(" )3.//%/8" $*'%h*/9" "W3+$*08$" '(.33A" 8**-" )'*8'(&&" 2*/+%/0(&" +*" 7("
6.-("%/"7.3./2%/8"+$("70-8(+"5*'"+$("&$*'+"+('6@"50/-.6(/+.33A"+$("(P)(2+(-"%6).2+"

Page 20



`"

*5"6(-%06"+*"3*/8('"+('6".0&+('%+A"6(.&0'(&"$.&"/*+"8*/(".?.A9""M*'E"2*/+%/0(&"
+$('(5*'(" */" -(,(3*)%/8" ./" *'8./%&.+%*/.3" -(,(3*)6(/+" G" 2$./8(" )'*8'.66(@" 5*'"
2*/&%-('.+%*/"7A"V(67('&"%/"-0("2*0'&(9"

"
"

b" U&%&F"X-6;%C-!"0$'"X-0FIUF"RR&-
"
b9!" W3*/8&%-("0)-.+%/8"'(,(/0("(P)(2+.+%*/&@"+$("2.)%+.3")'*8'.66("$.&"7((/"0)-.+(-"

5*'" E/*?/" 2$./8(&" +*" -.+(" .&" ?(33" .&" 7(%/8" '*33(-" 5*'?.'-" ." A(.'" %/+*" ;<!`G;<9""
B'*&&"2.)%+.3"%/,(&+6(/+"*5"ZNH9bV"%&"20''(/+3A"5*'(2.&+"*,('"+$(")('%*-@"'(&03+%/8"%/"
./"%/2'(.&("%/"+$("1.)%+.3"F%/./2%/8"f(c0%'(6(/+"R*'"0/-('3A%/8"/((-"+*"7*''*?T"*5"
Z!=9]V9""#$%&"%&"/*?"Z;9=V"$%8$('@")'(-*6%/./+3A".&"."'(&03+"*5".&&(+"'(/(?.3&9"

"
b9;" O/" 3%/(" ?%+$" +$(" )'.2+%2(" .-*)+(-" ." A(.'" .8*@" ,($%23(@" )3./+" ./-" (c0%)6(/+"

.2c0%&%+%*/&".'("/*?".&&06(-" +*"7(" 5%/./2(-".&"*0+'%8$+")0'2$.&(@" '.+$('" +$./"7A"
*)('.+%/8" 3(.&(@" $(/2(" +$%&" '()'(&(/+&" +$(" 703E" *5" (&&(/+%.3" %/,(&+6(/+9" " O+" %&" &+%33"
(P)(2+(-" +$.+" 5'*6" ;<![" *'" &*@" .33" 3(.&(" .''./8(6(/+&"?%33" /((-" +*" 7(" +'(.+(-" .&"
2.)%+.3"*'" k*/"7.3./2("&$((+l9" ":*/(+$(3(&&@" %/" +$("6(./+%6("*)+%*/&".))'.%&.3"?%33"
2*/+%/0(".&".))'*)'%.+("0/-('"-(3(8.+(-".0+$*'%+A@"?%+$"'(,(/0("./-"2.)%+.3"70-8(+&"
7(%/8"0)-.+(-".22*'-%/83A"5*33*?%/8"-(2%&%*/9"
"

b9N" Z!]`a" %&" /*?" %/230-(-" +*" 6((+" *3-" 2*/+'.2+0.3" 3%.7%3%+%(&" %/" '(&)(2+" *5" M(&+" K/-"
)'*)('+%(&@"+*"7("5%/./2(-"5'*6"+$("1.)%+.3"D0))*'+"f(&(',("%/"3%/("?%+$"%+&"-(3(8.+(-"
0&(9"#$%&"%&"3%&+(-"%/"+$(")'*8'.66(".&"W-.2+0&"#*)"g)"B'./+&9"
"

b9=" W"5033"2.)%+.3")'*8'.66("&066.'A"%&"%/230-(-".+"Appendix C@"./-"+$("6*,(6(/+&"
+*"-.+(".'("&066.'%&(-"7(3*?9"
"

"
- U71KK-

071*7.88+-
-

!H./*+-3/-
;/)+7253/*-
#177193/*-
%++)S-!6F-

"

- ]>>>- ]>>>

I73*3/.2- "<<71`+)- @- Z+.7- 071*7.88+- J,1- =>?^A?_T-
+P42()3/*-2.K,-5+.7L-

=?T@B_- h?=T?>B

" " "

N+5-!H./*+KS- -
-

M.,("f(53(2+%*/"M.33"(Cabinet April 2014, minute 103)"
W))'*,(-"D3%)).8("(Cabinet July 2014, minute 28)"
>0.'+('";"V*/%+*'%/8J"_55%2('"X(3(8.+(-"1$./8(&"
W55*'-.73("L*0&%/8"f(3.+(-"D2$(6(&"(S106 and officer delegation) 
m($%23(@"I3./+"./-"Kc0%)6(/+"f(/(?.3"g)-.+(&"R)'*,%&%*/.3T"

`@<`["
!@[<H"
]<"
;N`"

N@N[="

d
nH`b

d
d

nN@!HH
;<!`G;<"W&&06(-"KP+(/&%*/"*5"X%&.73(-"F.2%3%+%(&"B'./+&"
_+$('":(+"1$./8(&"%/"KP+('/.33A"F0/-(-"D2$(6(&""

[bN"
dNN"

d
d

W--%+%*/&"G"O/2'(.&(&"%/"_+$('"1*0/2%3"F0/-(-"D2$(6(&" `N" d
:(+" O/2'(.&(" %/" F*'(2.&+" 1.)%+.3" f(2(%)+&" R0&(-" +*" '(-02("
7*''*?%/8"/((-T"

d" d!@=;!

" " "

'1,.2-!H./*+K- ?@Td>c- h=TEEd
- - -

F+K(2,3/*-C7.G,-B-Z+.7-!.<3,.2-071*7.88+-J,1-=>?cA=>L dBT_^^- h?ET@Ec

Page 21



!<"

"
b9]" W&" &+.+(-" (.2$" A(.'@" .33" *5" +$(" 1*0/2%34&" 2.)%+.3" %/,(&+6(/+" )3./&" /((-" +*" 7("

.55*'-.73(@"&0&+.%/.73("./-")'0-(/+@"./-"2.)%+.3" %/,(&+6(/+" %&" %/+'%/&%2.33A" 3%/E(-" +*"
+$(" '(,(/0(" 70-8(+9" " W&" &02$@" +$(" -'.5+" )'*8'.66(" ?%33" 2*/+%/0(" +*" 7(" 0)-.+(-"
-0'%/8"Y./0.'A"./-"F(7'0.'A".&"1.7%/(+4&"70-8(+")'*)*&.3&"-(,(3*)9"

"
"

`" !I;%!$X-WI;M$%U-JWI;M$%U-F&\&%;&-"!!I;%'O-WF"L--
-
`9!" W&"'(53(2+(-"%/"+$("V#FD@"1.7%/(+4&"20''(/+"'(/+")*3%2A"5*'"2*0/2%3"$*0&%/8""%&"7.&(-"

*/J"
"

!" ./" .,('.8(" '(/+" *5" ZH`9`!" 5*'" ;<!=G!]@" '()'(&(/+%/8" ." !\" %/2'(.&(" */" +$("
)'(,%*0&"A(.'^"

!" +.'8(+".,('.8("'(/+"%/2'(.&(&"*5";\"%/";<!]G!H@"?%+$"N\"(.2$"A(.'"+$('(.5+('9"
"
`9;" #$(" .%6" *5" +$%&" )*3%2A" %&" +*" &+'%E(" ." 7.3./2(" 7(+?((/" E(()%/8" '(/+&" .55*'-.73(@"

6./.8%/8" 5%/./2%.3" '%&E&@" ./-" %/2'(.&%/8" ./-" %6)'*,%/8" 2*0/2%3" $*0&%/8" )'*,%&%*/9""
F*'"%/5*'6.+%*/"."!\"2$./8("%/"'(/+"(c0.+(&"+*".'*0/-"Z!N]a9"

"
`9N" W&").'+"*5"+$("20''(/+"70-8(+")'*2(&&"7*+$"'(,(/0("./-"2.)%+.3"(&+%6.+(&"$.,("7((/"

0)-.+(-@"'(53(2+%/8"+$(".7*,("'(/+")*3%2A9""#$("3.+(&+"-'.5+")*&%+%*/"%&".&"5*33*?&J"
"

- =>?EA?@-
]>>>-

=>?@A?B-
]>>>-

=>?BA?^-
]>>>-

=>?^A?_-
]>>>-

X'.5+"L*0&%/8"f(,(/0("W22*0/+"

RD0')30&T"5*'"o(.'""

"

R=!9<T"

"

R=!9HT"

"

R=b`9;T"

"

R[[N9=T"

"
"

`9=" #$(" 3.+(&+" )'*U(2+%*/&" '()'(&(/+" ." /(+" *,('&)(/-%/8" *5" ZN;a" %/" +$(" 20''(/+" A(.'@"
?$(/"2*6).'(-"?%+$"+$("*'%8%/.3")'*U(2+(-"&0')30&"*5"Z[Na@"./-".+")'(&(/+"+$%&"$.&"
&%6)3A" 7((/" 6(+" 5'*6" e.3./2(&9" " F*'" %/5*'6.+%*/@" +$(" 20''(/+" '(2*66(/-(-"
6%/%606"3(,(3"5*'"LfW"7.3./2(&"%&"&+%33"ZN]<a@"&07U(2+"+*"5*'6.3"'(,%(?9"

" "
`9]" 1.7%/(+"6.A"'(2.33"+$.+"+$("N<dA(.'"70&%/(&&")3./"20''(/+3A"?*'E&"*/"+$("7.&%&"+$.+"

6*/%(&"?%33"7("&(+".&%-("%/"+$("(.'3%('"A(.'&@"+*"*55&(+"$%8$('"2*&+&"%/"+$("3.++('"A(.'&9""
#$%&")'%/2%)3(".22*0/+&"5*'"+$("3.'8("&0')30&(&"&$*?%/8"%/";<!HG!["./-"7(A*/-9"
"

`9H" #$(" 7%88(&+" %&&0(" +$.+" $.&" 7((/" +.2E3(-" %/" +$(" 70-8(+" '(,%(?" &*" 5.'" %&" +$.+" *5"
70-8(+%/8" 5*'" '(&)*/&%,(" '().%'" ./-" 6.%/+(/./2(" 2*&+&9" " #$%&" 70-8(+" $.&" 7((/"
%/2'(.&(-" 7A" *,('" Z=<<a" )('" A(.'@" 5%/./2(-" +$'*08$" '(-02%/8" +$(" .//0.3"
2*/+'%70+%*/&" +*"&*6("(c0%)6(/+" '(&(',(&@"./-" '(-02%/8" '(,(/0(" 5%/./2%/8" 5*'" +$("
2.)%+.3")'*8'.66(9""#$%&"%&"2*/&%-('(-"6./.8(.73("%/"+$("6(-%06"+('6".+"3(.&+9"
"

`9[" #$("LfW"2.)%+.3")'*8'.66("$.&"7((/"0)-.+(-".&"/*'6.3" +*" '(53(2+"70&%/(&&")3./"
/((-&"./-")'%2("2$./8(&@"70+"+$(&(".'("5.%'3A"6%/*'9""V*'("&%8/%5%2./+"2$./8(&"?%33"
2*6(" +$'*08$" %/" -0(" 2*0'&(" +*" '(53(2+" +$(" *0+2*6(" *5" +$(" '(2(/+" &+*2E" 2*/-%+%*/"
&0',(A@" 70+" +$(" +%6(&2.3(&" 5*'" 2*6)3(+%/8" +$%&" ?*'E" .'(" /*+" A(+" 5%/.3%&(-9""""
F0'+$('6*'(@" +$(" )'*8'.66(" -*(&" /*+" A(+" %/230-(" )'*,%&%*/" 5*'" -(3%,('%/8" /(?"
2*0/2%3"$*0&%/8"?%+$%/"+$("-%&+'%2+9"
"

`9b" M%+$"'(8.'-"+*"50+0'("'(/+")*3%2A@"7.2E"%/"_2+*7('"1.7%/(+"'(&*3,(-"+$.+"."'(,%(?"7("
0/-('+.E(/" +*" (/&0'(" +$.+" %+" %&" 5%+" 5*'" )0')*&(" 8*%/8" 5*'?.'-@" %/" 3%8$+" *5" 1.7%/(+4&"

Page 22



!!"

&+*2E"(P)./&%*/")3./&".&"?(33".&"(P%&+%/8"70&%/(&&")3.//%/8"/((-&9""I'*,%&%*/.33A"%+"
%&".&&06(-"+$.+"?%33"7("."6.++('"5*'"+$(";<!HG!["70-8(+@".&"7A"+$(/")3./&"&$*03-"7("
23(.'('9"
"

`9`" _5" 6*'(" %66(-%.+(" 2*/2('/@" 5033" LfW" 70-8(+" )'*)*&.3&" 5*'" ;<!]G!H" ?%33" 7("
)'(&(/+(-"+*"1.7%/(+"%/"+$(":(?"o(.'9"

"
"
!<" C&'"$XM-I6-!I%M;X'"'$I%--

-
!<9!" 1*/&03+.+%*/"*/"B(/('.3"F0/-"6.++('&"?%33"7("0/-('+.E(/"?%+$"'(3(,./+"&+.E($*3-('&"

+$'*08$" +$(" e0-8(+" ./-" I('5*'6./2(" I./(3" 6((+%/8" %/" Y./0.'A@" )'%*'" +*" e0-8(+"
1*0/2%3"%/"(.'3A"V.'2$9""1*/&03+.+%*/"*/"2*0/2%3"$*0&%/8"6.++('&"?%33"7("0/-('+.E(/"
+$'*08$" +$(" X%&+'%2+" M%-(" #(/./+&4" F*'069" " #$%&" %&" %/" 3%/(" ?%+$" +$(" 1*0/2%34&"
2*/&03+.+%*/"&+'.+(8A9"

"
"
!!" I0'$I%M-"%C-I0'$I%M-"%"XZM$M-J$%!X;C$%U-F$MN-"MM&MMR&%'L-
" "
!!9!" B%,(/"+$.+"+$%&"'()*'+"%&")'%6.'%3A"5*'"%/5*'6.+%*/@"/*"&)(2%5%2"*)+%*/&".'(")0+"5*'?.'-9"
"
"
!;" !I%!X;M$I%-
"
!;9!" #$(" 1*0/2%3" %&" 6.E%/8" '(.33A" 8**-" )'*8'(&&" %/" -(3%,('%/8" 70-8(+" &.,%/8&" %/" ."

2*/&+./+3A"2$./8%/8"./-"-%55%203+"(/,%'*/6(/+@"?$%3&+"+'A%/8"+*"6%/%6%&("+$("%6).2+"*/"
3*2.3"2*660/%+%(&9" " O+" %&" '%8$+" +*"2$.33(/8(" +$(".))'*.2$"./-" '*70&+/(&&"*5"70-8(+"
&(++%/8@" 70+" %+" .3&*" '%8$+" +*" '(2*8/%&(" +$(" (55*'+&" ./-" .2$%(,(6(/+&" *5" .33" +$*&("
%/,*3,(-9"
"

!;9;" #$*&(".2$%(,(6(/+&"$.,("&+%33"/*+"/(8.+(-" +$("'(3%./2("*/"0&%/8"e.3./2(&" +*"$(3)"
&0))*'+"/(P+"A(.'4&"B(/('.3"F0/-"70-8(+@"$*?(,('@"./-" +$%&" %&"/*+"&0&+.%/.73(" 5*'"
+$(" 3*/8('" +('69" " O+" %&" $*)(-@" 70+" 7A" /*" 6(./&" 80.'./+((-@" +$.+" 5*'+$2*6%/8"
B*,('/6(/+" .//*0/2(6(/+&" ?%33" 8%,(" 8'(.+('" 2('+.%/+A" %/" +('6&" *5" +$(" 1*0/2%34&"
5%/./2%.3"*0+3**E"i"70+" %/"./A"(,(/+" +$("6(-%06" +*" 3*/8('" +('6"70-8(+" 2$.33(/8(&"
.'(" &+%33" (P)(2+(-" +*" 7(" $08(@" (,(/" .33*?%/8" 5*'" +$(" 1*0/2%34&" $(.3+$A" 3(,(3&" *5"
'(&(',(&"./-"7.3./2(&9"""
"

!;9N" F%/.33A@"./"%6)*'+./+").'+"*5"+$*&("50+0'("2$.33(/8(&"?%33"7("+*"6./.8("2*660/%+%(&4"
(P)(2+.+%*/&@" ./-" %+" %&" +$*08$+" +$.+" .&" *+$('" )073%2" &(',%2(&" )'*,%-('&4" 70-8(+"
'(-02+%*/&"&+.'+"+*"7%+(@"+$%&"?%33"8.%/"6*6(/+069"

"
"

F&X"'$I%MW$0-'I-0IX$!Z-6F"R&[IFN-
#$(" 70-8(+" &$*03-" '()'(&(/+@" %/" 5%/./2%.3" +('6&@" ?$.+" +$(" 1*0/2%3" %&" &((E%/8" +*" .2$%(,("
+$'*08$"%+&"I*3%2A"F'.6(?*'E9"

!I%!X;M$I%-I6-$R0"!'-"MM&MMR&%'-
J3/42()3/*-C3`+7K3,5T-W(8./-F3*H,KT-!188(/3,5-M.G+,5T-M(K,.3/.D323,5-+,4L-
:*/("-%'(2+3A".'%&%/8"%/"+('6&"*5"+$("2*')*'.+("/.+0'("*5"+$%&"'()*'+"i"./A"%6)3%2.+%*/&"?*03-"
7(".&"."'(&03+"*5"&)(2%5%2"-(2%&%*/&"*/"70-8(+")'*)*&.3&".55(2+%/8"&(',%2("-(3%,('A@"(+2Q-

6$%"%!$"X-$R0X$!"'$I%M-
W&"&(+"*0+"%/"+$("'()*'+9-

Page 23



!;"

M&!'$I%-?@?-I66$!&FYM-!IRR&%'M-
#$("&(2+%*/"!]!"_55%2('" R.&"1$%(5"_55%2('" Rf(&*0'2(&TT"$.&")'*-02(-" +$%&" '()*'+".&").'+"*5"
$('"'(&)*/&%7%3%+%(&9"-

X&U"X-$R0X$!"'$I%M--
C(8.3"D(',%2(&"$.,("7((/"2*/&03+(-"./-"$.,("/*"*7&(',.+%*/&"+*"6.E("*/"+$("'()*'+9"

RI%$'IF$%U-I66$!&FYM-!IRR&%'M-
#$("V*/%+*'%/8"_55%2('"$.&"7((/"2*/&03+(-"./-"$.&"/*"50'+$('"2*66(/+&9"

#"!NUFI;%C-0"0&FM-
:*/(9" e.2E8'*0/-" %/5*'6.+%*/" $.&"
)'(,%*0&3A" 7((/" )073%&$(-" .&" ).'+" *5" (.'3%('"
2*66%++(("'()*'+&@".&".))'*)'%.+(9"

!1/,.4,-IGG34+7S-%.)3/+-R(K4H.8<-
'+2+<H1/+S->?@=E-@_=??^-
&O8.32S/8(K4H.8<i2./4.K,+7Q*1`Q(:-

"

Page 24



!""#$%&'(!

!"#$%#& !"#&%#' !"#'%#( !"#(%#)
)*** )*** )*** )***

*+,-,./012343.531657-38191:+;<3=8,;.> #)?&$" #(?)(( #@?#&$ "

AB/.-3>1/+,>,.-1C+;D1=5++3.81E57-381+34,3F1G+;=3>> +,,-( +./. +,// 012134

H77,8,;./01A;.8+,E58,;.18;16/0/.=3> ,,-

2375=8,;.1,.1*+,-,./01I#J1A;.8+,E58,;.1C+;D16/0/.=3> 051

K/83>81L3812343.531657-381M;+3=/>8 #)?&$" #(?"'' #)?N@@ #)?)!N

2343.531O5GG;+81P+/.8 Q&?(""1 QN?)N! QN?!(N Q!?(NN

238/,.37165>,.3>>12/83>1Q16/>30,.31M5.7,.-1K3430 Q&?##"1 Q&?!&" Q&?N&& Q&?$'!

R>8,D/8371A;003=8,;.1M5.71O5+G05> Q#N#1 Q#N# " "

A*SLATK1UHV12RWST2RJRLU (?&@@ (?)&N @?((# #"?'!)

6!7896(:;<=:>?(6!@(79A<>79B9=6
(To fit with a council tax increase of 1.99% per year)

23D/,.,.-1O/4,.->1U;1631T73.8,C,37 " " #?'N( !?!"&

Tax Base Projections 38,000 38,500 39,100 39,700

6/.71X1A,8Y1A;5.=,01U/Z12/831Q1JUMO1U/+-38> I#@@[@@ I!"N[@( I!")["N I!#![#(
Percentage Increase Year on Year 1.99% 1.99% 1.99% 1.99%

A5++3.81A;5.=,01U/Z1:+;<3=8,;.> I#@@[@@ I!"N[@( I!$@[)@ I!'([(!
Percentage Increase Year on Year 1.99% 1.99% 22.51% 7.13%

£M
N[$N'
*C3,,
+*C5/1
*C,,-
$["N#
0C***

K3>>\1234,>371A;.8+,E58,;.1C;+1!"#&%#' *C1/3
![#(@

*+,-,./01G+;<3=8371E/0/.=31/>1/81N#1J/+=B1!"#$

!%%D(3*04E05(F$%#GH"#$%

?#HHD(IF%J#K#%(:L$KG&MFK&L$(NLG(3*05E0/

!%%D(:FGG#$K(OGLP#QK#%(<$%#GH"#$%

?RK#HK(OGLP#QK#%(IRSR$Q#(RH(RK(40(BRGQT(3*0/

K3>>\1A5++3.81J,.,D5D1K3430

HD;5.81H4/,0/E0318;1O5GG;+81M585+31]3/+>^1657-38>

12534

PRLR2HK1MSLX12R_RLSR16SXPRU1\1!"#$%#&1U*1!"#(%#)
ULG(:L$H&%#GRK&L$(MV(:RM&$#K(*3(W#Q#XM#G(3*05

TDG/=81;.1A;5.=,01U/Z

P3.3+/01M5.71S./00;=/83716/0/.=3>

O5DD/+Y1657-381:;>,8,;.1U;1X/83

,2/.. ,21/4 12045

£1.000M

£0.852M

£2.179M

Current!Minimum!Balance

Contribution!to!2015/16!Budget

Available!to!Support!Future!Years'!Budgets

Page 25



!"
#$
%#
&

!"
#&
%#
'

£
£

(
)
*
+)
,
-
.
/

(
)
*
+)
,
-
.
/

01
1'
2"
""

-4
.2

%
N

et
 R

ev
en

ue
 B

ud
ge

t
-5

.4
%

03
&3
2"
""

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 S
av

in
gs

-4
58

,4
00

-0
.4

%
G

ro
ss

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

-0
.8

%
-7

57
,0

00

A
dd

iti
on

al
 In

co
m

e
-3

17
,6

00
-0

.4
%

G
ro

ss
 In

co
m

e
-0

.3
%

-2
02

,0
00

!
"
#
"
$
%
&'
(
)
#
*
'+
%
$
,%
#
-
"
'%
#
%
&.
/
,/

(
01
'-
02
34
56
17
840
2'
9:
'-
79
42
68
';
<'
*
6=
6>
96
1'
<;
?@

4
5
4
)
6
7,
.
4
7(
)
*
+)
,
-
.
/

)
8
9:
;<
=<
7>
?7
@
A8
AB
9:
7C
D
8
E
7(
9B
=9
8
FA
<7
%7,
AG
7H
8
E
AB
<I
A8
E
=8
J
<

E
xp

re
ss

ed
 a

s 
a 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f

Pr
oa

ct
iv
e!

48
%

Re
ac
ti
ve

47
%

Ti
m
in
g

5%

20
14
/1
5

Pr
oa

ct
iv
e!

73
%

Re
ac
ti
ve

25
%

Ti
m
in
g

2%

20
15
/1
6

Sp
lit

!b
y

%AA6254B C

Page 26



K
A;
7L
B=
MA
B<
7?
>
B7
(
9B
=9
8
FA
<N

!"
#$
%#
&

!"
#&
%#
'

£
£

P
ro

ac
ti

ve
 C

h
an

g
es

 (
M

an
ag

ed
 s

av
in

g
s,

 e
tc

)
$
63
81
D=
8D
16
3'
E'*
6F
68
65
'G
03
83
'E'
H
I6
18
4>
6

J?
@K
L;
;;

J?
MN
LO
;;

+
%
P
'1
6Q
D2
5

J?
;K
L<
;;

,2
86
12
7F
'%
D5
48'
Q6
6'
R
01
S'

J?
<L
;;
;

-
02
81
49
D8
40
2'
80
'G
71
S3
'1
63
61
I6
'2
0'
F0
2T
61
'1
6U
D4
16
5

JO
;L
V;
;

JO
L;
;;

%
AA
16
28
4=
63
W4
A'
16
36
1I
6

OL
?;
;

J?
XL
N;
;

-
71
'7
FF0
R
72
=6
'3
7I
42
T3

JO
XL
@;
;

J@
;L
@;
;

-
02
3D
F87
2=
:'
Y
'6
B8
61
27
F'Q
66
3

JV
?L
;;
;

J<
KL
?;
;

/
0Q
8R
71
6'
72
5'
08
W6
1'
F4=
62
=6
3

JV
LX
;;

J<
VL
O;
;

$
65
D=
65
'=
03
8'0
Q'Q
D2
54
2T
'Z
$
%
'-
62
81
7F
'-
02
81
0F

J<
?L
<;
;

J<
KL
V;
;

C
D3
42
63
3'
$
78
63
'1
63
61
I6

M;
;

JO
KN
LN
;;

0$
#!
2&
""

01
""
2"
""

R
ea

ct
iv

e 
C

h
an

g
es

 (
U

n
fo

re
se

en
 e

ve
n

ts
, d

em
an

d
 c

h
an

g
es

 e
tc

.)

#
68
'8D
12
0I
61
L'A
7:
'7
R
71
5L
'42
=1
6>
62
87
F'A
10
T1
63
34
02

J?
KM
L?
;;

J?
OL
X;
;

(
66
3'
72
5'
=W
71
T6
3'
7=
10
33
'7
FF'
36
1I
4=
63

J?
@M
LO
;;

JN
KL
X;
;

A
ss

um
ed

 to
 b

e 
al

l d
em

an
d 

dr
iv

en

,2
I6
38
>
62
8',
28
61
63
8'

JV
?L
?;
;

J?
<O
L?
;;

"
26
1T
:'
-
03
83

J@
;L
N;
;

?V
L?
;;

[
78
61
'-
W7
1T
63
'J
'[
4FF
47
>
30
2'
G
71
S

??
L;
;;

?;
L;
;;

$
65
D=
65
'QD
6F
'=
03
83

JM
XL
N;
;

JN
@L
V;
;

+
6W
4=
F6
'1
6A
74
1'
Y
'>
74
28
62
72
=6
'

MO
L;
;;

MV
LN
;;

\
%
%
G
'=
02
81
49
D8
40
2'
80
'1
63
61
I6
']
C
,*
^

@;
L;
;;

H
8W
61
'#
02
J/
A6
=4
Q4=
'-
W7
2T
63

J<
@L
@;
;

J@
<L
<;
;

0$
"$
2O
""

0!
$#
2P
""

T
im

in
g

 C
h

an
g

es
[
63
8'"
25
'G
10
A6
18
:'
=0
38
3'

<;
LM
;;

JN
VL
@;
;

%
55
484
02
7F
'I
6W
4=
F6
'F6
73
42
T'
=0
38
3

K;
L?
;;

<?
LK
;;

$
6I
62
D6
'=
03
8'0
Q'=
7A
487
F'Q
42
72
=4
2T

JX
<L
X;
;

OX
LM
;;

*
416
=8
'1
6I
62
D6
'Q4
27
2=
42
T'
0Q
'=
7A
487
F'A
10
T1
7>
>
6

OO
L;
;;

JO
L<
;;

$"
2P
""

0#
12
!"
"

M
ai

nl
y 

du
e 

to
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 c
ap

ita
l r

ec
ei

pt
s 

in
 2

01
4/

15
 r

es
ul

tin
g 

in
 le

ss
 fi

na
nc

in
g 

co
st

s 
ch

ar
ge

d 
to

 r
ev

en
ue

A
dd

iti
on

al
 c

os
t i

n 
20

14
/1

5 
re

la
te

s 
to

 s
lip

pa
ge

 o
n 

th
e 

20
13

/1
4 

ca
pi

ta
l p

ro
gr

am
m

e 

-
5
Q
Q
.
,
4
/

A
dd

iti
on

al
 s

av
in

gs
 a

ch
ie

ve
d 

ov
er

 a
nd

 a
bo

ve
 th

e 
or

ig
in

al
 b

ud
ge

te
d 

£3
22

K
.

O
ne

-o
ff 

re
fu

nd
 r

el
at

in
g 

to
 s

uc
ce

ss
fu

l V
A

T
 c

la
im

 o
n 

T
ra

de
 W

as
te

 in
co

m
e,

 m
ad

e 
ba

ck
 in

 
20

10
/1

1

C
on

tin
ua

tio
n 

of
 w

or
k 

fo
r 

ot
he

r 
bo

di
es

C
ha

ng
e 

in
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 o
f p

ar
ks

 p
at

ro
l v

eh
ic

le
s 

no
w

 m
an

ag
ed

 b
y 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l S
er

vi
ce

s

R
ed

uc
ed

 n
ee

d 
fo

r 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
- 

co
st

s 
be

in
g 

fu
nd

ed
 fr

om
 in

te
rn

al
 s

av
in

gs

R
ed

uc
ed

 c
os

t f
ol

lo
w

in
g 

P
er

so
nn

el
 C

tte
e 

de
ci

si
on

 o
n 

25
 F

eb
 2

01
4

A
dd

iti
on

al
 s

ur
fa

ce
 w

at
er

 c
ha

rg
es

 le
vi

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
w

at
er

 s
up

pl
ie

r

R
ef

le
ct

s 
th

e 
re

du
ct

io
n 

in
 th

e 
pr

ic
e 

of
 o

il

T
he

 in
cr

ea
se

 in
 2

01
4/

15
 is

 o
ffs

et
 b

y 
sa

vi
ng

s 
m

ad
e 

in
 2

01
3/

14
 -

 c
ha

ng
es

 in
 le

as
in

g 
pr

of
ile

s

In
 li

ne
 w

ith
 2

01
3/

14
 o

ut
tu

rn
, c

os
t o

f v
eh

ic
le

 r
ep

ai
r 

&
 m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 h

as
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

S
av

in
gs

 n
ow

 a
ss

um
ed

 in
 2

01
5/

16
 r

e 
C

ha
ts

w
or

th
 G

ar
de

ns

P
ro

ac
tiv

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t o
f c

os
ts

 (
al

th
ou

gh
 s

om
e 

el
em

en
ts

 a
ffe

ct
ed

 b
y 

de
m

an
d)

P
ro

ac
tiv

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t o
f c

os
ts

P
ro

ac
tiv

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t o
f c

os
ts

R
ea

ss
es

sm
en

t o
f B

us
in

es
s 

R
at

es
 p

os
iti

on
 a

nd
 fu

nd
in

g 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts

H
ig

he
r 

th
an

 a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 c
as

h 
ba

la
nc

es
 &

 im
pr

ov
ed

 in
te

re
st

 r
at

e 
fo

re
ca

st
s

M
em

be
r 

de
ci

si
on

 m
ad

e 
af

te
r 

bu
dg

et
 w

as
 s

et

T
hi

s 
w

ill
 a

ls
o 

in
cl

ud
e 

an
 e

le
m

en
t o

f m
an

ag
ed

 s
av

in
gs

, e
.g

. d
el

ib
er

at
el

y 
ke

ep
in

g 
po

st
s 

va
ca

nt
 fo

r 
a 

pe
rio

d 
of

 ti
m

e,
 to

 r
ev

ie
w

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
ne

ed
s

A
n 

el
em

en
t o

f t
he

 s
av

in
g 

w
ill

 h
av

e 
be

en
 a

ch
ie

ve
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

ac
tiv

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t

Page 27



!
"
#
"
$
%
&
'(
)
#
*
'+
%
,
-.
%
&
',
$
/
!
$
%
0
0
"
'1
'(
2
3'
42
5
67
8
93
:;
72
5
'<
='
+
:<
75
9;
'>
?'
*
94
9@
<
93
'?
>A
B

C
93
D7
49
'E'
C
4F
9@
9

"
5
D7
32
5
@
95
;:
G'C
93
D7
49
6

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

"
##$
%&
'(
%)

?H
I>
>>

?H
I>
>>

>
>

>
>

>
?H
I>
>>

>
?H
I>
>>

*
'+
,-
#'
./
'(
'0
1#
)

HJ
KI
>>
>

HJ
KI
>>
>

HL
LI
>>
>

HL
LI
>>
>

J?
?I
>>
>

J?
?I
>>
>

AI
MN
AI
>>
>

AI
MN
AI
>>
>

A?
LI
>>
>

A?
LI
>>
>

?I
AB
HI
>>
>

?I
AB
HI
>>
>

LI
?J
>I
>>
>

>
LI
?J
>I
>>
>

*
'+
,-
#'
.2
31
-4
,(
5.
6
7)
%'
&

A>
MI
>>
>

A>
MI
>>
>

>
>

>
>

>
A>
MI
>>
>

>
A>
MI
>>
>

8
,(
).
9
.8
$:
')
.6
-+
';
<#
';
.8
<7
=>
<%
)

A?
I>
>>

A?
I>
>>

?A
I>
>>

?A
I>
>>

HB
I>
>>

HB
I>
>>

M>
I>
>>

M>
I>
>>

>
>

AM
HI
>>
>

>
AM
HI
>>
>

2
$,
#'
%.?

$3
4)

A?
LI
>>
>

A?
LI
>>
>

>
>

>
>

>
A?
LI
>>
>

>
A?
LI
>>
>

@
13
.A
13
4)
.B&
C3
$D
'&
'(
%.A
3$
53
1&
&
'

NK
MI
>>
>

EF
GH
HH

NL
>I
>>
>

AN
MI
>>
>

AN
MI
>>
>

>
>

>
>

M?
>I
>>
>

?M
I>
>>

BJ
MI
>>
>

I
,)
%3
,-
%.A
#1
75
3$
<(
;.
B&
C3
$D
'&
'(
%)

A?
MI
>>
>

JE
FG
HH
H

>
>

>
>

>
>

A?
MI
>>
>

A?
MI
>>
>

>
?
,##
,1
&
)$
(.
A
13
4.
B&
C3
$D
'&
'(
%)
.9
.K
(+
1(
-'
&
'(
%)

>
HM
I>
>>

HM
I>
>>

>
>

>
>

HM
I>
>>

>
HM
I>
>>

O
9:
G;
F
':
5
8
'O
2
P
67
5
Q

I
,)
1L
#'
;.
M
1-
,#,
%,'
).
N
31
(%
).
OE
HJ
FP
JQ
.$
(0
13
;)
.%$
.L
'.
-$
(R
,3&
';
S

KL
JI
>>
>

TQ
UG
HH
H

>
HK
NI
>>
>

VT
WG
HH
H

>
HK
NI
>>
>

VT
WG
HH
H

>
HK
NI
>>
>

VT
WG
HH
H

>
HK
NI
>>
>

VT
WG
HH
H

>
HK
NI
>>
>

VT
WG
HH
H

>
BI
HK
BI
>>
>

BI
HK
BI
>>
>

>
?
13
&
'3
.X
$&
')
.6
-+
'&
'.

NH
I>
>>

NH
I>
>>

>
>

>
>

>
NH
I>
>>

>
NH
I>
>>

6
1#
%."
73
'.
6
C$
3%
).
@
'(
%3
'.
=.
/
'C
#1
-'
&
'(
%)
.9
./
'R
<3
L,
)+
&
'(
%)

>
N>
I>
>>

N>
I>
>>

>
>

>
>

N>
I>
>>

>
N>
I>
>>

$
9Q
95
93
:;
72
5
':
5
8
',
G:
5
5
75
Q

2
$<
-1
(.
@
3$
))
,(
5.
=.
Y
,(
5.
6
%3
''
%

AN
I>
>>

AN
I>
>>

>
>

>
>

>
AN
I>
>>

>
AN
I>
>>

I
1#
%$
(.
6
Z<
13
'.
@
+3
,)
%&
1)
.[
,5
+%
).
O/
'(
'0
1#
S

>
?K
I>
>>

?K
I>
>>

>
>

>
>

?K
I>
>>

>
?K
I>
>>

6
'1
.9
./
,D
'3
.I
'R
'(
-'
.?
$3
4)
.9
.6
%<
;,
')

N?
MI
>>
>

WJ
HG
HH
H

AM
I>
>>

AI
>?
>I
>>
>

UT
UG
HH
H

NA
I>
>>

AI
H>
JI
>>
>

JG
QV
UG
HH
H

N>
I>
>>

?I
A?
?I
>>
>

EG
HU
EG
HH
H

N>
I>
>>

AI
LM
?I
>>
>

JG
QE
EG
HH
H

N>
I>
>>

?I
HA
AI
>>
>

EG
QU
HG
HH
H

?A
I>
>>

JI
MN
JI
>>
>

JI
NK
?I
>>
>

AM
HI
>>
>

"
&
'(
,%7
.B&
C3
$D
'&
'(
%)
.O
\
$3
'-
1&
L'
.A
3$
&
'(
1;
'S

NA
I>
>>

WG
HH
H

?K
I>
>>

>
>

>
>

>
NA
I>
>>

NI
>>
>

?K
I>
>>

[<
('
),
;'
.K
1)
%

?M
I>
>>

?M
I>
>>

>
>

>
>

>
?M
I>
>>

>
?M
I>
>>

[1
(-
1)
%'
3.
6
Z<
13
'.
/
$<
%'
)

AI
NA
HI
>>
>

JG
HJ
HG
HH
H

N>
HI
>>
>

>
>

>
>

>
AI
NA
HI
>>
>

AI
>A
>I
>>
>

N>
HI
>>
>

\
$3
'-
1&
L'
.2
X
BE
]."
.*
,'
0
.R$
3.
K
3,-
.

BN
?I
>>
>

WE
TG
HH
H

A>
BI
>>
>

BH
AI
>>
>

WF
WG
HH
H

AA
KI
>>
>

?A
JI
>>
>

JQ
QG
HH
H

MN
I>
>>

>
>

>
AI
A?
?I
>>
>

KB
HI
>>
>

?H
MI
>>
>

B&
C3
$D
,(
5.
\
$3
'-
1&
L'
^)
.\
1,
(.
6
%3
''
%)

A?
>I
>>
>

A?
>I
>>
>

NN
>I
>>
>

NN
>I
>>
>

>
>

>
>

BM
>I
>>
>

>
BM
>I
>>
>

"
#;
-#
,RR
'.
/
$1
;.
@
1(
1#
.6
,;
'.
"
--
')
).
B&
C3
$D
'&
'(
%)
.)
JH
Q.
)-
+'
&
'

?>
I>
>>

?>
I>
>>

>
>

>
>

>
?>
I>
>>

>
?>
I>
>>

8
3,(
;#
'.
@
#$
)'
."
RR$
3;
1L
#'
.X
$<
),
(5
.)
JH
Q.
)-
+'
&
'

K>
I>
>>

K>
I>
>>

>
>

>
>

>
K>
I>
>>

>
K>
I>
>>

/
,D
'3
)D
,'
0
.X
$)
%'
#."
RR$
3;
1L
#'
.X
$<
),
(5
.)
JH
Q.
)-
+'
&
'

AN
?I
>>
>

AN
?I
>>
>

>
>

>
>

>
AN
?I
>>
>

>
AN
?I
>>
>

Y
,(
5.
6
%P?

'#
#,(
5%
$(
.2
'3
31
-'
."
RR$
3;
1L
#'
.X
$<
),
(5
.)
JH
Q.
6
-+
'&
'

AK
>I
>>
>

AK
>I
>>
>

>
>

>
>

>
AK
>I
>>
>

>
AK
>I
>>
>

\
,;
;#
'%
$(
._
1%
<3
'.
/
')
'3
D'
.6
JH
Q.
6
-+
'&
'

AA
I>
>>

AA
I>
>>

AH
I>
>>

AH
I>
>>

BI
>>
>

BI
>>
>

>
>

>
N?
I>
>>

>
N?
I>
>>

"
;1
-%
<)
.2
$C
.<
C.
N
31
(%
)

AM
JI
>>
>

AM
JI
>>
>

>
>

>
>

>
AM
JI
>>
>

>
AM
JI
>>
>

8
$#
;.
6
%3
''
%.X
$<
),
(5
./
'5
'(
'3
1%
,$
(.
6
,%'
.?
$3
4)

NJ
AI
>>
>

NJ
AI
>>
>

>
>

>
>

>
NJ
AI
>>
>

>
NJ
AI
>>
>

@
+1
%)
0
$3
%+
.N
13
;'
()

AI
KH
KI
>>
>

AI
KH
KI
>>
>

>
>

>
>

>
AI
KH
KI
>>
>

>
AI
KH
KI
>>
>

$
96
2
P
34
96

B@
2
.6
7)
%'
&
)G
.B(
R3
1)
%3
<-
%<
3'
.9
.K
Z<
,C
&
'(
%

?K
BI
>>
>

?K
BI
>>
>

NK
BI
>>
>

NK
BI
>>
>

HL
I>
>>

HL
I>
>>

?A
>I
>>
>

?A
>I
>>
>

??
LI
>>
>

??
LI
>>
>

KB
I>
>>

KB
I>
>>

AI
?L
BI
>>
>

>
AI
?L
BI
>>
>

@
$3
C$
31
%'
.A
3$
C'
3%
7.
?
$3
4)

?I
HB
MI
>>
>

JH
GH
HH

?I
HN
MI
>>
>

NI
AJ
MI
>>
>

NI
AJ
MI
>>
>

?I
>>
>I
>>
>

?I
>>
>I
>>
>

>
>

>
HI
JB
>I
>>
>

A>
I>
>>

HI
JN
>I
>>
>

!
"
#
"
$
%
&
'(
)
#
*
'+
%
,
-.
%
&
',
$
/
!
$
%
0
0
"

A>
IL
?H
I>
>>

?I
LK
>I
>>
>

HI
JB
HI
>>
>

HI
?M
MI
>>
>

?I
A?
MI
>>
>

MI
AN
>I
>>
>

MI
HK
HI
>>
>

?I
L?
KI
>>
>

NI
AM
JI
>>
>

BI
LJ
LI
>>
>

?I
KH
MI
>>
>

AI
K?
AI
>>
>

?I
HK
HI
>>
>

?I
B>
MI
>>
>

NK
?I
>>
>

MI
H?
MI
>>
>

NI
BH
NI
>>
>

?I
?M
?I
>>
>

NL
IK
HH
I>
>>

AL
IA
KL
I>
>>

?>
IL
JA
I>
>>

(
75
:5
47
5
Q
'R

6
C'
-,
R,-
.N
31
(%
).
1(
;.
@
$(
%3
,L
<%
,$
()

?I
LK
>I
>>
>

?I
A?
MI
>>
>

?I
L?
KI
>>
>

?I
KH
MI
>>
>

?I
B>
MI
>>
>

NI
BH
NI
>>
>

AL
IA
KL
I>
>>

N
'(
'3
1#
.@
1C
,%1
#.N
31
(%
).

NH
I>
>>

>
>

>
>

>
NH
I>
>>

@
1C
,%1
#./
'-
',
C%
).

?I
>H
KI
>>
>

LN
>I
>>
>

NH
>I
>>
>

NH
>I
>>
>

>
>

NI
BB
KI
>>
>

I
,3'
-%
./
'D
'(
<'
.M
<(
;,
(5

BJ
MI
>>
>

MA
I>
>>

A>
BI
>>
>

M>
I>
>>

>
>

H>
>I
>>
>

K
13
&
13
4'
;.
/
')
'3
D'
)

AI
>A
NI
>>
>

B>
LI
>>
>

HB
I>
>>

?A
>I
>>
>

AH
>I
>>
>

KB
I>
>>

AI
JM
HI
>>
>

LI
N>
NI
>>
>

NI
?A
?I
>>
>

NI
AH
LI
>>
>

NI
M>
MI
>>
>

?I
MH
MI
>>
>

NI
MM
HI
>>
>

??
IN
?K
I>
>>

-5
43
9:
69
'E'
$
98
P
4;
72
5
'S
1T
'75
'+
:U
7;
:G
'(
75
:5
47
5
Q
'

$
9V
P
73
9@
95
;'
S+
(
$
T'
S)
5
8
93
G=
75
Q
'+
F
:5
Q
9'
75
'

W
2
33
2
X
75
Q
'#
99
8
T

BI
N?
BI
>>
>

BI
>B
NI
>>
>

?I
LA
AI
>>
>

AI
AJ
AI
>>
>

?A
?I
>>
>

?I
AL
KI
>>
>

AB
IM
BJ
I>
>>

.
/
.
%
&
'(
-#
%
#
+
-#
!

A>
IL
?H
I>
>>

HI
?M
MI
>>
>

MI
HK
HI
>>
>

BI
LJ
LI
>>
>

?I
HK
HI
>>
>

MI
H?
MI
>>
>

NL
IK
HH
I>
>>

C
O
/
$
.
(
%
&
&
'E'
C
)
$
,
&
)
C
'S
1T

>
>

>
>

>
>

>

?>
AB
EA
M

?>
AM
EA
L

?>
AL
EA
H

#9;'
,32Q3:@@9

?>
AH
EA
K

#9;'
,32Q3:@@9

!
32
66
'

W
P
8
Q
9;

!
32
66
'

W
P
8
Q
9;

"
Y;
93
5
:G
'

(
P
5
8
75
Q

#9;'
,32Q3:@@9

!
32
66
'

W
P
8
Q
9;

"
Y;
93
5
:G
'

(
P
5
8
75
Q

"
Y;
93
5
:G
'

(
P
5
8
75
Q

?>
AJ
E?
>

.2;:G'!3266'
,32Q3:@@9

.2;:G'"Y;935:G'
(P5875Q

"
Y;
93
5
:G
'

(
P
5
8
75
Q

!
32
66
'

W
P
8
Q
9;

#9;'
,32Q3:@@9

L'
Z
"
%
$
',
$
/
!
$
%
0
0
"

?>
AK
EA
J

.2;:G'#9;'
,32Q3:@@9

#9;'
,32Q3:@@9

!
32
66
'

W
P
8
Q
9;

"
Y;
93
5
:G
'

(
P
5
8
75
Q

#9;'
,32Q3:@@9

!
32
66
'

W
P
8
Q
9;

"
Y;
93
5
:G
'

(
P
5
8
75
Q

%UU9587Y'+Page 28



COUNCIL  
 
 

Attendance at Outside Bodies 
17 December 2014 

 
Report of Council Business Committee 

 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
To consider recommendations for monitoring and reporting attendance of Councillors 
appointed to outside bodies. 
 
 

This report is public  

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS OF COUNCIL BUSINESS COMMITTEE: 
 
(1) That Councillors appointed to outside bodies inform Democratic 

Services of the meetings they have attended throughout the year. 
 
(2) That officers include details of attendance in each report to Annual 

Council to inform Members when appointments to outside bodies are 
reconfirmed.  

 
1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 Council Business Committee requested a report from officers to confirm which 

outside bodies were still in existence, how often they met and to provide 
feedback on Members’ attendance. The Committee considered that report 
(Appendix A) at its meeting on 6 November 2014. 

 
1.2 The information in the report was noted and the Committee felt that it would 

be helpful to introduce a monitoring system of Councillors’ attendance at 
meetings of the bodies they have been appointed to. 

 
2.0 Proposal 
 
2.1 Currently, Members are appointed to outside bodies for a four year term at 

the Annual Council meeting after the elections. Every year thereafter until the 
next election, the appointments are reviewed/reconfirmed at the Annual 
Council meeting. However, there is no information given in those report about 
whether or not a Member has attended any meetings during the year. The 
Committee felt this information would be helpful in reconfirming appointments. 

 
2.2 The Committee agreed that a template supplied by Democratic Services 

would be the best way to capture the information and that this would be sent 
out to the relevant Councillors in time to be completed and returned before 

Agenda Item 10Page 29



the report was drafted for Annual Council. In this way, the attendance 
information could be provided in the report for Members to refer to when 
reviewing the appointments to outside bodies. Any Member who has failed to 
supply attendance information or has confirmed that they have been unable 
to attend any meetings would therefore run the risk of losing the appointment. 

 
3.0 Conclusion 
 
3.1 Council is asked to consider the recommendations of Council Business 

Committee and gather information about Councillors’ attendance at meetings 
of outside bodies to assist in making and reviewing appointments. 

 
 

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
(including Health & Safety, Equality & Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, 
Sustainability and Rural Proofing) 
 
None. 
 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
There are no legal implications as a result of this report. 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
There are no financial implications as a result of this report.   
 

OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
Human Resources: 
None. 
Information Services: 
None. 
Property: 
None. 
Open Spaces: 
None. 

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
The Section 151 Officer has been consulted and has no further comments. 
 

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments. 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
None. 
 

Contact Officer: Debbie Chambers 
Telephone:01524582057 
E-mail: dchambers@lancaster.gov.uk 
Ref:  

 

Page 30



COUNCIL BUSINESS COMMITTEE  
 
 

REVIEW OF OUTSIDE BODIES 
6 NOVEMBER 2014 

 
Report of Chief Officer (Governance) 

 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
To consider the council’s current list of appointments to outside bodies, and the 
arrangements for appointed councillors to give feedback on their work. 
 

This report is public  

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the committee notes the content of this report and considers whether to 
make any recommendations to Council regarding a system for members to 
provide feedback on their work with outside bodies. 
 
 
1.0 Introduction 

 
1.1 In considering an appointment to the Lancashire Police and Crime Panel at 

the previous meeting, Council Business Committee requested: 
 

“That a report be brought to the next meeting on member appointments to 
outside bodies, with details of how frequently outside bodies met, member 
attendance, and member feedback.”  
 
The rationale was to ensure that outside bodies on the list were still active, 
and to consider methods by which appointed councillors could provide 
feedback on their work. 

 
1.2 In accordance with Council Business Committee’s resolution at the previous 

meeting, officers wrote to each outside body on the current list to ensure that 
it was still active and to find out how often it met. From a total of 48 
organisations, 38 responded. 

 
1.3 Of the 38 outside bodies which responded, 92% reported that the appointed 

councillors added value to their work and provided a useful link to the city 
council.       

 
1.4 In considering how appointees provide feedback on their work with outside 

bodies, officers have been in contact with fellow local authorities to identify 
best practice elsewhere, which could be replicated in Lancaster. 

 

Appendix A 
Page 31



2.0 Review of Outside Bodies  
 
2.1 Officers contacted each outside body to determine how frequently they met 

and the results are shown below. 
 
Outside Body Meeting Frequency 
Arnside and Silverdale AONB Unit 2 per annum.  There are also opportunities 

for members to get involved in small 
working groups if they have an interest in a 
particular area of delivery of the AONB 
Management Plan eg: Sustainable 
Tourism, Land Management & 
Conservation or Planning 
 

Board of Trustees of Skerton 
Charities 

Did not respond 
 

Board of Trustees of Lancaster 
Charity 

4 per annum.   

Carnforth Station Railway Trust 4 per annum 
Community Safety Partnership 4 per annum 
Court of the University of Lancaster 1 per annum 
Crook o’Lune Advisory Committee Ad hoc.   Often conducted by email. 
Dukes Playhouse Board of Directors 4 per annum 
Forest of Bowland Advisory 
Committee 

2 per annum 
 

Friendship Centre Management 
Committee 
 

12 per annum. 

Furness Line Community Railway 
Partnership 

4 per annum 

George Fox School Educational 
Charity 

1 or 2 per annum 

H2H Landscape Partnership Board 4 per annum 
Health and Wellbeing Partnership 6 per annum 
Health Scrutiny Committee 6 per annum 
Heysham Mossgate Company 
Limited 

Ad hoc 
 

Heysham Nuclear Power Station Did not respond 

Homelessness Forum 2 or 3 per annum 
Lancashire Leaders’ Forum 6 per annum 
Lancashire Tourism Forum 4 per annum 
Lancashire Waste Partnership 3 per annum 

 
Lancaster and District Multi Agency 
Forum on Domestic Violence 
 

Did not response 

Lancaster and Morecambe Fairtrade 
District Steering Group 

12 per annum 

Lancaster and Skipton Rail User 
Group 

6 per annum 

Lancaster Community Fund Grants 
Panel 

1 per annum 

Page 32



Lancaster District Chamber of 
Commerce 

6 per annum 

Lancaster District Childrens Trust 
Board 

See comments 

Lancaster District CVS No response 
 

Lancaster Ripley Church of England 
Education Trust 

4 per annum 

Lancaster University Council Minimum 6 per annum 
Leeds-Morecambe and Settle-
Carlisle Railway Development 
Partnership 

No response 

LGA Coastal Issues Special Interest 
Group 

4 per annum 

LGA Executive See comments 
Lune Park Children’s Centre No response 

 
Lune Valley Transport Enterprise 4 per annum 

 
Luneside East Project Advisory 
Board 

See comments 
 

Management Group of Lancaster 
Business Improvement District 

12 per annum 
 
 

Marsh Community Centre 
Management Committee 

No response 
 
 

Morecambe Bay Partnership 1 per annum 
Museum Advisory Panel 2 per annum 
National Association of Areas of 
Outstanding Natural Beauty 

2 per annum 

North Lancashire Citizens Advice 
Bureaux 

No response 

North West Home Safety Council No response 
 

North West Local Authorities 
Employers Organisation 

5 per annum 

Preston and West Lancashire Racial 
Equality Council 

Ad hoc 

Rainbow Centre 4 per annum 
 

Relate Lancashire No response. 
 

Reserve Forces and Cadets 
Association 

2 per annum 

 
 
3.0 Particular Issues Raised 
 

Forest of Bowland AONB responded to say that they preferred the local 
authority representative to have a strong interest in AONB and countryside 
matters and/or live in or represent an AONB and officers will include that 
comment in the report to Council in May to assist in determining the basis of 
that appointment. 

Page 33



 
Lancaster District Children’s Trust Board  
The Children and Young Peoples Trust (CYPT) in Lancashire is currently 
going through a period of transition; the final meeting of the District Board 
took place on 25th September 2014.   
 
Whereas each district previously had its own CYPT Board, under the new 
arrangements there will now be five combined boards, with Lancaster, Fylde 
and Wyre merging to form the North Lancashire Children's Partnership Board 
(CPB).   
 
The North Lancashire CPB will feature a councillor from each of the three 
districts, with their role remaining consistent with that under the previous 
system: 
 

• to provide a local interface for the local authority to promote effective 
two-way communication on matters relating to children and young 
people. 

• to support engagement with local communities and ensure that local 
community interests are reflected.  

• to work with partners to provide responses to local issues.  
• to take forward appropriate issues which require resolution by the 
council 

• to raise the profile of the council and its services.  
 
The list of appointments to outside bodies will therefore be updated from the 
‘Lancaster District Children’s Trust Board’ to the ‘North Lancashire Children’s 
Partnership Board.’ 
 
LGA Executive 
The Local Government Association (LGA) has informed the council that their 
Executive’s membership is refreshed on an annual basis.  Appointments are 
made in a number of different ways, primarily by the political group offices at 
the LGA, and by the regional association.  However, individual authorities 
cannot make appointments directly.   
 
The membership for this year’s LGA Executive meeting cycle does not 
include a member from Lancaster City Council, and, in view of the 
mechanism for appointment, the LGA Executive will be removed from the 
council’s list of outside body appointments.  

 
Luneside East Project Advisory Board 

 The Luneside East Project Advisory Board has not met for several years now 
and officers from the council’s Regeneration and Planning Department have 
advised that the Board will be wound up.  

 
3.0 Feedback mechanisms 

  
3.1 The means of generating feedback from members who have been appointed 

to an outside body varies across local authorities.   To establish what 
happens elsewhere, officers posted a question on the Association of 
Democratic Services Officers’ online forum.   

 
3.2 Options in use elsewhere include: 

Page 34



 
• biannual email updates to all councillors; 
• updating the relevant cabinet member as appropriate;  
• providing written reports in town hall members’ rooms; and 
• providing written annual reports, either submitted to Council or a 
selected committee. 

 
3.3 With 48 outside bodies currently appointed to, it is likely that written reports to 

Council or a committee would take up too much time especially since the 
number of meetings was reduced in 2014/15.  

 
3.4 However, if the committee believes that greater awareness is required of 

members’ work on outside bodies, then it could be recommended that 
appointees complete a short template with details of their work on an annual 
basis.     Completed feedback forms could then be made available on the 
councillors’ section of the intranet, and in the members rooms in Lancaster 
and Morecambe town halls.     

 
3.5 It should be noted that authorities which have adopted this approach find that 

many appointees do not complete the appropriate forms on time, so members 
may wish to consider how, if at all, the system would operate.  It should be 
noted that there are currently no officer resources available in Democratic 
Services to provide assistance to members either to draft an annual report on 
their outside body or to complete feedback forms. 

 
4.0 Conclusion  
 
4.1 Members are asked to note the content of this report and may wish to make 

recommendations to Council, when new four year appointments are made in 
May 2015, regarding a practical method of providing feedback.  

 
 

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
(including Health & Safety, Equality & Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, 
Sustainability and Rural Proofing) 
None. 
 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
There are no legal implications directly as a result of this report. 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
There are no financial implications as a result of this report, however, as stated in the report, 
at current staffing levels officer resources would not be available to assist members in the 
drafting of any written feedback. Should the committee wish to recommend that course of 
action to Council then this would need to be addressed as part of that report. 
 

OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
Human Resources: 
None. 
Information Services: 
None. 
Property: 
None. 

Page 35



Open Spaces: 
None. 

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
The Deputy Section 151 Officer has been consulted and has no further comments. 

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments. 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
None. 

Contact Officer: Peter Baines 
Telephone:  01524 582074 
E-mail: pbaines@lancaster.gov.uk 
 

 
 
 

Page 36



COUNCIL  
 
 

Committee Timetable 2015/16 
17 December 2014 

 
Report of Council Business Committee 

 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
To enable Council to consider recommendations from Council Business 
Committee and to agree a Committee Timetable for 2015/16. 
 
 

This report is public  

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
(1) Council is asked to consider the draft timetable appended to this report 

and the recommendations of Council Business Committee, as follows: 
 
(2) That the start time of Cabinet meetings and Cabinet Briefings be 

changed to 6pm. 
 
(3)  That the start time of full Council meetings be changed to 6pm. 
 
(4) That an extra Council meeting be scheduled to fall between 15 July and 

21 October. 
 
 
1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 At its meeting on 6 November 2014, Council Business Committee considered 

a draft Committee Timetable for 2015/16 and made the following resolutions: 
 

1) That the planning meeting scheduled for 1 June be moved to 5 June 
for administrative reasons and that the draft timetable be 
recommended to Council subject to the following changes: 

 
2) That the start times of Cabinet meetings, Cabinet Briefings and Council 

meetings be changed to 6pm. 
 
3) That an extra Council meeting be scheduled to fall between 15 July 

and 21 October. 
 
4) That Officers investigate the feasibility of moving the Audit Committee 

meeting from 16 September to 23 September to accommodate moving 
the Cabinet meeting scheduled for 1 September to 8 September and 
make the following consequential changes: move the Budget and 

Agenda Item 11Page 37



Performance Panel scheduled for 8 September to 15 September and 
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting scheduled for 9 
September to 16 September. 

 
1.2 Since the meeting, officers have ascertained that it would not be feasible, due 

to the accounting timetable, to move the Audit Committee meeting from 16 to 
23 September to effect a change to the date of the September Cabinet 
meeting. 

 
1.3  The Committee recognised that there would be financial implications to 

moving the start times of meetings and Members requested that a report be 
put to Council to include those implications. 

 
2.0 Proposals and Implications 
 
2.1 The proposals are: 
 

• to move the start times for full Council and Cabinet meetings (and 
Cabinet briefing meetings) from daytime to 6pm to encourage and 
enable those in full time work to stand for Council; 

 
• to add an extra Council meeting to the timetable to fall between the 

meetings already scheduled for July and October 2015. 
 
2.2 Members will recall that, on 13 December 2013, Council resolved to reduce 

the number of meetings in 2014/15 and the number of ordinary Council 
meetings was reduced from 10 to 8. The Committee felt that the gap between 
Council meetings had been too long this year and that the cycle of meetings 
would be improved by scheduling a meeting towards the end of September. 
Officers have looked at the situation this year and can report that the gap 
between meetings did not seem to present any problems. A meeting was held 
on 16 July and the next ordinary meeting was held on 22 October. The 
October agenda was not particularly lengthy and the meeting lasted for three 
hours, so there does not appear to be a need for the extra meeting.  However, 
if Council is minded to approve the recommendation of Council Business 
Committee, Officers would suggest a provisional date of Wednesday 23 
September 2015 to be included in the calendar, to be used if necessary.  

 
2.3 By holding additional meetings in the evening running costs will increase 

simply through the additional heating, lighting and staffing required to keep a 
building open beyond normal office hours. It will be necessary for Facilities 
Support Officers to work additional hours to cover caretaking and security 
duties should meetings go on beyond 7.30pm. It is also feasible that this 
proposal could lead to the loss of income through the hire of premises for 
external events. It is difficult to quantify potential extra costs with any great 
certainty as it would depend on the length of meeting, the time of year and 
current staff salaries, etc. However, assuming an additional three evening 
meetings per month averaging three hours each with one Facilities Support 
Officer covering Cabinet/Cabinet briefings and two Facilities Support Officers 
covering Council the estimated additional cost over 12 months could be in the 
region of £2,500 (£1,400 for staff plus £1,100 for building running costs).  

 
2.4 A further property related concern is that the Facilities Support function is 

already being stretched following extended opening hours at the Storey to 
accommodate the University.  

Page 38



 

2.5 The decision was taken some years ago to cease providing sandwiches 
before evenings meetings to save money, so there has been no costings for 
refreshments and it is assumed that these would remain the same, with 
tea/coffee and juice available as currently. 

 
2.6 Democratic support staff already work evening meetings on a ‘time off in lieu’ 

basis. This is managed within the service to ensure that there is cover during 
office hours and these proposals would not cause any issues with that 
arrangement.  

 
2.7 Officers would remind Council that Cabinet Briefing is not a formal meeting 

and does not appear on the Committee timetable.  It would perhaps be more 
appropriate for the arrangements for such briefings to be discussed and 
agreed with the Leader and Cabinet members following Annual Council in May 
2015. 

 
3.0 Conclusion 
 
3.1 Council is asked to consider the recommendations of Council Business 

Committee and to agree a timetable of meetings for the municipal year 
2015/16. 

 
 

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
(including Health & Safety, Equality & Diversity, Human Rights, 
Community Safety, Sustainability and Rural Proofing) 
 
None. 
 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
There are no legal implications as a result of this report. 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
As set out in paragraph 2 of the report. It is likely that additional costs of in the 
region of £2,500 will be incurred if meetings are moved to 6pm and this 
increase will need to be built into the budget as part of the 2015/16 budget 
process. 
 

OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
Human Resources: 
As set out in paragraph 2 of the report. 
Information Services: 
None. 
Property: 
As set out in paragraph 2 of the report. 
Open Spaces: 
None. 

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
Given that some additional costs are involved in the proposal, Council is 
advised to consider these against the identified benefits (e.g. moving meeting 
times to encourage and enable those in full time work to stand for Council), so 
that value for money is taken into account.  The case for holding an additional 

Page 39



meeting is unclear, however -  hence the Officer suggestion if Council is 
minded to approve this recommendation. 

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments. 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
None. 
 

Contact Officer: Debbie Chambers 
Telephone:01524582057 
E-mail: dchambers@lancaster.gov.uk 
Ref:  

 
 

  

Page 40



Meeting Start Times/Venues 2015/16 
 
 
 
(LTH = Lancaster Town Hall) 
(MTH = Morecambe Town Hall) 
 
 
Annual Council 
(Ceremonial) 

Ashton Hall, LTH 12 noon 

Annual Council (Business) MTH 6:30 pm 
Council MTH 2 pm 
Council Business 
Committee 

MTH 6 pm 

Cabinet Alternating LTH, MTH 10 am 
Overview and Scrutiny MTH 6 pm 
Budget and Performance LTH 6.10 pm 
Licensing Regulatory 
Committee 

LTH 1 pm 

Licensing Act Committee LTH 2 pm 
Planning & Highways 
Regulatory 

LTH 10.30 am 

Personnel Committee* LTH 6.10 pm 
JCC LTH 2 pm 
Audit Committee MTH 6 pm 
Standards Committee* LTH 6.10 pm 

 
 
The Appeals Committee is convened as and when necessary at LTH with no 
set day or time. 
 
*These committees will begin earlier in the day where additional meetings are 
convened to hear specific cases. 
 

 

Page 41



DRAFT TIMETABLE 2015/2016  
     2015           2016 

 May June July August September October November December January February March April May  

Mon  1             1 Planning Site Visit      Mon 

Tue  2   1 Cabinet MTH   1 Cabinet LTH   
 2 JCC 

1    Tue 
Personnel 

Wed  3 
1             JCC 

 2     2   3 Council 2 Budget Council    Wed 
Personnel 

Thur  4 Licensing Reg 2 Member Briefing  
3 Licensing Reg 

1 Member Briefing    3 Licensing Act  4 Member Briefing 3 Member Briefing     Thur 
Member Briefing 

Fri 1 5 Planning 3  4 2  4 1 Bank Holiday 5 4 1    Fri 

Sat 2 6  4 1 5 3  5 2 6 5 2  Sat 

Sun 3 7 5 2 6 4 1 6 3 7 6 3 1 Sun 

Mon 4 Bank Holiday 8  6  3 7  5  2  7 Planning Site Visit 4 Planning Site Visit 8 Planning 7 Planning 4 Planning 2 Bank Holiday Mon 

Tue 5 Planning  9 Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee 7  4  8 Budget and 

Performance Panel 6 Cabinet LTH 3 Cabinet MTH 8  5  9  
    8  5  3 Planning Site Visit Tue 

Wed 6 10  8 Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 5  9 Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee 7  4  9 Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee 6  10  9  6 Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee 4  Wed 

Thur 7 ELECTION 11 Standards  9  6 10  8  5 Council Business 
Committee 10  7 Licensing Reg 11 Licensing Reg 10 Council Business 

Committee 7  5 ELECTION Thur 

Fri 8 12 10 7 11 9 6 11 8 12 11 8  6  Fri 

Sat 9 13 11 8 12 10 7 12 9 13   12 9 7 Sat 

Sun 10 14 12 9 13 11 8 13 10 14 13 10 8 Sun 

Mon 11 15  13  10  14 Planning Site Visit 12 Planning Site Visit 9 Planning Site Visit 14 Planning 11 Planning 15  14  11  9 Planning Mon 

Tue 12 16   14  11  15  13  10 Budget & 
Performance Panel 15  12  16 Cabinet LTH 15  12  10 Tue 

Wed 13  17 Audit 15 Council 12 16 Audit 14 Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 11  16 Council 13  17 16  13 Council 11  Wed 

Thur 14  18 Licensing Act 16 Licensing Reg 13 17  15 Licensing Reg 
12 Member Briefing 

17  14 Member Briefing 18  17  14  12 Thur 
 

Fri 15  19  17 14 18  16  13 18 15  19  18 15  13 Annual Council Fri 

Sat 16 20 18 15 19 17 14 19 16 2- 19  16 14 Sat 

Sun 17 21 19 16 20 18 15 20 17 21 20 17 15 Sun 

Mon 18  22 Planning Site Visit 20 Planning Site Visit 17 Planning Site 
Visit 21 Planning 19 Planning 16 Planning 21  18  22  21  18  16 Business Council Mon 

Tue 19 23 Cabinet MTH 21 Budget and 
Performance Panel 18  22  20  17 22 19 Cabinet MTH 23 Budget and 

Performance Panel 22 Cabinet MTH 19  17  Tue 

Wed 20  24  22  19 23  21 Council 18 Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee 23 20 Audit 24 Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee 23 20  18 Wed 

Thur 21 25 Council Bus Com 23  20 24  22  19  24  21 Standards 25  24 Licensing Reg 21  19 Thur 

Fri 22 Annual Council 26 24  21 25  23 20 25 Bank Holiday 22  26 25 Bank Holiday 22  20  Fri 

Sat 23  27 25 22  26  24 21 26 23 27 26 23 21 Sat 

Sun 24 29 26 23 27 25 22 27 24 28 27 24 22 Sun 

Mon 25 Bank Holiday 29 Planning 27 Planning 24 Planning 28 26  23  28 Bank Holiday 25  29 Planning Site Visit 28 Bank Holiday 25 23  Mon 

Tue 26 Business Council 30 28 Cabinet LTH 25 29  27  24  29  26 Budget & Perf 
Panel - MTH  29 Planning Site Visit 26 Cabinet LTH 24  Tue 

Wed 27 Planning Site Visit   29  26  30 28  25  30  27 Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee  30 27  25  Wed 

Thur 28   30 27  29 26 Licensing Reg 31 28   31  28 26 Thur 

Fri 29  31 28  30 27  29   29 27 Fri 

Sat 30   29  31 28  30   30 28 Sat 

Sun 31   30   29  31    29 Sun 

Mon    31 Bank Holiday   30         30 Bank Holiday Mon 

Tue              31 Tue 

 

 

 
P

age 42



COUNCIL  
 
 

Committee Timetable 2015/16 
17 December 2014 

 
Report of Council Business Committee 

 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
To enable Council to consider recommendations from Council Business Committee 
and to agree a Committee Timetable for 2015/16. 
 
 

This report is public  

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
(1) Council is asked to consider the draft timetable appended to this report 

and the recommendations of Council Business Committee, as follows: 
 
(2) That the start time of Cabinet meetings and Cabinet Briefings be changed 

to 6pm. 
 
(3)  That the start time of full Council meetings be changed to 6pm. 
 
(4) That an extra Council meeting be scheduled to fall between 15 July and 

21 October. 
 
 
1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 At its meeting on 6 November 2014, Council Business Committee considered a 

draft Committee Timetable for 2015/16 and made the following resolutions: 
 

1) That the planning meeting scheduled for 1 June be moved to 5 June for 
administrative reasons and that the draft timetable be recommended to 
Council subject to the following changes: 

 
2) That the start times of Cabinet meetings, Cabinet Briefings and Council 

meetings be changed to 6pm. 
 
3) That an extra Council meeting be scheduled to fall between 15 July and 

21 October. 
 
4) That Officers investigate the feasibility of moving the Audit Committee 

meeting from 16 September to 23 September to accommodate moving 
the Cabinet meeting scheduled for 1 September to 8 September and 
make the following consequential changes: move the Budget and 

Page 43



Performance Panel scheduled for 8 September to 15 September and 
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting scheduled for 9 
September to 16 September. 

 
1.2 Since the meeting, officers have ascertained that it would not be feasible, due 

to the accounting timetable, to move the Audit Committee meeting from 16 to 
23 September to effect a change to the date of the September Cabinet meeting. 

 
1.3  The Committee recognised that there would be financial implications to moving 

the start times of meetings and Members requested that a report be put to 
Council to include those implications. 

 
2.0 Proposals and Implications 
 
2.1 The proposals are: 
 

· to move the start times for full Council and Cabinet meetings (and 
Cabinet briefing meetings) from daytime to 6pm to encourage and 
enable those in full time work to stand for Council; 

 
· to add an extra Council meeting to the timetable to fall between the 

meetings already scheduled for July and October 2015. 
 
2.2 Members will recall that, on 13 December 2013, Council resolved to reduce the 

number of meetings in 2014/15 and the number of ordinary Council meetings 
was reduced from 10 to 8. The Committee felt that the gap between Council 
meetings had been too long this year and that the cycle of meetings would be 
improved by scheduling a meeting towards the end of September. Officers have 
looked at the situation this year and can report that the gap between meetings 
did not seem to present any problems. A meeting was held on 16 July and the 
next ordinary meeting was held on 22 October. The October agenda was not 
particularly lengthy and the meeting lasted for three hours, so there does not 
appear to be a need for the extra meeting.  However, if Council is minded to 
approve the recommendation of Council Business Committee, Officers would 
suggest a provisional date of Wednesday 23 September 2015 to be included in 
the calendar, to be used if necessary.  

 
2.3 By holding additional meetings in the evening running costs will increase simply 

through the additional heating, lighting and staffing required to keep a building 
open beyond normal office hours. It will be necessary for Facilities Support 
Officers to work additional hours to cover caretaking and security duties should 
meetings go on beyond 7.30pm. It is also feasible that this proposal could lead 
to the loss of income through the hire of premises for external events. It is 
difficult to quantify potential extra costs with any great certainty as it would 
depend on the length of meeting, the time of year and current staff salaries, etc. 
However, assuming an additional three evening meetings per month averaging 
three hours each with one Facilities Support Officer covering Cabinet/Cabinet 
briefings and two Facilities Support Officers covering Council the estimated 
additional cost over 12 months could be in the region of £2,500 (£1,400 for staff 
plus £1,100 for building running costs).  

 
2.4 A further property related concern is that the Facilities Support function is 

already being stretched following extended opening hours at the Storey to 
accommodate the University.  

 

Page 44



2.5 The decision was taken some years ago to cease providing sandwiches before 
evenings meetings to save money, so there has been no costings for 
refreshments and it is assumed that these would remain the same, with 
tea/coffee and juice available as currently. 

 
2.6 Democratic support staff already work evening meetings on a ‘time off in lieu’ 

basis. This is managed within the service to ensure that there is cover during 
office hours and these proposals would not cause any issues with that 
arrangement.  

 
2.7 Officers would remind Council that Cabinet Briefing is not a formal meeting and 

does not appear on the Committee timetable.  It would perhaps be more 
appropriate for the arrangements for such briefings to be discussed and agreed 
with the Leader and Cabinet members following Annual Council in May 2015. 

 
3.0 Conclusion 
 
3.1 Council is asked to consider the recommendations of Council Business 

Committee and to agree a timetable of meetings for the municipal year 2015/16. 
 
 

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
(including Health & Safety, Equality & Diversity, Human Rights, 
Community Safety, Sustainability and Rural Proofing) 
 
None. 
 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
There are no legal implications as a result of this report. 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
As set out in paragraph 2 of the report. It is likely that additional costs of in the 
region of £2,500 will be incurred if meetings are moved to 6pm and this increase 
will need to be built into the budget as part of the 2015/16 budget process. 
 

OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
Human Resources: 
As set out in paragraph 2 of the report. 
Information Services: 
None. 
Property: 
As set out in paragraph 2 of the report. 
Open Spaces: 
None. 

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
Given that some additional costs are involved in the proposal, Council is advised 
to consider these against the identified benefits (e.g. moving meeting times to 
encourage and enable those in full time work to stand for Council), so that value 
for money is taken into account.  The case for holding an additional meeting is 
unclear, however -  hence the Officer suggestion if Council is minded to approve 
this recommendation. 

Page 45



MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments. 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
None. 
 

Contact Officer: Debbie Chambers 
Telephone:01524582057 
E-mail: dchambers@lancaster.gov.uk 
Ref:  

 
 

  

Page 46



Meeting Start Times/Venues 2015/16 
 
 
 
(LTH = Lancaster Town Hall) 
(MTH = Morecambe Town Hall) 
 
 

Annual Council 
(Ceremonial) 

Ashton Hall, LTH 12 noon 

Annual Council (Business) MTH 6:30 pm 
Council MTH 2 pm 
Council Business 
Committee 

MTH 6 pm 

Cabinet Alternating LTH, MTH 10 am 
Overview and Scrutiny MTH 6 pm 
Budget and Performance LTH 6.10 pm 
Licensing Regulatory 
Committee 

LTH 1 pm 

Licensing Act Committee LTH 2 pm 
Planning & Highways 
Regulatory 

LTH 10.30 am 

Personnel Committee* LTH 6.10 pm 
JCC LTH 2 pm 
Audit Committee MTH 6 pm 
Standards Committee* LTH 6.10 pm 

 
 
The Appeals Committee is convened as and when necessary at LTH with no 
set day or time. 
 
*These committees will begin earlier in the day where additional meetings are 
convened to hear specific cases. 
 

 

Page 47



D
R

A
F

T
 T

IM
E

T
A

B
L

E
 2

01
5/

20
16

  
 

 
 

 
 

20
15

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
20

16
 

 
M

ay
 

Ju
ne

 
Ju

ly
 

A
ug

us
t 

Se
pt

em
be

r 
O

ct
ob

er
 

N
ov

em
be

r 
D

ec
em

be
r 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

Fe
br

ua
ry

 
M

ar
ch

 
A

pr
il 

M
ay

 
 

M
on

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  

  
 1

 P
la

nn
in

g 
Si

te
 V

is
it 

 
  

  
M

on
 

Tu
e 

 
2 

 
 

1 
C

ab
in

et
 M

TH
 

 
 

1 
C

ab
in

et
 L

TH
 

  
 2

 J
C

C 
1 

 
  

Tu
e 

Pe
rs

on
ne

l 

W
ed

 
 

3 
1 

   
   

   
   

JC
C

 
 

2 
 

 
 

 2
 

  
3 

C
ou

nc
il 

2 
Bu

dg
et

 C
ou

nc
il 

 
  

W
ed

 
Pe

rs
on

ne
l 

Th
ur

 
 

4 
Li

ce
ns

in
g 

R
eg

 
2 

M
em

be
r B

rie
fin

g 
 

3 
Li

ce
ns

in
g 

R
eg

 
1 

M
em

be
r B

rie
fin

g 
  

 3
 L

ic
en

si
ng

 A
ct

 
 

4 
M

em
be

r B
rie

fin
g 

3 
M

em
be

r B
rie

fin
g 

  
  

Th
ur

 
M

em
be

r B
rie

fin
g 

Fr
i 

1 
5 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 
3 

 
4 

2 
 

4 
1 

Ba
nk

 H
ol

id
ay

 
5 

4 
1 

 
  

Fr
i 

Sa
t 

2 
6 

 
4 

1 
5 

3 
 

5 
2 

6 
5 

2 
 

Sa
t 

Su
n 

3 
7 

5 
2 

6 
4 

1 
6 

3 
7 

6 
3 

1 
Su

n 

M
on

 
4 

Ba
nk

 H
ol

id
ay

 
8 

 
6 

 
3 

7 
 

5 
 

2 
 

7 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 S

ite
 V

is
it 

4 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 S

ite
 V

is
it 

8 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 

7 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 

4 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 

2 
Ba

nk
 H

ol
id

ay
 

M
on

 

Tu
e 

5 
Pl

an
ni

ng
  

9 
O

ve
rv

ie
w

 &
 S

cr
ut

in
y 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 

7 
 

4 
 

8 
Bu

dg
et

 a
nd

 
Pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 P
an

el
 

6 
C

ab
in

et
 L

TH
 

3 
C

ab
in

et
 M

TH
 

8 
 

5 
 

9 
 

   
 

8 
 

5 
 

3 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 S

ite
 V

is
it 

Tu
e 

W
ed

 
6 

10
  

8 
O

ve
rv

ie
w

 a
nd

 
Sc

ru
tin

y 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 
5 

 
9 

O
ve

rv
ie

w
 a

nd
 

Sc
ru

tin
y 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 

7 
 

4 
 

9 
O

ve
rv

ie
w

 &
 S

cr
ut

in
y 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 

6 
 

10
  

9 
 

6 
O

ve
rv

ie
w

 a
nd

 
Sc

ru
tin

y 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 
4 

 
W

ed
 

Th
ur

 
7 

EL
EC

TI
O

N
 

11
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

  
9 

 
6 

10
  

8 
 

5 
C

ou
nc

il B
us

in
es

s 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 
10

  
7 

Li
ce

ns
in

g 
R

eg
 

11
 L

ic
en

sin
g 

R
eg

 
10

 C
ou

nc
il B

us
in

es
s 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 

7 
 

5 
EL

EC
TI

O
N

 
Th

ur
 

Fr
i 

8 
12

 
10

 
7 

11
 

9 
6 

11
 

8 
12

 
11

 
8 

 
6 

 
Fr

i 

Sa
t 

9 
13

 
11

 
8 

12
 

10
 

7 
12

 
9 

13
   

12
 

9 
7 

Sa
t 

Su
n 

10
 

14
 

12
 

9 
13

 
11

 
8 

13
 

10
 

14
 

13
 

10
 

8 
Su

n 

M
on

 
11

 
15

  
13

  
10

  
14

 P
la

nn
in

g 
Si

te
 V

is
it 

12
 P

la
nn

in
g 

Si
te

 V
is

it 
9 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 S
ite

 V
is

it 
14

 P
la

nn
in

g 
11

 P
la

nn
in

g 
15

  
14

  
11

  
9 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 
M

on
 

Tu
e 

12
 

16
   

14
  

11
  

15
  

13
  

10
 B

ud
ge

t &
 

Pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 P

an
el

 
15

  
12

  
16

 C
ab

in
et

 L
TH

 
15

  
12

  
10

 
Tu

e 

W
ed

 
13

  
17

 A
ud

it 
15

 C
ou

nc
il 

12
 

16
 A

ud
it 

14
 O

ve
rv

ie
w

 a
nd

 
Sc

ru
tin

y 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 
11

  
16

 C
ou

nc
il 

13
  

17
 

16
  

13
 C

ou
nc

il 
11

  
W

ed
 

Th
ur

 
14

  
18

 L
ic

en
sin

g 
Ac

t 
16

 L
ic

en
sin

g 
R

eg
 

13
 

17
  

15
 L

ic
en

sin
g 

R
eg

 
12

 M
em

be
r B

rie
fin

g 
17

  
14

 M
em

be
r B

rie
fin

g 
18

  
17

  
14

  
12

 
Th

ur
 

 

Fr
i 

15
  

19
  

17
 

14
 

18
  

16
  

13
 

18
 

15
  

19
  

18
 

15
  

13
 A

nn
ua

l C
ou

nc
il 

Fr
i 

Sa
t 

16
 

20
 

18
 

15
 

19
 

17
 

14
 

19
 

16
 

2-
 

19
  

16
 

14
 

Sa
t 

Su
n 

17
 

21
 

19
 

16
 

20
 

18
 

15
 

20
 

17
 

21
 

20
 

17
 

15
 

Su
n 

M
on

 
18

  
22

 P
la

nn
in

g 
Si

te
 V

is
it 

20
 P

la
nn

in
g 

Si
te

 V
is

it 
17

 P
la

nn
in

g 
Si

te
 

Vi
si

t 
21

 P
la

nn
in

g 
19

 P
la

nn
in

g 
16

 P
la

nn
in

g 
21

  
18

  
22

  
21

  
18

  
16

 B
us

in
es

s 
C

ou
nc

il 
M

on
 

Tu
e 

19
 

23
 C

ab
in

et
 M

TH
 

21
 B

ud
ge

t a
nd

 
Pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 P
an

el
 

18
  

22
  

20
  

17
 

22
 

19
 C

ab
in

et
 M

TH
 

23
 B

ud
ge

t a
nd

 
Pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 P
an

el
 

22
 C

ab
in

et
 M

TH
 

19
  

17
  

Tu
e 

W
ed

 
20

  
24

  
22

  
19

 
23

  
21

 C
ou

nc
il 

18
 O

ve
rv

ie
w

 &
 

Sc
ru

tin
y 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 

23
 

20
 A

ud
it 

24
 O

ve
rv

ie
w

 a
nd

 
Sc

ru
tin

y 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 
23

 
20

  
18

 
W

ed
 

Th
ur

 
21

 
25

 C
ou

nc
il B

us
 C

om
 

23
  

20
 

24
  

22
  

19
  

24
  

21
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 
25

  
24

 L
ic

en
sin

g 
R

eg
 

21
  

19
 

Th
ur

 

Fr
i 

22
 A

nn
ua

l C
ou

nc
il 

26
 

24
  

21
 

25
  

23
 

20
 

25
 B

an
k 

H
ol

id
ay

 
22

  
26

 
25

 B
an

k 
H

ol
id

ay
 

22
  

20
  

Fr
i 

Sa
t 

23
  

27
 

25
 

22
  

26
  

24
 

21
 

26
 

23
 

27
 

26
 

23
 

21
 

Sa
t 

Su
n 

24
 

29
 

26
 

23
 

27
 

25
 

22
 

27
 

24
 

28
 

27
 

24
 

22
 

Su
n 

M
on

 
25

 B
an

k 
H

ol
id

ay
 

29
 P

la
nn

in
g 

27
 P

la
nn

in
g 

24
 P

la
nn

in
g 

28
 

26
  

23
  

28
 B

an
k 

H
ol

id
ay

 
25

  
29

 P
la

nn
in

g 
Si

te
 V

is
it 

28
 B

an
k 

H
ol

id
ay

 
25

 
23

  
M

on
 

Tu
e 

26
 B

us
in

es
s 

C
ou

nc
il 

30
 

28
 C

ab
in

et
 L

TH
 

25
 

29
  

27
  

24
  

29
  

26
 B

ud
ge

t &
 P

er
f 

Pa
ne

l -
 M

TH
 

 
29

 P
la

nn
in

g 
Si

te
 V

is
it 

26
 C

ab
in

et
 L

TH
 

24
  

Tu
e 

W
ed

 
27

 P
la

nn
in

g 
Si

te
 V

is
it 

  
29

  
26

 
 3

0 
28

  
25

  
30

  
27

 O
ve

rv
ie

w
 a

nd
 

Sc
ru

tin
y 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 

 
30

 
27

  
25

  
W

ed
 

Th
ur

 
28

  
 

30
 

27
 

 
29

 
26

 L
ic

en
sin

g 
R

eg
 

31
 

28
  

 
31

  
28

 
26

 
Th

ur
 

Fr
i 

29
 

 
31

 
28

 
 

30
 

27
 

 
29

 
 

 
29

 
27

 
Fr

i 

Sa
t 

30
 

 
 

29
 

 
31

 
28

 
 

30
 

 
 

30
 

28
 

Sa
t 

Su
n 

31
 

 
 

30
 

 
 

29
 

 
31

 
 

 
 

29
 

Su
n 

M
on

 
 

 
 

31
 B

an
k 

H
ol

id
ay

 
 

 
30

  
 

  
 

  
 

30
 B

an
k 

H
ol

id
ay

 
M

on
 

Tu
e 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

31
 

Tu
e 

 

  
Page 48



COUNCIL 17TH DECEMBER 2014 
 
OFFICER BRIEFING NOTE 
 
Notice of Motion – Opposition to Driver only Trains  
 
Proposer: Cllr David Whitaker  
Seconder: Cllr Robert Redfern, Cllr Margaret Pattison, Cllr Richard-Newman Thompson, Cllr 
Margaret Pattison, Cllr Liz Scott  
 
This Council  
A) Registers its opposition to the Northern and Transpennine Express franchise requirement 
for driver only trains and The Government’s plans to make driver only trains mandatory.  
 
B) Express our concern at the removal of on board conductors on The Northern and 
Transpennine routes as well as hundreds of essential rail jobs  
 
C) Believes that, if implemented. The plan would result in cuts to funding, fare rises, service 
and timetable cuts and the loss of local rail jobs. .  
 
D) Also believe that as a result of the loss of skilled jobs, passenger service and passenger 
safety will be worsened by this plan to remove guards and conductors from services and 
introduce Driver Only Operated Trains.  
 
E) Notes that these proposals come on top of rail fare hikes and the pre existing 
understaffing of many rail stations and the closure of ticket offices, making guards and on 
board conductors even more essential to passenger safety.  
 
F) Believes that safeguarding and increasing staffing levels are the most effective way of 
improving security and passenger safety  
 
G) Notes that the driver is responsible for safe operation of the train and the on board 
conductor is responsible for the protection of the passengers.  
 
H) Notes that currently, guards and on board conductors are fully trained in the operational 
safety, route knowledge, including safely securing doors, protecting the train and acting in 
emergencies such as driver incapacity 

The City Council has no statutory responsibilities in respect of railways or rail travel.   

However, this motion falls within Council Procedure Rule 16.4, as it is about a matter which 
affects the district, albeit along with a wider area. 

Officers are unable to comment on the assumptions made in the motion.  However, to the 
extent that the motion simply provides for the Council to express its views, there are no risks 
or financial or legal implications for the Council should the motion be carried. 

Monitoring Officer Comments 

This briefing note has been prepared by the Monitoring Officer. 

Section 151 Officer Comments  

The Section 151 Officer has been consulted and has no further comments.  

 

Agenda Item 12Page 49



OFFICER NOTE FOR COUNCIL 17 DECEMBER 2014 

 

Regarding Notice of Motion – Transatlantic Trade and Investment Partnership  

Proposer – Cllr Richard Newman-Thompson  

Seconder: Cllr Paul Gardner 

 

 

Officer Comments 

The Transatlantic Trade and Investment Partnership (TTIP) is a very complex matter, and 
not one that Officers have or require any direct or detailed knowledge of, at this stage.  A 
briefing note cannot be provided therefore, particularly given the time available. 

Instead, to help inform the debate, some Government-produced documentation is attached.  
In reading this, however, Members should appreciate that the documentation includes 
Government’s views – no Officer view or advice is presented. 

For more information, it is suggested that Members refer to the various websites or search 
on line. 

Monitoring Officer Comments 
The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments. 
 
S151 Officer Comments 
The s151 Officer has produced this note. 

Agenda Item 13 Page 50



 
 

Tr
an

sa
tla

nt
ic

Tr
ad

e 
an

d
 

 In
ve

st
m

en
t 

Pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
:

C3 K
ey

D
riv

er
s:

C
ro

ss
-G

ov
er

nm
en

t w
or

k 
on

 T
TI

P
 is

 
le

d 
by

 th
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t f

or
 B

us
in

es
s,

 
!"
"#

$%
&'#

"(
%"

)(
*
+'
,,-
(./

!*
01(
2#
(3
")

(#
4&
(

m
or

e,
 w

or
k 

w
ith

 u
s 

or
 g

et
 in

vo
lv

ed
 

in
 a

ny
 o

th
er

 w
ay

, c
on

ta
ct

 u
s 

on
:

 
   

 T
TI

P.
te

am
@

bi
s.

gs
i.g

ov
.u

k

G
et

 In
vo

lv
ed

:
C

en
tra

l t
o 

th
e 

PM
’s

 
vis

io
n 

of
 a

 r
ef

or
m

ed
, 

co
m

pe
tit

ive
 E

ur
op

e.

21

£1
0b

n

£8
0b

n
 

£1
00

bn
 

W
or

th
 u

p 
to

:

to
 th

e 
U

K

to
 th

e 
U

S
 a

nd

to
 th

e 
E

U
, p

er
 y

ea
r.

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
lib

er
al

 tr
ad

e 
ru

le
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

21
st

 c
en

tu
ry

 th
ro

ug
h 

E
U

-U
S

 
le

ad
er

sh
ip

 o
n 

tr
ad

e 
po

lic
y,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
de

ve
lo

pi
ng

 n
ew

 g
lo

ba
l s

ta
nd

ar
ds

.

D
id

 y
ou

 k
no

w
?

5(
6
*
(&%

7'8
-(
#"

(6
9
(:
##

)-
('"

;,
4)

<(
-=

#7
&-
>
<%

7(

(3
2%

), 
sy

nt
he

tic
 w

om
en

’s
 c

oa
ts

 (1
6%

), 
ho

-

te
l t

ab
le

w
ar

e 
(2

8%
) a

nd
 s

lip
pe

rs
 (2

6%
). 

5(
Th

e 
U

S
 “

B
ar

s 
an

d 
G

ril
ls

” 
In

te
lle

ct
ua

l P
ro

p-

er
ty

 r
ul

e 
m

ea
ns

 m
us

ic
ia

ns
 a

re
n’

t r
ew

ar
de

d 

w
he

n 
th

ei
r 

m
us

ic
 p

la
ys

 in
 m

an
y 

U
S

 o
ut

le
ts

.

5(
?
%"

@(
6
9
(A
4%

,'3
;%

&'#
"-

(,'
+<

(&B
#-

<(
C7
#D

(&B
<(

R
oy

al
 In

st
itu

te
 o

f B
rit

is
h 

A
rc

hi
te

ct
s 

ar
en

’t 

re
co

gn
is

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
U

S
.  

1. 2. 3.

K
ey

 F
ac

ts

Page 51



R
eg

io
n

P
ro

je
ct

ed
 

E
xp

o
rt

s
R

el
ev

an
t 

S
ec

to
rs

L
o

n
d

o
n

£ 
1,

90
0 

m
n

Fi
na

nc
e,

 O
th

er
 S

er
vi

ce
s

S
o

u
th

 E
as

t
£ 

3,
70

0 
m

n
P

ha
rm

a,
 F

in
an

ce
, 

A
dv

an
ce

d 
M

an
uf

ac
tu

rin
g

S
o

u
th

 W
es

t
£ 

70
0 

m
n

A
gr

ic
ul

tu
re

, F
oo

d 
&

 D
rin

k

E
as

t
£ 

1,
55

0 
m

n
A

gr
ic

ul
tu

re

E
as

t 
M

id
la

n
d

s
£ 

1,
20

0 
m

n
A

dv
an

ce
d 

M
an

uf
ac

tu
rin

g

W
es

t 
M

id
la

n
d

s
£ 

1,
40

0 
m

n
A

ut
om

ot
iv

es

N
o

rt
h

 E
as

t
£ 

1,
05

0 
m

n
A

ut
om

ot
iv

es
, C

he
m

ic
al

s

Yo
rk

sh
ir

e 
&

 
th

e 
H

u
m

b
er

£ 
1,

05
0 

m
n

C
he

m
ic

al
s

N
o

rt
h

 W
es

t
£ 

2,
60

0 
m

n
A

er
os

pa
ce

, T
ex

til
es

, 
C

he
m

ic
al

s

W
al

es
£ 

1,
50

0 
m

n
E

ne
rg

y,
 A

dv
an

ce
d 

M
an

uf
ac

tu
rin

g

S
co

tl
an

d
£ 

1,
40

0 
m

n
Fo

od
 &

 D
rin

k,
 W

hi
sk

y,
 

E
ne

rg
y,

 F
in

an
ce

N
. I

re
la

n
d

£ 
25

0 
m

n
A

gr
ic

ul
tu

re

“T
w

o 
m

ill
io

n 
ex

tr
a 

jo
bs

, m
or

e 
ch

oi
ce

 a
nd

 lo
w

er
 p

ric
es

 in
 o

ur
 s

ho
ps

. 
W

e’
re

 ta
lk

in
g 

ab
ou

t w
ha

t c
ou

ld
 b

e 
th

e 
bi

gg
es

t b
ila

te
ra

l t
ra

de
 d

ea
l i

n 
hi

st
or

y,
 a

 d
ea

l t
ha

t w
ill

 h
av

e 
a 

gr
ea

te
r 

im
pa

ct
 th

an
 a

ll 
th

e 
ot

he
r 

tr
ad

e 
de

al
s 

on
 th

e 
ta

bl
e 

pu
t t

og
et

he
r.”

 P
rim

e 
M

in
is

te
r 

D
av

id
 C

am
er

on
, 2

01
3

£

W
ha

t i
s 

TT
IP

?
 Th

e 
Tr

an
sa

tla
nt

ic
 T

ra
de

 a
nd

 In
ve

st
m

en
t P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 (T

TI
P

) i
s 

a 
fr

ee
 tr

ad
e 

de
al

 in
 n

eg
ot

ia
tio

n 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
E

U
 a

nd
 U

S
. I

t a
im

s 
to

 jo
in

 u
p 

th
e 

w
or

ld
’s

 la
rg

es
t e

co
no

m
ie

s,
 w

hi
ch

 a
cc

ou
nt

 fo
r 

al
m

os
t h

al
f o

f 
:,
#E

%,
(F

G
H
(%
")

(%
(&B

'7)
(#
C(&
7%
)<

(I
#>

-(
.#
$<

7(
JK

1L
E"

(#
C(&
7%
)<

()
%'
,@
01(

It
 a

im
s 

to
 c

o
ve

r 
se

ct
o

rs
 in

cl
u

d
in

g
:

W
ha

t d
oe

s 
it 

m
ea

n 
fo

r t
he

 U
K

?

A
u

to
m

o
ti

ve
: P

ro
du

ct
io

n 
of

 U
K

 m
ot

or
 

ve
hi

cl
es

 c
ou

ld
 in

cr
ea

se
 b

y 
7%

, a
nd

 
ex

po
rt

s 
co

ul
d 

in
cr

ea
se

 b
y 

ov
er

 £
4b

n.
 

P
h

ar
m

ac
eu

ti
ca

ls
: T

TI
P

 w
ill

 d
ec

re
as

e 
re

gu
la

to
ry

 d
up

lic
at

io
n 

in
 th

e 
E

U
 a

nd
 

U
S

, h
om

e 
to

 n
ea

rly
 6

0%
 o

f a
ll 

m
ed

i-
ci

ne
s 

in
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t w

or
ld

w
id

e.

C
h

em
ic

al
s 

an
d

 o
il:

 U
K

 c
om

pa
ni

es
 

-&
%"

)(
&#
(-
%$

<(
JM

LN
D
"(
'"
(&%

7'8
-(

al
on

e 
pe

r 
ye

ar
.

E
n

er
g

y:
 W

e 
co

ul
d 

us
e 

TT
IP

 to
 

ac
ce

ss
 U

S
 g

as
, w

hi
ch

 is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 
a 

th
ird

 o
f t

he
 E

U
 p

ric
e.

R
eg

io
na

l 
B

re
ak

do
w

n:

F
o

o
d

 &
 D

ri
n

k:
 2
B<

(;
#-

&(C
#7
(6
9
(3
7D

-(
of

 c
om

pl
yi

ng
 w

ith
 U

S
 re

gu
la

tio
ns

 
%"

)(
&%
7'8

-(
.#
$<

7(
%"

)(
%E

#$
<(
O
6
(7<

:4
-

la
tio

ns
) i

s 
eq

ui
va

le
nt

 to
 a

 1
3%

 ta
x.

F
in

an
ce

 a
n

d
 In

su
ra

n
ce

: U
K

 
ex

po
rt

s 
co

ul
d 

in
cr

ea
se

 b
y 

ov
er

 
£4

00
m

n.

P
u

b
lic

 P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t:
 O

nl
y 

32
%

 o
f 

th
e 

U
S

 p
ro

cu
re

m
en

t m
ar

ke
t i

s 
cu

r-
re

nt
ly

 o
pe

n 
to

 E
U

 b
us

in
es

se
s.

 

!"
A

 b
ig

 b
o

o
st

 t
o

 o
u

r 
ec

o
n

o
m

y:
 th

e 
de

al
 c

ou
ld

 a
dd

 £
10

 b
ill

io
n 

to
 th

e 
U

K
 e

co
no

m
y 

ea
ch

 y
ea

r. 

!"
#
$
%
$
&
'(
")
*
+"
,
-
(
.%
$
(
(
$
(
"*
)"
/
00
"(
.1
$
(
: c

om
pl

yi
ng

 w
ith

 b
eh

in
d-

th
e-

bo
rd

er
 re

gu
la

tio
n 

is
 m

or
e 

di
f-

3;
4,
&(C
#7
(-
D
%,
,(E

4-
'"
<-

-<
-(
>
B#

(B
%$

<(
C<
>
<7
(-
%,
<-

(&#
(-
=7
<%

)(
;#

D
=,
'%
";

<(
;#

-&
-(
#$

<7
1

!"
2
/
+.
3
(
"4
-
'5
(2
2!
H
(;
#4

,)
(-
%$

<(
6
9
(E
4-

'"
<-

-<
-(
&B
<(
PK

(E
',,
'#
"(
&B
<@

(=
%@

(&B
<(
6
*
(<
%;

B(
@<

%7
('"

(&%
7'8

-1
(

!"
L

o
w

er
 p

ri
ce

s 
fo

r 
U

K
 s

h
o

p
p

er
sQ
(2
2!
H
(;
#4

,)
(=
#&
<"

&'%
,,@
(7<

D
#$

<(
O
6
('D

=#
7&
(&%

7'8
-(
#"

(=
#=

4,
%7
(6
*
(

go
od

s 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

je
an

s 
(1

2%
) a

nd
 c

ar
s 

(1
0%

).

!"
L

es
s 

re
d

 t
ap

eQ
(R
<)

4;
'"
:(
7<
:4

,%
&#
7@
()
'8
<7
<"

;<
-(
>
',,
(B
<,
=(
6
9
(E
4-

'"
<-

-<
-(
&#
(<
S=

#7
&(&
#(
&B
<(
6
*
1((

!"
S

ta
n

d
ar

d
s 

m
ai

n
ta

in
ed

: E
U

 a
nd

 U
S

 re
gu

la
to

rs
 a

im
 a

t t
he

 s
am

e 
th

in
gs

 (s
af

e 
pr

od
uc

ts
, c

le
an

 

<"
$'
7#
"D

<"
&0(
E@

()
'8
<7
<"

&(D
<%

"-
1(T

<(
;%

"(
7<
)4

;<
()
'8
<7
<"

;<
-(
E4

&(D
%'
"&
%'
"(
#4

7(
B'
:B

(-
&%
")

%7
)-

1((

!"
M

ar
ke

ts
 o

p
en

ed
: B

rit
is

h 
la

m
b 

an
d 

ve
ni

so
n 

ca
n’

t c
ur

re
nt

ly
 b

e 
ex

po
rt

ed
 to

 th
e 

U
S

.

!"
W

id
er

 U
K

 a
im

s 
su

p
p

o
rt

ed
: D

ev
el

op
in

g 
co

un
tr

ie
s 

co
ul

d 
ha

ve
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 a
 la

rg
er

, s
im

pl
er

 a
nd

 

D
#7
<(
$'
E7
%"

&(D
%7
+<

&1(
22

!H
(;
#4

,)
(%
,-
#(
B<

,=
(3
"'
-B

(&B
<(
G
#B

%(
R
#4

")
(#
C(:

,#
E%

,(&
7%
)<

(&%
,+
-1
(((

/
%-

<)
(#
"(
-B

%7
<(
#C
(6
9
(<
S=

#7
&-
(&#

(6
*
(%
")

(U
O
H
R
(<
-&
'D

%&
<(
#C
(6
9
(E
<"

<3
&Page 52



 

 In
ve

st
or

-
St

at
e 

D
is

pu
te

 
Se

ttl
em

en
t:

FA !
"#
$%&

'%"
%(
)#
*)
(%
&'
%+)

",
)$
(%

Q
on

 th
e 

Tr
an

sa
tla

nt
ic

 T
ra

de
 a

nd
 

In
ve

st
m

en
t P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 (T

TI
P

)

IS
D

S
in nu

m
be

rs
:

0 
N

o 
IS

D
S 

ch
al

le
ng

e 
ha

s 
ev

er
 s

uc
ce

ed
-

ed
 a

ga
in

st
 th

e 
U

K
. D

es
pi

te
 th

e 
la

rg
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f t
re

at
ie

s 
in

 fo
rc

e 
w

ith
 IS

D
S

 
cl

au
se

s,
 th

er
e 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
on

ly 
tw

o 

43
IS

D
S 

ch
al

le
ng

es
 b

ro
ug

ht
 a

ga
in

st
 u

s.

U
K

 in
ve

st
or

s 
ha

ve
 b

ro
ug

ht
 a

t 
le

as
t 4

3 
IS

D
S

 c
la

im
s 

ag
ai

ns
t 

94
ot

he
r 

co
un

tr
ie

s 
to

 p
ro

te
ct

 th
ei

r 
in

ve
st

m
en

ts
. 

S
in

ce
 1

97
5 

th
e 

U
K

 h
as

 n
eg

ot
i-

at
ed

 9
4 

B
ila

te
ra

l I
nv

es
tm

en
t 

Tr
ea

tie
s 

(B
IT

s)
 a

lm
os

t a
ll 

of
 w

hi
ch

 
in

cl
ud

e 
IS

D
S

 p
ro

vi
si

on
s.

 M
os

t o
f 

th
es

e 
tr

ea
tie

s 
in

vo
lv

e 
co

un
tr

ie
s 

th
at

 a
re

 o
r 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
ne

t r
ec

ip
i-

en
ts

 o
f U

K
 in

ve
st

m
en

t r
at

he
r 

th
an

 
ne

t i
nv

es
to

rs
 in

 th
e 

U
K

. 

Th
er

e 
a

34
00

 In
A

gr
ee

m
fo

rc
e 

w
34

00
re

 a
ro

un
d 

ve
st

m
en

t 
en

ts
 in

 
or

ld
w

id
e.

 

H
ow

 tr
an

sp
ar

en
t 

ar
e 

pr
oc

ee
di

ng
s 

un
de

r I
SD

S?
-.

)#
)%
"#
)%
/*
0)

#)
1$
%23

4
3
%"
#5
*$#
"+
%6

)7
."

1*
(6

(%
"1

/%
#8
+)

1%
&

 t
h

t 
in

ro
vi

re
e

re
 i

 a
r

ei
n tin lu
d

tie
s(% '% e - - d s e g g e .

(9
)7

*:
)/

%*
1%

/*
0)

#)
1$
%$
#)
"$
*)
(;
%$
.)

%6
&(

$%
7&

6
6
&

w
hi

ch
 a

re
 s

et
 b

y 
bo

di
es

 o
f 

th
e 

W
or

ld
 B

an
k 

an
d

U
ni

te
d 

N
at

io
ns

. I
n 

th
e 

pa
st

 m
an

y 
tr

ea
tie

s 
ha

ve
 n

o
cl

ud
ed

 i
ns

tr
uc

tio
ns

 o
n 

tr
an

sp
ar

en
cy

 m
ea

ni
ng

 p
si

on
s 

ar
e 

de
ci

de
d 

on
 a

 c
as

e-
by

-c
as

e 
ba

si
s.

 
R

ec
en

tly
 th

e 
U

ni
te

d 
N

at
io

ns
 b

od
y 

(U
N

C
IT

R
A

L)
 a

g
a 

ne
w

 s
et

 o
f r

ul
es

 o
n 

tr
an

sp
ar

en
cy

 th
at

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
e

pu
bl

ic
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 h
ea

rin
gs

 a
nd

 th
at

 k
ey

 d
oc

um
en

ts
m

ad
e 

pu
bl

ic
ly

 a
va

ila
bl

e,
 w

ith
 t

he
 o

nl
y 

ex
ce

pt
io

n 
b

'&
#%
7&

1:
/)

1$
*"
+%*
1'
&#
6
"$
*&
1<
%

It 
w

ill
 s

oo
n 

be
 p

os
si

bl
e 

to
 a

pp
ly

 th
es

e 
ru

le
s 

to
 e

xi
s

tr
ea

tie
s 

an
d 

th
e 

E
U

 h
as

 s
ta

te
d 

its
 in

te
nt

io
n 

to
 in

c
th

e 
U

N
C

IT
R

A
L 

tr
an

sp
ar

en
cy

 r
ul

es
 in

 a
ll 

fu
tu

re
 tr

ea

C
ro

ss
-G

ov
er

nm
en

t w
or

k 
on

 T
TI

P
 is

 
le

d 
by

 th
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t f

or
 B

us
in

es
s,

 
21
1&

="
$*&

1%
"1

/%
3
>*
++(
%?@

23
A<%
-&
%:
1/

%&
8$
%

m
or

e,
 w

or
k 

w
ith

 u
s 

or
 g

et
 in

vo
lv

ed
 

in
 a

ny
 o

th
er

 w
ay

, c
on

ta
ct

 u
s 

on
:

 
   

 T
TI

P.
te

am
@

bi
s.

gs
i.g

ov
.u

k

Page 53



W
hy

’
21
=)

($
6
)1

$(
%&
=)

#(
)"

(%

s 
it 

ne
ed

ed
?

5B
%C
D
%7
&6

9"
1*
)(

%5
)1

):
$%5

&$
.%

th
e 

co
m

pa
ny

 a
nd

 th
e 

U
K

 e
co

no
m

y.
 In

ve
st

in
g 

in
 a

 fo
r-

ei
gn

 c
ou

nt
ry

 c
ar

rie
s 

le
ga

l 
an

d 
po

lit
ic

al
 r

is
k,

 p
ar

tic
u-

la
rly

 if
 t

he
 in

ve
st

or
’s

 le
ga

l r
ig

ht
s 

in
 r

el
at

io
n 

to
 a

ct
io

ns
 

by
 t

he
 h

os
t 

st
at

e 
ar

e 
un

cl
ea

r 
or

 h
ar

d 
to

 e
nf

or
ce

 i
n 

lo
ca

l c
ou

rt
s.

 

W
he

re
 i

nv
es

tm
en

t 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

is
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

in
 a

 t
re

at
y 

a 
m

ec
ha

ni
sm

 is
 n

ee
de

d 
to

 r
es

ol
ve

 d
is

pu
te

s 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
in

ve
st

or
 a

nd
 h

os
t 

st
at

e.
 I

S
D

S
 g

iv
es

 U
K

 i
nv

es
-

to
rs

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 in

de
pe

nd
en

t 
tr

ib
un

al
s 

an
d 

to
 p

os
si

bl
e 

co
m

pe
ns

at
io

n 
w

he
n 

th
ey

 a
re

 t
re

at
ed

 u
nf

ai
rly

 b
y 

ho
st

 
st

at
es

. 
It 

al
so

 d
et

er
s 

th
e 

ho
st

 s
ta

te
 f

ro
m

 a
ct

in
g 

un
-

'"
*#+
B%
*1
%$.

)%
:#
($
%9
+"
7)

<%

H
ow

 is
 IS

D
S

 
di

ffe
re

nt
 to

 o
th

er
 

di
sp

ut
e 

se
ttl

em
en

t 
m

ec
ha

ni
sm

s 
in

 
FT IS

D
S

 c
la

im
s 

ar

A
s?

e 
br

ou
gh

t 
di

re
ct

ly
 b

y 
in

ve
st

or
s 

an
d 

ca
n 

re
su

lt 
in

 d
am

ag
es

 a
w

ar
ds

 t
ha

t 
ar

e 
en

fo
rc

ea
bl

e 
in

te
rn

at
io

na
lly

 a
ga

in
st

 th
e 

ho
st

 s
ta

te
’s

 fo
re

ig
n 

as
se

ts
. 

IS
D

S
 d

oe
s 

no
t 

ex
te

nd
 t

o 
th

e 
ot

he
r 

no
n-

in
ve

st
m

en
t 

9#
&=

*(
*&
1(

%&
'%"

1%
E-

F
%(
87

.%
"(

%$"
#*0

%#
"$
)(

<%
T

 
an

he
se

 p
ro

vi
si

on
s 

ar
e 

us
ua

lly
 e

nf
or

ce
ab

le
 b

y 
st

at
e-

to
-

st
at

e 
cl

ai
m

s.
 S

ta
te

-t
o-

st
at

e 
cl

ai
m

s 
do

 n
ot

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
 

rig
ht

 t
o 

da
m

ag
es

. 
 I

ns
te

ad
, 

th
ey

 c
an

 l
ea

d 
to

 a
ut

ho
-

ris
ed

 t
ra

de
 s

an
ct

io
ns

 i
f 

a 
st

at
e 

fa
ils

 t
o 

co
m

pl
y 

w
ith

 
th

e 
ru

lin
g 

in
 a

 d
is

pu
te

, s
im

ila
r t

o 
cl

ai
m

s 
m

ad
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

W
or

ld
 T

ra
de

 O
rg

an
is

at
io

n 
un

de
r t

he
 W

TO
 tr

ea
tie

s.
 

IS
D

S
 g

iv
es

 i
nt

er

e 
he

ar
tr

ib
un

al
s.

 T
he

y 
m

us
t 

be
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

an
 a

lle
ge

d 
br

W
ha

t i
s 

IS
D

S?
na

tio
na

l 
in

ve
st

or
s 

th
e 

rig
ht

 t
o 

br
in

g 
a 

da
m

ag
es

 
cl

ai
m

 a
ga

in
st

 t
he

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t 

of
 t

he
 ‘

ho
st

’ 
st

at
e 

w
he

re
 t

he
 i

nv
es

t-
m

en
t 

is
 l

oc
at

ed
. 

C
la

im
s 

ar
d 

by
 i

nd
ep

en
de

nt
 i

nt
er

na
tio

na
l

ea
ch

 b
y 

th
e 

ho
st

 s
ta

te
 o

f a
n 

in
ve

st
m

en
t 

pr
ot

ec
tio

n 
co

m
m

itm
en

t 
ag

re
ed

 in
 a

 t
re

at
y 

be
tw

ee
n 

th
e 

ho
st

 s
ta

te
 a

nd
 t

he
 in

ve
st

or
’s

 h
om

e 
st

at
e.

 S
uc

h 
tr

ea
ty

 c
om

m
itm

en
ts

 u
su

al
ly

 in
-

cl
ud

e 
no

t 
di

sc
rim

in
at

in
g 

ag
ai

ns
t 

fo
re

ig
n 

in
ve

st
or

s,
 p

ro
te

ct
in

g 
in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 f

ro
m

 e
xp

ro
pr

ia
tio

n 
by

 t
he

 h
os

t 
st

at
e,

 
gu

ar
an

te
ei

ng
 c

er
ta

in
 m

in
im

um
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 o
f 

tr
ea

tm
en

t 
an

d 
al

lo
w

in
g 

fr
ee

 t
ra

ns
fe

r 
of

 c
ap

ita
l. 

Th
e 

tr
ib

un
al

 m
ay

 
aw

ar
d 

da
m

ag
es

 t
o 

th
e 

in
ve

st
or

 i
f 

th
e 

ho
st

 s
ta

te
 h

as
 b

re
ac

he
d 

a 
co

m
m

itm
en

t. 
IS

D
S

 t
hu

s 
pr

ov
id

es
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 
pr N

o.
 O

n 
th

e 
rig

ht
 t

er
m

s,
 I

S
D

S
 d

oe
s 

no
t 

pr

Is
 it

 a
 th

r
ot

ec
tio

n 
fo

r 
in

ve
st

or
s,

 o
ve

r 
an

d 
ab

ov
e 

an
y 

pr

ea
t t

o 
U

K
 s

ov
er

ot
ec

tio
n 

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

ho
st

 s
ta

te
’

ev
en

t 
th

e 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t 
fr

om
 c

ha
ng

in
g 

its
 p

ol
ic

ie
s 

or
 r

ei
gn

ty
?

s 
do

m
es

tic
 la

w
s 

an
d 

co
ur

ts
. 

eg
ul

at
in

g 
in

 t
he

 
pu

bl
ic

 in
te

re
st

, p
ro

vi
de

d 
th

at
 is

 d
on

e 
in

 a
 fa

ir 
an

d 
no

n-
di

sc
rim

in
at

or
y 

w
ay

. N
or

 d
oe

s 
IS

D
S

 a
llo

w
 tr

ib
un

al
s 

to
 o

ve
r-

tu
rn

 a
 h

os
t s

ta
te

’s
 la

w
s.

 T
rib

un
al

s 
ca

n 
or

de
r 

a 
ho

st
 s

ta
te

 to
 p

ay
 c

om
pe

ns
at

io
n,

 b
ut

 o
nl

y 
if 

it 
ha

s 
br

ea
ch

ed
  

 
   

   
its

 tr
ea

ty
 o

bl
ig

at
io

ns
.

In
ve

st
m

en
t P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
pl

ay
s 

a 
vi

ta
l r

ol
e 

 in
 s

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

th
e 

ga
in

s 
of

 in
te

rn
at

io
na

l i
nv

es
t-

!
"#

$%
&'
#(

&$)
"&
$*'

("
&$)

'$
&(
"+

"#
(%

&,
#&
$)
"!

-&.
"#

"/
$0#

1&
+*
,(

23
"*
%&
'#

(&
3,

#%
2!

"*
%&
'4
05
"6
&

It 
ha

s 
be

en
 in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 e
ve

ry
 B

rit
is

h 
in

ve
st

m
en

t d
ea

l, 
w

ith
ou

t d
oi

ng
 th

e 
sl

ig
ht

es
t d

am
ag

e 
$,
&3
,#

%2
!
"*
&+
*,
$"
3$
0,
#&
,*
&2
#(

"*
!
0#
0#
1&
,2

*&%
,7

"*
"0
1#

$8
&,
*&,

2*
&4"
1'

4&%
8%
$"
!
6&

&
&

&
&

&
&

&
&

9
$&:

,#
&;
"#

#"
$)
&<
4'
*5
"&
=
<
&>

?-
&@
AB

C

   
 W

ha
t’s

 th
e 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t’s

 p
os

iti
on

 
on

 IS
D

S 
in

 c
ur

r
Th

e 
U

K
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t w
ill

 c
on

si
de

r I
S

D
S

 p
ro

vi
si

on
s 

en
t F

T
in

 F
TA

s 
on

 A
 n

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
?

a 
ca

se
-b

y-
ca

se
 b

as
is

 a
nd

 b
ea

rin
g 

in
 m

in
d 

th
e 

te
rm

s 
of

 t
he

 w
id

er
 a

gr
ee

m
en

t. 
Th

e 
U

K
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t 
is

 a
w

ar
e 

of
 t

he
 r

is
ks

 o
f 

ag
re

ei
ng

 I
S

D
S

 p
ro

vi
si

on
s 

on
 t

he
 w

ro
ng

 
te

rm
s,

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 in
 a

gr
ee

m
en

ts
 w

ith
 c

ou
nt

rie
s 

w
hi

ch
 a

re
 a

 m
aj

or
 s

ou
rc

e 
of

 in
ve

st
m

en
t 

in
to

 t
he

 U
K

. T
he

 U
K

 w
ill

 
no

t s
up

po
rt

 IS
D

S
 p

ro
vi

si
on

s 
in

 E
U

 T
re

at
ie

s 
th

at
 re

st
ric

t t
he

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t’s

 c
ap

ac
ity

 to
 g

ov
er

n 
fa

irl
y 

an
d 

in
 th

e 
pu

b-
lic

 in
te

re
st

 in
 a

ny
 p

ol
ic

y 
ar

ea
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 p
ub

lic
 h

ea
lth

, l
ab

ou
r s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 o
r t

he
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

t. 
S

af
eg

ua
rd

s 
pr

ot
ec

tin
g 

th
es

e 
po

lic
y 

ar

W
ha

t a
bo

ut
 in

 T
TI

P?
ea

s 
ar

e 
re

gu
la

rly
 in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 in

to
 F

TA
s 

an
d 

B
IT

s.

Th
e 

U
K

 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t 
w

el
co

m
es

 
th

e 
E

ur
op

e
C

om
m

is
si

on
’s

 f
or

th
co

m
in

g 
pu

bl
ic

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

on
 

th
e 

m
er

its
 o

f 
IS

D
S

 i
n 

th
e 

Tr
an

sa
tla

nt
ic

 T
ra

de
 a

nd
 

In
ve

st
m

en
t 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 (
TT

IP
). 

Th
e 

U
S

 h
as

 s
up

po
rt

ed
 I

S
D

S
 c

la
us

es
 i

n 
ot

he
r 

tr
ad

e 
ag

re
em

en
ts

 i
nc

lu
di

ng
 t

he
 

-#
"1

(G
!
"7

*:
7%
!
"#
$1
)#
(.

*9
;%"

1/
%"
+#)

"/
B%
."

(%
@
2-
(%
H
*$.

%1
*1
)%
I
C
%J

)6
5)

#%3
$"
$)
(;
%5
8$
%1
&$
%$.

)%
C
D
<%F

$%$
.*
(%
)"

#+B
%(
$"
K)

%*1
%

1)
K&

$*"
$*&

1(
%*$
%*(
%1
&$
%9
&(

(*
5+
)%
$&
%9
#&
=*
/)

%6
&#
)%
(9

)7
*:
7%
/)

$"
*+<
%2'
%23

4
3
%H

)#
)%
$&
%5
)%
*1
7+
8/

)/
%$.

)1
%H

)%
H
&8

+/
%9
#)
((

%'&
#%

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 th

at
 s

tr
ik

e 
th

e 
rig

ht
 b

al
an

ce
 b

et
w

ee
n 

in
ve

st
m

en
t p

ro
te

ct
io

n 
an

d 
th

e 
rig

ht
s 

of
 g

ov
er

nm
en

t t
o 

re
gu

la
te

. 

Page 54



TTIP will only benefit the big corporations. 

TTIP will directly benefit consumers.  It will widen the range of products available, 
giving consumers more choice.  It will also reduce trade costs, leading to cheaper 
goods.  The average benefit for a family of four is estimated at around £400 per 
year1. 

TTIP will directly benefit small businesses.  They will find it easier to export – a direct 
consequence of TTIP reducing duplication and red tape – but without 
compromising safety standards. 

The EU has no mandate in TTIP to lower our food standards.  It will be easier for food 
producers on either side to export, but only if they conform to each side’s rules on 
food standards and genetically modified crops. 

The high environmental standards and targets which we have in place are non-
negotiable. This has been made clear repeatedly by both the US and the EU.  The 
EU will also use an independent analysis2, which sets out recommendations to 
minimise the environmental impacts of TTIP, to inform its position. 

TTIP will not change the way that the NHS, or other public services, is run.  Access to 
NHS services will continue to be based on patients’ needs, not ability to pay.  
Local NHS commissioners will remain in charge of deciding who should provide 
services in the best interests of patients.  The European Commission is following 
our approach that it must always be for the UK to decide for itself whether or not 
to open up our public services to competition. 

TTIP will let GM foods and hormone beef from the US flood our 
supermarket shelves. 

TTIP will decrease environmental standards. 

TTIP opens the door to privatisation of the NHS. 

Transatlantic 
Trade and 
Investment 
Partnership 

Separating 
Myth 
from 
fact 

Part of a series of leaflets from the UK 
Government 

Page 55



The EU has made it clear that the freedom of national governments to regulate would 
be explicitly protected.  The Investor-State Dispute Settlement (ISDS) provisions 
being discussed cannot overturn laws.  Their purpose is to protect our investors 
from discriminatory treatment by protectionist governments, whilst safeguarding 
the Government’s freedom to make laws and regulations in the public interest.  
The UK already has over 90 bilateral investment agreements in place, the 
majority of which include similar provisions, and has never lost a case.  The 
Commission recognises that there are public concerns about this and launched 
a public consultation to inform its position. 

We need to remember that this is a negotiation, and making our position available 
publicly will jeopardise our chances of getting the best deal for the EU.  The 
Commission consulted publicly on its negotiating priorities and investment 
protection, holds regular meetings with the public and published 11 position 
papers which give detailed information about the negotiations3.  It is holding one 
of the most transparent negotiations it has ever done.  

The UK Parliament will have an opportunity to scrutinise the final agreement through 
debates in both Houses.  Any eventual deal will have to be agreed by both the EU 
Council (representing the elected governments of the EU countries) and the 
European Parliament (whose members are democratically elected).  This is the 
same process by which other trade agreements, such as EU-Korea, were 
agreed.  The Government will also continue to update the UK Parliament on the 
progress of the negotiations.  TTIP is also the subject of a House of Lords 
enquiry4 and an All-Party Parliamentary Group. 

UK sovereignty will be threatened by a deal on TTIP.  Big corporations will be able 
to use investment protection provisions to overturn UK laws. 

The European Commission is doing deals in secret. 

TTIP is being agreed by a European institution which was not 
democratically elected. 

To find out more, raise your concerns or get involved in any other 
way contact us at: ttip.team@bis.gsi.gov.uk 

or see www.gov.uk/government/collections/transatlantic-trade-and-
investment-partnership-ttip 

and ec.europa.eu/trade/policy/in-focus/ttip/  

1http://trade.ec.europa.eu/doclib/html/150737.htm 
2http://ec.europa.eu/trade/policy/policy-making/analysis/sustainability-impact-assessments/assessments 
3http://ec.europa.eu/trade/policy/in-focus/ttip/resources/#documents 
4http://www.parliament.uk/business/committees/committees-a-z/lords-select/eu---foreign-affairs-defence-and-development-
policy-sub-committee-c/inquiries/parliament-2010/eu-us-fta 

Page 56



COUNCIL 17TH DECEMBER 2014 
 
OFFICER BRIEFING NOTE 
 
 
Notice of Motion – 5 Year Housing Land Supply Statement  
 
Proposer: Cllr Hamilton-Cox  
Seconder: Cllr Brookes, Cllr Barry 
 
This council resolves: 
 
'To ask officers to produce a public briefing note for councillors on the 5-year housing land 
supply statement focussed on how the calculation of the under-supply of 1695 homes is 
justified when set against the available data on growth of population, household formation 
and employment  between 2001 and 2011. Full council asks that the briefing note should be 
based on attributable data and should compare the data with the projections and forecasts 
for population, household formation and employment which presumably informed the target 
of 400 homes per year against which housing delivery is deemed to have fallen short to 
2011. 
 Full council further resolves that the briefing note be circulated to councillors not later than 
Wednesday 14th January 2015. 
 
The proposers of the motion note the census data which shows that the district's population 
increased by 4461 between 2001 and 2011. The city council's Housing Land Monitoring 
Reports show that the number of homes completed in the district between 2001-02 and 
2010-11 was 3223. This is a ratio of 1.38 people per new household. The average 
household size at the 2011 census was 2.27 people.' 
 
Officers can prepare such a note though Members will need to recognise that a public 
briefing note that critiques different lines of policy positions (national and local) may be 
tactically useful to Planning Consultants representing private sector interests in potential 
appeals on specific applications.  

 

 

Monitoring Officer Comments 

The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments. 

Section 151 Officer Comments  

The Section 151 Officer has been consulted and has no further comments at this stage. 

 

Agenda Item 14Page 57



COUNCIL  
 
 

Recordings of Meetings 
17 December 2014 

 
Report of the Chief Officer (Governance) 

 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
This report, providing information on the costs of recording Council meetings, was requested 
by Council at its meeting on 22 October 2014. 
 
 

This report is public  

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
(1) Council is asked to consider the information in this report on the costs 

of recording Council meetings. 
 
1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 At its meeting on 22 October 2014, Council approved necessary changes to 

the Council’s constitution to ensure consistency with the Openness of Local 
Government Bodies Regulations 2014. 

 
1.2 During debate, it was suggested that Council might keep its own recordings of 

meetings “to avoid future misrepresentation and misquotation” as a result of 
observers recording meetings themselves. 

 
1.3 It was noted that there would be cost implications to the recording of meetings 

and Council therefore resolved: 
 

“That a further report be brought back to Council with information on 
the costs of keeping its own recordings of meetings to avoid future 
misrepresentation and misquotation.” 

 
1.4 This report provides the necessary cost estimates and additional background 

information about the last time this issue was considered by Council, in 2013. 
 

 
2.0 Background 
 
2.1 On 13 May 2013, Councillor Mace proposed the following motion to Council: 
 

"That Council adds digital recording equipment to the new system of 
microphones in the Council Chamber and makes recordings of council 

Agenda Item 15 Page 58



meetings publicly available on the Council's website." 
 
2.2 Council resolved: 
 
 “That Council asks Council Business Committee to consider adding digital 

recording equipment to the new system of microphones in the Council 
Chamber and making recordings of council meetings publicly available on the 
Council’s web site. Council further asks Council Business Committee also 
consider the costs and practicalities of webcasting Council meetings as soon 
as possible.” 

 
2.3 Council Business Committee considered a report with costings and reported 

back to Council on 17 July 2013. At the Council meeting on 17 July 2013, the 
following motion was considered: 

 
“That speakers in Council meetings declare their names before 
speaking, always use a microphone and that sound recordings be 
prepared on an experimental basis and made available to Members 
and officers on request, prior to further consideration of the subject in 
budget discussions for 2014/15. 
 
That recording should stop when a restricted item is being discussed 
and the requirement for giving one’s name and speaking into the 
microphone should be limited to the period of the experiment and that 
a further decision on continuing the experiment should be made after 
3 council meetings have been recorded.” 

 
2.4 The motion was lost with 16 Members for the motion, 29 Members against 

and 3 abstentions. 
 
3.0 Equipment and Installation Costs for Audio Recordings 
 
3.1 The Democratic Services Manager has sought up to date costings for 

audiotaping and webcasting. A digital taping system to add on to the current 
microphones at Morecambe Town Hall would be in the region of £500 
including installation and nine additional microphone units and two charging 
blocks would also need to be purchased to ensure sound quality. Currently, 
the microphones are £650 per unit and the charging blocks are £480 each, 
making a total cost of approximately £7,310.  

 
3.2 However, the microphone system installed at Morecambe Town Hall is soon 

to be discontinued by the supplier, and it may not be possible to purchase 
new microphones and charging blocks which would be compatible with our 
system.  Our supplier has checked stock levels of the matching units, and 
supplies are very low. If matching units are not available, the costs quoted 
above are likely to be higher because of the installation difficulties regarding 
compatibility.  

 
4.0 Costing for Webcasting  

4.1 The equipment, installation and ongoing costs for webcasting meetings to a 
sufficiently high standard are considerable. An established provider of 
webcast services to local authorities has provided an estimate of around 
£15,660 for the first twelve months which would include a total package 
comprising: 

Page 59



• leased hardware (4 cameras and cabling) 
• software licence  
• project management  
• installation, support, maintenance and training 
• 30 hours per annum content fully hosted 

An exact figure could only be given if a site survey was undertaken and there 
are discounts for longer leases if paid up front. Examples of the standard of 
broadcasts can be viewed on the Lancashire County Council and Leicester 
City Council websites. 
 
Whilst it would be possible to film meetings at a cheaper cost, the quality 
would be poor and unlikely to meet public expectations of new technology.  

 
5.0 Additional Costs and other Issues 
 
5.1 Staff costs also have to be taken into consideration. If audio tapes are to be 

put on the Council’s website, there would be officer time involved in 
maintaining and updating the library. If recordings are to be made purely for 
the benefit of Members and Officers, access would have to be given on 
request, or the recordings uploaded to the Council’s intranet, both of which 
would entail officer time. Any confidential or exempt items discussed could 
not, of course, be recorded by any method and made available to the public. 
The recording equipment would need to be stopped and restarted again or 
editing would need to take place before the files could be made available. 

 
5.2 In addition, any recording system could only be used for full council meetings 

and other meetings in the Council Chamber at Morecambe Town Hall. The 
equipment would not be transportable to use for Committee meetings in other 
rooms at Morecambe Town Hall or at Lancaster Town Hall.  

 
6.0 Misrepresentation/Misquotation 
 
6.1 The additional costs noted above are considerable, even for a simple system 

of digital recording. The future risk of misrepresentation or misquotation would 
clearly need to be significant to justify the cost. Officer advice would be that 
the risk is minimal. At this point it is impossible to predict whether any 
members of the public or media will wish to record Council meetings and put 
those recordings in the public domain. It is also not clear how audio 
recordings would assist if someone deliberately chose to record snippets of 
debate at a Council meeting and piece them together to misrepresent the 
words said. There are many instances of high profile politicians, including the 
Prime Minister, who have recently been parodied by ‘mashup’ artists such as 
‘Cassetteboy’ and there appears to be little that can be done about it. 

 
7.0 Conclusion 
 
7.1 Council is asked to consider the costings in this report and the financial and 

resource implications of recording meetings and balance those against their 
concerns that Members may be misrepresented or misquoted as a result of 
observers recording meetings.  

 
 
 

Page 60



CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
(including Health & Safety, Equality & Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, 
Sustainability and Rural Proofing) 
None. 
 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 It should be emphasised that there is no legal requirement for the Council itself to record or 
film meetings.  The 2014 Regulations simply permit any person attending a meeting to do 
so.  
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
The financial implications of the equipment needed are set out in the report but are only 
rough estimates ranging from one off costs of £7,310 to costs of up to £15,660 per annum. If 
it is decided to go ahead with a recording system a final estimate will need to be reported 
and built into future year’s budgets as part of the budget process. There will be some staff 
time involved as well, but it is expected that this will be managed within existing budgets. 
 

OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
Human Resources: 
Officer time would be required to operate, maintain, edit and upload or provide access to the 
files. 
Information Services: 
Limited ICT staff resources would be required with regard to planning and implementation of 
a system. It is assumed that none of the audio-video files would be stored on the council’s 
network storage facility; if this is not the case then there would be cost implications because 
such files, especial video ones, can be very large. 
Property: 
None. 
Open Spaces: 
None. 

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
If Members are minded to put forward audio recording or webcasting for consideration as 
part of the budget, then in order to demonstrate value for money to the taxpayer there should 
be a reasonable case that the investment is expected to provide worthwhile benefits, 
informed by the needs of potential users. 
 
Cost/benefit analysis should inform prioritisation of budget proposals, in context of what is 
affordable. 
 
Based on information to date, there is no such case presented. The S151 Officer cannot 
see, therefore, a reasonable basis on which to support such investment at this time. 
 
 

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments. 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
None. 
 

Contact Officer: Debbie Chambers 
Telephone:01524582057 
E-mail: dchambers@lancaster.gov.uk 
Ref:  

 
 

Page 61



 

COUNCIL  
 
 
Review of Polling Districts and Polling Places 2014 

17 December 2014 
 

Report of the Chief Officer (Governance) 
 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
To enable Council to consider arrangements for determining the outcome of the review of 
polling districts and polling places in the Parliamentary Constituencies of Morecambe and 
Lunesdale and Lancaster and Fleetwood. 
 

This report is public  

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
(1) Council is asked to delegate consideration of the review of polling 

districts and polling places to a specially convened meeting of Council 
Business Committee in January, to comply with the legislative 
timetable. Council is also asked to delegate powers to Council 
Business Committee to authorise publication of prescribed statutory 
information about the outcome of the review. 

 
(2) To authorise the Returning Officer, in consultation with the relevant 

ward Councillors, to make any necessary changes to polling places that 
may arise other than as part of a review. 

 
1.0 Background 
 
1.1 Section 17 of the Electoral Registration and Administration Act 2013 

introduced a duty on local authorities to carry out and complete a review of 
polling districts and polling places between 1 October 2013 and 31 January 
2015 and then in the period of 16 months beginning with 1 October of every 
fifth year after that. This ties in with fixed term Parliaments so that a review is 
completed before each Parliamentary election. 
 

1.2  For clarification, a “polling district” is defined as the geographical area 
created by sub-dividing a constituency/ward; a “polling place” is defined as a 
designated area for a polling district in which polling stations are located and 
a “polling station” is defined as the room in which polling takes place.  

 
 
2.0 Boundary Changes 
 
2.1 Since the last polling district review in 2011, the Local Government Boundary 

Agenda Item 16 Page 62



Commission for England (LGBCE) has carried out a review of the City 
Council’s wards and changed the boundaries and names of some wards. 
There are some complex changes to parish wards too, as a consequence of 
the City ward changes. For example, Morecambe Town Council has 6 wards 
presently, but this will increase to 11 wards for the 2015 elections. 

 
2.2 The timing of the review was chosen so that the changes made by the 

LGBCE could be incorporated into the review and the intention is to publish 
the electoral register on the new boundaries in January 2015.  

 
3.0 Consultation  
 
3.1 The consultation started on 8 August and Councillors were sent a list of the 

draft proposals and streets within each proposed polling district for 
consideration. Comments were received, and some inconsistencies were 
flagged up. The deadline for responses has now closed.  

 
3.2 The boundary review was extensive and will entail a significant amount of 

detailed work. Officers are starting to draw up a definitive list of streets and 
properties on the new boundaries and will change the boundaries on the 
electoral management software accordingly. However, the review must be 
completed before 31 January 2015 and that timescale does not fit with the 
scheduled meetings of full Council. The next full Council meeting is due to be 
held on 4 February 2015. 

 
4.0 Proposal 
 
4.1 The options for considering the review are: 
 

a)  to call a special meeting of Council to consider the matter in January 
b) to delegate consideration of the matter to Council Business Committee 

for consideration at a special meeting in January. 
 
 In the interests of saving Councillors’ and officers’ time and the expense of 

holding an extra Council meeting, officers recommend option b. All the 
information about the review (consultation, lists of streets in each proposed 
polling district, etc) will, of course, be sent to every Member of Council for 
their information as soon as the Council Business Committee agenda is 
published, so that any further comments can be made to Democratic Services 
or passed to Members of Council Business Committee to bring to the 
meeting. 

  
5.0 Conclusion 
 
5.1 Council must complete a review its polling districts and polling places by 31 

January 2015. In view of this timeframe, Council is recommended to delegate 
consideration of the review to a special meeting of Council Business 
Committee in January 2015. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 63



CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
(including Health & Safety, Equality & Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, 
Sustainability and Rural Proofing) 
 
None. 
 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
Council has a legal obligation to carry out this review within the timescale set out in the 
report.  
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
Holding an extraordinary meeting of Council Business Committee rather than an 
extraordinary meeting of Council would save costs of officer time and travel reimbursement 
for Councillor and Officers, as well as small savings on refreshments, etc.  
 

OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
Human Resources: 
None. 
Information Services: 
None. 
Property: 
None. 
Open Spaces: 
None. 

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
The Section 151 Officer has been consulted and has no further comments. 

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments. 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
None. 
 

Contact Officer: Debbie Chambers 
Telephone:01524582057 
E-mail: dchambers@lancaster.gov.uk 
Ref:  

 
 

Page 64



 

 

COUNCIL  
 
  

Allocation of Seats to Political Groups 
17 December 2014 

 
Report of Chief Executive 

  
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
To advise Council of the calculations relating to the allocation of seats in accordance with 
the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 and the Council’s agreed protocol, following 
the death of a Councillor. 
 

 
This report is public  
 

 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
(1) That in accordance with Section 15 of the Local Government and Housing Act, 

1989 and Part 4 of the Local Government (Committees and Political Groups) 
Regulations, 1990, the City Council approves the calculations and allocation of 
seats set out in paragraph 2 of the report. 

 
(2) That the adjustment required to the membership of the Licensing Act Committee 

detailed in paragraph 2.5 of the report, be approved.   
 
 
1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 As Members are aware, Councillor Val Histed sadly passed away on 22 November 

2014.  This causes a change to the number of Councillors and requires a report on the 
recalculation of the proportional representation arrangements to the first available 
Council meeting in accordance with the Local Government and Housing Act 1989.  

 
1.2 The revised calculations in relation to numbers from 1 to 20 are attached at Appendix 

A for information.  Details of the effect of these calculations in respect of the current 
decision-making structure and agreed groupings of committees are set out in 
paragraph 2 below. 

 
1.3 Members are requested to approve the calculation in order to enable an adjustment to 

be made to appointments to committees to reflect the revised make-up of the Council.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 17Page 65



2.0 Calculations 
 
2.1 Composition of the Council  

 
  
Labour 21 
Conservatives 15 
Independents 10 
Green 10 
Free Independents  
Non-aligned Independent Member  

2 
1 

 59 
  

2.2 Overview & Scrutiny 
 
2.3 The PR Calculation for a single 9 Member Committee is 3:2:2:2 and the grouping of 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee and Budget & Performance Panel is as follows:- 
 

9 + 9 = 18 (-:- 59) = 0.3050 seats per Member. 
 
L    21  x 0.3050 = 6.4050  = 6 
C   15  x 0.3050 = 4.5750  = 5 
I    10  x 0.3050 = 3.0500  = 3 
G    10  x 0.3050 = 3.0500  = 3 
FI   2    x 0.3050 = 0.6100  = 1 
Councillor Harrison 1    x 0.3050 = 0.3050  = 0 
 
This calculation remains the same and no changes are required. 

 
2.4  Regulatory and Standing Committees of Council Grouping 
 
2.5 The PR calculation for 15 Member Committees (Planning and Highways Regulatory 

and Licensing Act)  is unchanged at 5:4:2:2:1:0 with a tie for the final place between 
the Green Group and the Independent Group. The 9 Member Licensing Regulatory 
Committee is unchanged at 3:2:2:2:0:0 and the 7 Member Committee calculation (for 
Personnel and Audit) is unchanged at 2:2:1:1:0:0 with a tie for the final place between 
the Green Group and the Independent Group. The total seats to be allocated for the 
grouping comprising Planning and Highways Regulatory, Licensing Act, Licensing 
Regulatory, Personnel and Audit Committees is now as follows:- 

15 + 15 + 9 + 7 + 7 = 53 (-:- 59) = 0.8983 seats per Member. 

L   21 x 0.8983 = 18.8643 = 19 

C   15 x 0.8983 = 13.4745 = 13 

I   10 x 0.8983 =   8.8983 =   9 

G   10 x 0.8983 =   8.8983 =   9 

FI    2 x 0.8983 =   1.7966 =   2 

Councillor Harrison  1 x 0.8983 =   0.8983 =   1 
           53 
 
 This is a change from 18:13:9:9:2:1:1 to 19:13:9:9:2:1 which means that the Labour 

Group receive the place on the Licensing Act Committee formerly held by Councillor 
Histed.  

 
 

Page 66



2.6 Other Standing Committees 
 
2.7 Remaining Standing Committees currently constituted with a PR of 7 are the 

Appeals, Council Business and Standards Committees.  The PR calculation for these 
is 2:2:1:1:0:0 with a tie for the final place between the Green Group and the 
Independent Group. No adjustments to membership are required, the tied places 
were decided at the Council meeting on 16 July 2014 by the drawing of lots, the 
Green group taking the final places on all three Committees.  

 
2.8      Appraisal Panel 
 
2.9 The Appraisal Panel is a member panel of seven members appointed on a PR basis, 

although not a formal Committee of Council. The PR calculation for the Panel is 
2:2:1:1:0:0 with a tie for the final place between the Green Group and the 
Independent Group. No adjustments to membership are required, the tied place was 
decided in favour of the Independent group at the Council meeting on 16 July 2014, 
by the drawing of lots. 

 
3.0 Conclusion 
 
3.1 Members are requested to approve the calculations and the adjustment required as 

set out in paragraph 2.5 of this report, in order to enable the required change to 
appointments to be made at this meeting.  

 

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and Rural 
Proofing) 
 
There are no direct implications as a result of this report. 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
There are no financial implications as a direct result of this report. 
 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
This report has been prepared in accordance with the provisions of Section 15 of the Local 
Government and Housing Act, 1989 and Part 4 of the Local Government (Committees and 
Political Groups) Regulations 1990. 
 

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
The Section 151 Officer has been consulted and has no further comments. 

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments. 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
 

Contact Officer: Debbie Chambers 
Telephone:  01524 582057 
E-mail: dchambers@lancaster.gov.uk 

 

Page 67



 

P.R. LIST 
 

 

  Lab 
 

Cons 
 

Inde 
Group Green Free 

Inde  

 
Non-  

aligned  
Inde 

1 = 1      
2 = 1 1     
3 = 1 1 * *   
4 = 1 1 1 1   
5 = 2 1 1 1   
6 = 2 2 1 1   
7 = 2 2 1* 1*   
8 = 3 2 1* 1*   
9 = 3 2 2 2   
10 = 4 3 1* 1*   
11 = 4 3 2 2   
12 = 4 3 2* 2*   
13 = 5 3 2 2 1  
14 = 5 4 2 2 1  
15 = 5 4 2* 2* 1  
16 = 6 4 2* 2* 1  
17 = 6 4 3 3 1  
18 = 6 5 3 3 1  
19 = 7 5 3 3 1  
20 = 7 5 3* 3* 1  

 
*indicates where there is a tie for the final seat between the Independent Group and the 
Green Group, both groups having 10 Members each. 
 
 

      
Labour      21 
Conservative     15 
Independent     10 
Green      10 
Free Independent      2 
Non-aligned Independent Member   1 
 
TOTAL      59 

 
 

 
 
 
As at December  2014 

 

Appendix A Page 68



COUNCIL  
 

Local Plan for Lancaster District 2011 – 2031: The 
Adoption of the Development Management and 
Morecambe Area Action Plan Development Plan 

Documents 
 

17 December 2014 
 

Report of Chief Officer (Regeneration and Planning) 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
To seek a council resolution to formally adopt the Development Management Development 
Plan Document (DPD) [Planning Policies] and the Morecambe Area Action Plan DPD as part 
of the Local Plan for Lancaster District 2011 – 2031. This report describes the processes 
that have led to the preparation of these documents, including independent Public 
Examination, and the process for formal adoption of the DPDs. 
 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

(1) That the council resolves to adopt both the Development Management 
Development Plan Document (DPD) [Planning Policies] and the 
Morecambe Area Action Plan (MAAP) DPD as part the Local Plan for 
Lancaster District 2011–2031. 

(2) Should the Council resolve to adopt both DPDs that the necessary 
measures are undertaken to publicise their adoption in accordance with 
national legislation. 

(3) Additionally, following the revision of National Planning Practice 
Guidance on Affordable Housing contributions that was published on 
Friday 28th November, the council also publishes a clarification note on 
the implementation of Development Management Policy DM41, New 
Residential Dwellings, to the effect that the council acknowledges the 
revised guidance and the implications for the implementation of 
affordable housing policy, and accordingly will use an interim approach 
when negotiating for complements of Affordable Housing, as described 
within the clarification note.  The council is further committed to; 

a. Preparing an NPPG-compliant interim policy through an imminent 
revision of the Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) on Meeting 
Housing Needs, and, 

b. Formally revising Policy DM41 through a review of the Development 
Management DPD following a refresh of evidence on development 
viability which will accompany the preparation of the forthcoming 
Land Allocations Document.  

Agenda Item 18Page 69



c. A draft edition of the proposed interim approach (as described in the 
first paragraph of this recommendation) is attached to this report as 
Appendix 3. This interim approach described will be applicable 
immediately upon the adoption of the DPD and in advance of the 
further actions to which the council is committed in 3a and 3b above.  

1.0 Introduction 

1.1 A report was presented to council on 11 September 2013 seeking a resolution 
to publish and consult upon a ‘publication’ version of both the Development 
Management DPD and the Morecambe Area Action Plan DPD, and, following 
the statutory publication period, that both documents be submitted to the 
Secretary of State via the Planning Inspectorate for independent Examination. 
 

1.2 Consequently the ‘publication’ period for both DPDs commenced on 10 
October 2013. This was for a six-week period concluding on 21 November 
2013. The council invited representations to both DPDs in respect of their 
compliance with national legislation and consistency with national planning 
policy. In total 253 representations were received to the Development 
Management DPD (from 34 separate parties or organisations) and 18 
representations were received to the Morecambe Area Action Plan DPD (from 
11 separate parties or organisations). 
 

1.3 The council submitted the DPDs, along with representations received and 
supporting information, to the Secretary of State (via the Planning 
Inspectorate) on 12 December 2013. With the submission of the DPDs the 
independent Examination commenced. 

 

2.0 Background 

2.1 The Examination provided the final opportunity for interested parties to 
influence the preparation of a development plan document and for any 
remaining concerns to be considered by a Planning Inspector. The Planning 
Inspector then concludes on whether the DPDs are ‘sound’ in terms of their 
compliance with national legislation and national planning guidance. 

 
2.2 Local hearing sessions took place at Morecambe Town Hall between 1 April 

and 9 April 2014. Specific topics and questions set by the Inspector were 
discussed in a round-table format. The hearings were open to the public but 
participation in the discussion sessions is by invitation of the Inspector.  
Council officers robustly defended the policy in the documents against often 
assertive cases made by the other parties, generally representatives from the 
development industry. 
 

2.3 Officers then compiled a series of ‘Proposed Modifications’ or, suggested 
changes, to the DPDs. The purpose of these was to provide improved clarity 
and provide greater consistency with national planning guidance.  
 

2.4 Consultation on the ‘Proposed Modifications’ was held for a six-week period, 
commencing on 28 May and concluding on the 11 July 2014.  Following the 
conclusion of the consultation the representations were sent to the Planning 
Inspector. 
 

Page 70



2.5 The council received the Inspector’s report on 22 September. The Inspector 
concluded that both the Development Management DPD and the MAAP DPD 
“provide an appropriate basis for the planning of the District”, providing a 
number of modifications are made to the plans; that is, he concluded that the 
documents were soundly prepared and can now be adopted providing that 
they are adopted with his binding modifications.  
 

3.0 Proposal Details 

3.1 The Development Management DPD sets out planning policies which will be 
used by the council to determine planning applications in order to deliver 
sustainable development. The Morecambe Area Action Plan DPD sets a 
planning framework for the regeneration of central Morecambe and the 
initiatives and actions required to help deliver this objective. The DPD seeks 
to provide a positive framework to encourage both public and private sector 
intervention. It provides bespoke planning policies and land allocations for the 
central Morecambe area. 
 

3.2 These two DPDs will eventually be joined by three other DPDs which together 
will represent the Local Plan for Lancaster District 2011-2031.  The other 
three DPDs, yet to be prepared are; the Land Allocations Document, the 
Arnside Silverdale AONB DPD (jointly prepared with South Lakeland District 
Council) and a Gypsy and Traveller and Travelling Showpeople 
Accommodation DPD. 
 

3.3 Importantly the Development Management DPD that is the subject of this 
report does not set a new district housing requirement nor does it allocate 
land for future development needs; these matters will be addressed via the 
preparation of the Land Allocations DPD. These matters cannot be addressed 
until further work is carried out on a refresh of the Objectively Assessed 
Housing Need figure. It is highly unlikely that a draft Land Allocations 
document will be brought to full council any earlier than the end of 2015. 
 

3.4 Following the receipt of the Inspector’s report in September 2014 the 
independent Examination process has been concluded.  Clearly, as the 
process has been concluded, further revisions cannot now be made to the 
editions of the documents which now contain the Inspector’s Binding 
Recommendations. However, in the time between the receipt of the 
Inspector’s report and the preparation of this report, the national policy 
position has continued to evolve, and, on Friday 28th November 2014 the 
DCLG revised the paragraph in the on-line National Planning Practice 
Guidance (NPPG) on negotiating for affordable housing; effectively 
introducing a threshold of 10 dwellings below which residential proposals 
should not be expected to provide complements of affordable housing (that is 
10 dwellings or fewer), although a lower threshold of five dwellings can be 
applied in National Parks and Areas of Outstanding National Beauty 
(AONBs).  In a rural area where the lower 5-unit or less threshold is applied, 
affordable housing and tariff style contributions should be sought from 
developments of between 6 and 10-units in the form of cash payments which 
are commuted until after completion of units within the development. 
 

3.5 However, Policy DM41, New Residential Development, of the DM DPD, 
confirms the council’s existing practice that contributions of affordable 

Page 71



housing or commuted sums are sought from all residential proposals. Whilst 
this approach has proved very successful in Lancaster District in securing 
contributions of affordable housing or commuted sum payments which have 
supported the delivery of local affordable housing, it is clearly now not fully 
compliant with the NPPG.  It is therefore proposed that should the council 
adopt the Development Management Document today that the adopted 
document is accompanied by an interim practice update note and a 
commitment to undertaking an imminent revision of Affordable Housing 
practice and policy; through, initially a review of the existing Supplementary 
Planning Guidance (SPD) on Meeting Housing Needs; this review will contain 
a revised interim edition of Policy DM41, and, subsequently, a formal review 
of the policy through a revision of the Development Management Document.  
The formal review would be undertaken following a refresh of the local 
evidence base on development viability and would be advanced to much the 
same timetable as the forthcoming Land Allocations Document.  
 

3.6 By giving a clear description of the council’s intentions to ensure that policy 
and practice on negotiating for affordable housing will be compliant with the 
recently revised NPPG the council is advised that the publication of the 
revised national guidance does raise undue concerns for the adoption of the 
Development management Document today.  
 

4.0 Details of Consultation  

4.1 Extensive consultation and engagement have taken place during the 
preparation of the Development Management DPD and Morecambe Area 
Action Plan DPD. The outcomes of consultation from 2010-2014 for all stages 
have been reported in detail to the council’s Planning Policy Cabinet Liaison 
Group and published on the council’s website. 
 

4.2 Following a council resolution to adopt the DPDs no further consultation is 
needed; the DPDs will become parts of the Local Development Plan for 
Lancaster District and be sued for planning purposes and to support 
regeneration. 
 

Following a resolution to adopt the DPDs, the council must publicise the 
decision to adopt the documents and give a six-week notice period to allow 
for any interested party to legally challenge the decision.  

 

5.0 Options and Options Analysis (including risk assessment) 

 Option 1: To formally Adopt the 
Development Management DPD 
and Morecambe Area Action 
Plan DPD as part of the Local 
Plan for Lancaster District 2011 
– 2031. 

Option 2: To not Adopt the DPDs 
and continue with the existing policy 
framework set by the Lancaster 
District Local Plan (2004) and 
Lancaster District Core Strategy 
(2008) 

Advantages Both plans have been prepared 
after considerable effort by the 
council and following much 
consultation and frequent 
previous reporting.  
 

This would be a very unusual 
decision. It is difficult to envisage 
any advantages in choosing not to 
adopt up to date development 
management policies and 
regeneration policies for Morecambe 

Page 72



The Development Management 
DPD and the Morecambe Area 
Action Plan DPD will be part of 
the Local Plan for Lancaster 
District 2011 – 2031. The 
Council will have up-to-date 
policies for determining planning 
applications.  
 
The Morecambe Area Action 
Plan provides direction for 
regeneration and is deliverable. 
Adoption will help fulfil 
community expectations for 
beneficial change and 
improvement. 

that have been prepared with the 
benefit of four years of engagement 
and consultation and have had the 
endorsement of the planning 
inspector at the conclusion of an 
independent Examination process.    
 
Should the Council not adopt the 
Development Management DPD and 
Morecambe Area Action Plan DPD it 
would have to prepare a new 
Documents. This would obviously be 
to a much delayed timetable but 
would be advanced with other parts 
of the Local Plan. 

Disadvantages Having Local Development Plan 
documents at different stages of 
preparation can present a 
complex position in terms of 
understanding the weight of 
various policies. A number of 
interim positions and 
clarifications may be needed to 
describe the Council’s position 
on some matters. 

Planning decisions will continue to 
rely on old “saved” within the 
Lancaster District Local Plan (2004) 
and the Lancaster Core Strategy 
(2008). These documents were 
prepared long before the guidance in 
the National Planning Policy 
Framework of 2012. Significant 
elements of the existing framework 
are no longer sufficiently robust for 
determining planning applications.  
 
Not to adopt the Morecambe Area 
Action Plan would render abortive 
four years of work and make 
pointless the extensive public 
consultations and community 
engagement. The Morecambe Area 
Action Plan addresses what is a 
clear ‘gap’ in the council’s policy 
framework. There will continue to be 
a lack of direction and certainty for 
regeneration.  
 
Not adopting the DPDs would result 
in a confused position about the 
weight given to existing policies in 
the adopted documents and the 
found-sound but not-adopted 
policies in the DM and MAAP DPDs. 

Risks The policies contained within the 
Development Management and 
Morecambe Area Action Plan 
DPDs may be challenged by the 
development industry who will 
argue that the council’s failure to 
identify sufficient land to meet 
objectively assessed 
development needs outweighs 

Should the council continue to 
determine planning applications on 
the basis of out-of-date policies it 
may result in challenges from the 
development industry and an 
increase in appeals. Weaker policies 
will also lead to development with 
poorer sustainability characteristics.   
 

Page 73



the need to comply with the 
policy approaches set out within 
these DPDs. This risk does need 
to be balanced with the 
challenge of proceeding without 
up-to-date policies in place. 

Were there to be no Morecambe 
Area Action Plan there would be a 
policy vacuum and a lack of certainty 
for the proposers of development, 
investment may be deterred or 
deferred. 

 

6.0 Officer Preferred Option (and comments) 

6.1 The preferred officer option is Option 1. 
 

6.2 The adoption of a Development Management DPD and Morecambe Area 
Action Plan DPD will provide the council with an up-to-date and robust suite of 
planning policies which will allow the council to determine planning 
applications and encourage regeneration in central Morecambe in accordance 
with national planning policy within the National Planning Policy Framework 
(NPPF). 
 

6.3 The benefits of having an up-to-date, robust suite of planning policies is 
significant. It will give the council the opportunity to use current and 
appropriate policies to manage development proposals and help achieve 
sustainable development. Decisions taken using an up-to-date and robust 
local planning policy framework will be less open to challenge than the 
alternative of continuing to use an aging suite of planning policies that were 
prepared prior to the current national planning guidance in the National 
Planning Policy Framework. 
 

6.4 Despite the robustness of the policies contained within the Development 
Management DPD and Morecambe Area Action Plan DPD it is anticipated 
that these will still be challenged by the development industry through the 
planning applications process. The council has a statutory obligation to 
prepare a Local Development Plan which also identifies land to meet 
objectively assessed housing needs within the district. The council intends to 
address this matter via the preparation of a Land Allocations DPD, however 
this document is at an early stage of preparation in part due to the challenge 
of determining the scale of development needs.  
 

6.5 The development industry may argue that the council’s inability to identity 
sufficient land for development needs, in particular the identification of a 
realistic five-year supply of housing, outweighs the need to accord with the 
policies of the Development Management DPD and, although to a lesser 
extent, of the Morecambe Area Action Plan DPD. 
 

6.6 Potentially, the council could choose to adopt one of the DPDs but not the 
other, that is; it could adopt the Development Management DPD but not adopt 
the MAAP, or, it could adopt the MAAP and not adopt the Development 
Management DPD.   In this case the Advantages, Disadvantages and Risks 
of Option 1 (Adoption) would apply to the DPD which is to be adopted and the 
Advantages, Disadvantages and Risks of Option 2 (Non-Adoption) would 
apply to the DPD which is not to be adopted.   Officers strongly advise against 
the adoption of one DPD but not the other as both documents are key 
elements of the proposed suite of five DPDs that together will constitute the 

Page 74



Local Plan for Lancaster District. The documents have been prepared in 
tandem and cross refer to each other; thus, should one be adopted and the 
other not adopted there is the potential for a significant lack of clarity in the 
policy position. Uncertainties and possible contradictions between adopted 
policies, not-adopted policies and residual out-of-date policies could be 
exploited in pursuit of development that does not accord with positive policy 
intentions and objectives.   
 

7.0 Conclusion 

7.1 These documents are two of the five key elements of the Local Plan for 
Lancaster District 2011–2031. Once adopted the council will have a strong 
planning policy position in which to manage the delivery of sustainable 
development within the district. The lack of a Land Allocations DPD will 
continue to represent a challenge to the council. Members will be well aware 
of the challenging ongoing work being undertaken to prepare a Land 
Allocations DPD that will address the issue of meeting development needs. 
 

7.2 In conclusion, the council is strongly advised, and formally requested to 
approve the adoption of the Development Management DPD and Morecambe 
Area Action Plan for planning purposes, and to facilitate regeneration, as 
parts of the Local Plan for Lancaster District 2011–2031. 
 

Appendices and Background Reports 
Editions of both the Development Management Document DPD and the 
Morecambe Area Action Plan DPD are attached as appendices. These 
editions are the submitted documents incorporating the Inspector’s binding 
recommendations. The content of these editions is correct, final editions of 
both documents will be printed following the conclusion of the adoption 
processes.  The final print editions will contain photographs, captions, and if 
necessary, minor corrections for example to typos and paragraph numbering.   
The Inspector’s Report, and his Appendices A and B which list the binding 
recommendations, are listed as supporting documents and have been 
available on the Council’s website for some time at; 
http://www.lancaster.gov.uk/planning/local-plan/local-planning-policy/work-in-
progress/development-management-dpd/  
  
Appendix 1: Development Management Development Plan Document 
Adoption Edition December 2014 
 
Appendix 2: Morecambe Area Action Plan (MAAP) Development Plan 
Document  
Adoption Edition December 2014 
 
Appendix 3: Proposed interim approach to negotiating complements of 
Affordable Housing  

 

RELATIONSHIP TO POLICY FRAMEWORK 
 
National Planning Policy Framework (2012) – Requires all Local Authorities to prepare a 
Local Development Plan for their area setting out how objectively assessed development 

Page 75



needs will be met and clear planning policies on what or will not be permitted. 
 
National Planning Practice Guide (2014) – Provides guidance for Local Authorities and 
other interested parties on how the detail of the National Planning Policy Framework should 
be implemented in practice. 
 
Lancaster District Corporate Plan – Development Plan Documents adopted by the council 
form part of the Local Plan for Lancaster District and are part of the corporate policy 
framework. Policies within the Local Development Plan seek to deliver the Council’s 
priorities as described in the corporate plan. Actions within the Morecambe Area Action Plan 
will have corporate priority. 
 
Regeneration and Planning Business Plan – Commits the service to the preparation of 
Development Plan Documents. 
 

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
(including Health & Safety, Equality & Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, 
HR, Sustainability and Rural Proofing) 

The Development Management DPD and Morecambe Area Action Plan DPD provide a 
planning policy framework to guide and manage development within the District. The 
Morecambe Area Action Plan DPD provides future policy detail (along with allocations) for 
the area of Central Morecambe. 

Equality, diversity and sustainability implications have been taken into account through the 
preparation of the draft Local Plan documents. The documents have been subject to the 
statutory requirements for Strategic Environmental Assessment. Equality, diversity, human 
rights, community safety, sustainability and rural issues are all considered as part of this 
process. Officers are confident that this work provides an appropriate impact assessment of 
the DPDs and this has been confirmed by the Planning Inspector. 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

The preparation of Local Development Plan documents are subject to legislature and 
regulations. Failure to meet these requirements could result in the DPDs being subject to 
legal challenge. The Planning Inspector has considered the preparation of the DPDs in 
terms of relevant legal requirements and concluded that the DPDs have been prepared in 
accordance with legislation and are considered sound.  The council consulted on its 
proposed modifications in the summer of 2014 and cannot now make any further changes.  
The Inspector’s modification are binding, thus the final form of the adopted DPDs must fully 
incorporate his recommendations.  

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

Preparation of an up-to-date and robust Local Development Plan does come with costs; the 
commissioning of evidence, the engagement of expert witnesses and legal representation; 
these costs are budgeted for in the normal way. Additionally unanticipated costs can arise 
from legal challenges to the adoption of documents, usually as a result of actions from 
affected parties. The Morecambe Area Action Plan DPD sets actions that can be 
implemented. The costs and implications of these are described through separate reporting 
means; this report solely deals with the process of adopting the Development Management 
DPD and the Morecambe Area Action Plan DPD. Work to implement the Morecambe Area 
Action Plan DPD will be reported on when necessary and appropriate. 

Failure to have an up-to-date Local Development Plan will reduce the Council’s ability to 
confidently refuse development proposals and defend refusals at appeal. 

Page 76



In short, the Officer preferred Option 1, helps manage related financial risks for the Council. 

Option 2 exposes the Council to much greater financial risk, and gives rise to significant 
value for money concerns regarding the time and costs that have been expended over the 
last four years or so. 

 

OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

Human Resources: 

The Regeneration and Planning Service is presently adequately resourced to advance these 
complex and challenging areas of work. However, maintaining the momentum of preparing a 
Local Development Plan in terms of policy review and plan preparation is very much 
dependent on maintaining the level of key personnel. 

Information Services: 

No direct implications. 

Property: 

There are potential implications for council owned assets within the MAAP area, these 
matters are directly dealt with through other reporting routes. 

Open Spaces: 

The Development Management DPD seeks to protect and enhance areas of public open 
space; this may have implications for land within the Council’s ownership. New areas of 
open space may be created through the implementation of policies about ensuring that new 
development provides adequate amenity and, where appropriate and relevant to do so, 
contributes to open space and reactional facilities. 

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS 

The s151 Officer has been consulted and has no further comments. 

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 

The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments. 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

1. Local Development Scheme July 2013 
(Local Plan Timetable). 

2. Report to Lancaster City Council by Paul 
Crysell, an Inspector appointed by the 
Secretary of State for Communities and 
Local Government, on the Examination 
into Lancaster District Development 
Management Development Plan 
Document and the Morecambe Area 
Action Plan Document. 22nd September 
2014. Including Appendix A Main 
Modifications to the Development 
Management Document and Appendix B 
Main Modifications to the Morecambe 
Area Action Plan. 

Contact Officer: Maurice Brophy 
Telephone:  01524 582330 
E-mail: mbrophy@lancaster.gov.uk 
Ref: N/A 

 

Page 77



1 
 

Affordable Housing Interim Statement (draft) 

Planning Contributions (Section 106 planning obligations) for 
smaller residential proposals  
Reported to Council 17th December 2014  

Introduction 

In March 2014 the Government published a consultation on “Planning Performance and Planning 
Contributions”.   

The consultation proposed that before any request for affordable housing contributions can be 
considered, authorities will have to have regard to national policy that such charges create a 
disproportionate burden for development falling within a combined 10-unit and 1,000 square 
metres gross floor space threshold. A maximum total floor space was proposed in combination with 
a unit threshold to avoid creating an unintended incentive to alter scheme construction densities.  
 
Developers, development representative bodies, and some members of the public generally 
supported the proposed changes, arguing that excessive affordable housing contributions were 
often being applied.  
 
Local Authority responses generally opposed both the principle of a national threshold for affordable 
housing contributions and the size of the proposed threshold. The consultation closed on 4 May 
2014.  
 
Response 
 
On the 28th November 2014 the Government has published its conclusions with regard to the 
planning contributions element. 
 
The conclusions read that the Government considers that affordable housing 106 charges can place 
a disproportionate burden on small scale developers, including those wishing to build their own 
homes, and prevent the delivery of much needed, small scale housing sites. The Government has 
aimed to strike an effective balance between providing the support and incentives which will drive 
up self-build, small scale and brownfield development without adversely impacting on local 
contributions to affordable homes and infrastructure.  
 
The Government has made the following changes with regard to section 106 planning obligations:  

• Due to the disproportionate burden of developer contributions on small scale developers, 
for sites of 10-units or less, and which have a maximum combined gross floor space of 1000 
square metres, affordable housing and tariff style contributions should not be sought. This 
will also apply to all residential annexes and extensions.  

• For designated rural areas under section 157 of the Housing Act 1985, which includes 
National Parks and Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty, authorities may choose to 
implement a lower threshold of 5-units or less, beneath which affordable housing and tariff 
style contributions should not be sought. This will also apply to all residential annexes and 
extensions. Within these designated areas, if the 5-unit threshold is implemented then 
payment of affordable housing and tariff style contributions on developments of between 6 

Page 78



2 
 

to 10 units should also be sought as a cash payment only and be commuted until after 
completion of units within the development.  

 
• These changes in national planning policy will not apply to Rural Exception Sites which, 

subject to the local area demonstrating sufficient need, remain available to support the 
delivery of affordable homes for local people. However, affordable housing and tariff style 
contributions should not be sought in relation to residential annexes and extensions.  
 

The changes have been implemented in National Planning Policy Guidance (NPPG) which has 
been repeated below: 

EXCERPT FROM NPPG 

Are there any circumstances where 
infrastructure contributions through 
planning obligations should not be sought 
from developers?  
There are specific circumstances where contributions for affordable housing and tariff 
style planning obligations (section 106 planning obligations) should not be sought from 
small scale and self-build development. 

• contributions should not be sought from developments of 10-units or less, and 

which have a maximum combined gross floorspace of no more than 1000sqm 

 

• in designated rural areas, local planning authorities may choose to apply a lower 

threshold of 5-units or less. No affordable housing or tariff-style contributions 

should then be sought from these developments. In addition, in a rural area where 

the lower 5-unit or less threshold is applied, affordable housing and tariff style 

contributions should be sought from developments of between 6 and 10-units in 

the form of cash payments which are commuted until after completion of units 

within the development. This applies to rural areas described under section 157(1) 

of the Housing Act 1985, which includes National Parks and Areas of Outstanding 

Natural Beauty 

 

• affordable housing and tariff-style contributions should not be sought from any 

development consisting only of the construction of a residential annex or extension 

to an existing home 

 

 

 

 

Page 79



3 
 

 

 

Lancaster City Council Development Management Policy 

Lancaster City Council has for a number of years been successful in securing contributions from 
smaller schemes in order to enable the delivery of affordable housing within the District. The 
implementation of Guidance Notes and latterly the Meeting Housing Needs SPD has facilitated the 
collecting of monies from all levels of residential development subject to viability assessment. This 
policy approach has been successful in delivering significant numbers of affordable houses even in 
times of significant economic difficulty. 

Consequently the Council has over the past year sought to secure this policy approach in its 
forthcoming Local Plan. It has successfully progressed the Development Management DPD to the 
point of adoption including policies to this effect. The document has been subject to an independent 
Examination and has received a finding of soundness and an inspector’s report with binding 
recommendations. The Document is be reported to council on 17th December 2014 to seek a 
resolution to adopt as part of the Local Development Plan.  

The DPD contains detailed policies intended to guide and promote sustainable development 
throughout the District and includes Policy DM41: New Residential Development  

DM 41 requires that “other than in the most exceptional circumstances new housing development 
must contribute toward the provision of affordable housing.” 

It further details that proposal for new residential development falling into Use Class C3 will be 
assessed against the following table;  

Excerpt from DM41: New Residential development  

Affordable homes 
Other than in the most exceptional circumstances new housing development must contribute 
toward the provision of affordable housing. The council will consider detailed proposals for new 
housing development that falls into Use Class C3 with reference to the following targets: 
 

Reference Affordable Housing Target by Development Type (Average) 
Units Location Affordable Housing Delivery Method 

15 plus Urban 30%* On site 

10 plus Rural 30%* On site 

5 to 14 Urban Up to 20% On site 

5 to 9 Rural Up to 20% On site 

1 to 4 Urban & rural Up to 10% Financial contribution 

* Up to 40% affordable housing will be sought from new housing proposed on greenfield 
sites. 

 
Financial contributions towards the provision of affordable housing will be calculated in 
accordance with the methods detailed in the Meeting Housing Needs SPD or successor documents. 

 

Page 80



4 
 

Notwithstanding the percentage targets detailed within the Development Management DPD Policy DM41: 
New Residential Development, the following criteria will apply: 

Outside of the district’s AONB’s (and potentially National Park); 

• Planning Proposals which result in a net increase of 10 or fewer dwellings will not be subject to a 
request for affordable housing contributions. 
  

• Where proposals are made for 11 or more dwellings Development Management DPD Policy DM41: 
New Residential Development will apply in full. 

  

Within the districts AONB’s (and potentially National Park); 

Planning proposals which result in a net increase of 5 or fewer dwellings will not be subject to requests for 
affordable housing contributions.  

• Where proposals are made for 6 -10 dwellings a financial contribution will be sought with 
reference to the targets set out in Development Management DPD Policy DM41: New Residential 
Development.  

• Where 11 or more dwellings are proposed Development Management DPD Policy DM41: New 
Residential Development will apply in full. 
 

All other development Management policies remain wholly in force and are accorded due weight. 

Where compelling and detailed evidence demonstrates that the provision of affordable housing in 
accordance with the above targets would have a disproportionate and unwarranted negative 
impact on the viability of a proposed development, applicants may seek to provide fewer 
affordable dwellings than would be ordinarily acceptable. 

 

The degree to which proposals deviate from the above requirements will be weighed against the 
benefits of any resulting scheme. Where proposals offer fewer dwellings than would ordinarily be 
acceptable, weight will be given to whether an alternative scheme, amended layout or other 
adjustment may result in a greater quantum of affordable dwellings being achieved. 

 

The Policy further requires that financial contributions will be calculated in accordance with the 
Meeting Housing Needs SPD. The SPD provides a formula for calculating contributions and also 
reiterates the guidance in the DM DPD including the table above with minor amendments. 

Accordingly the Council is aware that the Development management DPD conflicts with the newly 
stated elements of National Planning Policy Guidance. 

 

17 December 2014 Interim Development Management Approach to Negotiating 
Affordable Housing  

In light of the CLG’s update to the NPPG on 28th November 2014, following the adoption of the 
Development Management DPD on 17th December, the council will apply the following approach 
when assessing proposals for residential development. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 81



5 
 

 

Future Review of the Development Management DPD 

The adoption of the Development Management DPD does not preclude continuing policy 
development. It is of course the Council’s intention to revisit elements of the Development 
Management DPD in response to changing evidence, evolving planning practise, case law, and 
revised national guidance. It is fully understood that revisions to the DM DPD may well be required 
to ensure that, in addition to being kept up to date, the DM Document is consistent with the 
forthcoming Land Allocations DPD.   

The Council has committed to undertaking an Affordable Housing Viability Study (AHVA) prior to the 
adoption of the Land Allocation DPD and is also revisiting its strategic approach to housing delivery 
in order to meet very substantial needs over the forthcoming plan period. It is anticipated that a 
review the Development Management DPD alongside progression of the Land Allocations DPD will 
provide the opportunity to incorporate new evidence and to ensure that the policy DM41 is 
amended to incorporate the extant national policy position and national planning practice guidance 
position. 

In addition to the immediate application on this interim approach the council is therefore also 
committed to; 

- Preparing an NPPG-compliant interim policy through an imminent revision of the 
Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) on Meeting Housing Needs, and, 

- Formally revising the Policy DM 41 through a review of the Development Management 
DPD following a refresh of evidence on development viability which will accompany the 
preparation of the forthcoming Land Allocations Document.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

V1.1 

Lancaster City Council 

Reported to Council 17th December 2014 

Page 82



 

COUNCIL  
 
 
Amendment of the Executive Scheme of Delegation to 
Officers – Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing 

Act 2014 
 

17th December 2014 
Report of the Chief Officer (Governance) 

 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

To give notice of an amendment made by the Leader to the Scheme of Delegation to 
Officers.   

 

This report is public  

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
(1) That the report be noted  
 
 
1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 The current delegations of executive functions to officers were approved by 

Council in May 2014, and are set out in Part 3 of the Constitution. 
1.2 Rule 1.4(b)  of the Cabinet Procedure Rules provides as follows: 
 “The Leader may amend the scheme of delegation relating to Executive 
 functions at any time during the year. To do so, the Leader must give written 
 notice to the Chief Officer (Governance) and to the person, body or 
 committee concerned. The notice must set out the extent of the amendment 
 to the  scheme of delegation, and whether it entails the withdrawal of 
 delegation from any person, body, committee or the Executive as a whole. 
 The Chief Officer (Governance) will present a report to the next ordinary 
 meeting of the Council setting out the changes made by the Leader.”    
1.3 The Leader has amended the Scheme of Delegation to ensure that officers 

are able to exercise new powers contained in the Anti-Social Behaviour, 
Crime and Policing Act 2014.  

 
2.0 Proposal Details 
 
2.1 The Anti-Social Behaviour Crime and Policing Act 2014 amends some of the 

existing powers and introduces new powers to deal with anti-social behaviour, 
focusing in particular on the impact the behaviour has on the community as a 
whole.  The Council, in partnership with the police, has an important role in 

Agenda Item 19Page 83



exercising these powers. 
 
2.2 The Act introduces the Community Protection Notice (CPN), which may be 

served on an individual whose unreasonable conduct is having a detrimental 
effect, of a persistent or continuing nature, on the quality of life in the locality.  
Examples of matters that may be dealt with by way of CPN are noise, graffiti 
and litter.  A notice may be issued by a police officer, PCSO or authorised 
council officer.  Enforcement is by way of fixed penalty notice or prosecution.  
Where a CPN requires work to be carried out, and this is not complied with, 
there is provision for the Council to serve notice of intention to carry out works 
in default and to arrange for that work to be carried out. 

 
2.3 The Council has power under the Act to make Public Spaces Protection 

Orders (PSPOs).  These are intended to deal with a particular nuisance or 
problem in a particular area that is detrimental to the quality of life of those in 
that locality, by imposing conditions which apply to everyone using that area.  
In particular the PSPO will be used to replace dog control orders and orders 
designating zones where alcohol may not be consumed.  It is envisaged that 
the making of a PSPO will be approved by Cabinet or Individual Cabinet 
Member Decision.   Once made, the PSPO will be enforced by way of fixed 
penalty notice, which may be issued by an authorised council officer, police 
officer or PCSO. 

 
2.4 The Act also provides for the Council and the police to issue closure notices 

to protect victims and communities by quickly closing premises that are 
causing nuisance or disorder.  A closure notice, issued for up to 48 hours will 
be followed by a closure order made by the Magistrates’ court.  A closure 
notice for a period of up to 24 hours may be issued by an authorised council 
officer or a police officer of at least the rank of inspector.  A notice may be 
extended or issued for a period of up to 48 hours by a police officer of at least 
the rank of superintendent or if signed by the Council’s Chief Executive or an 
officer designated by the Chief Executive.    

 
2.5 In order to implement all these provisions, it was necessary for the officer 

Scheme of Delegation to be amended to authorise officers who may issue the 
appropriate notices, and take the appropriate enforcement action.  

 
2.6  Accordingly, the Leader has amended the Scheme of Delegation to provide 

as follows: 
 

That the Chief Officer (Environment) and the Chief Officer (Health and 
Housing) and any officer designated by either of them in writing: 

 
(a) be authorised persons for the purposes of section 53 of the Anti-Social 
Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 (ASBCPA), with authority to issue 
a Community Protection Notice (Section 43), and/or  a Fixed Penalty 
Notice for breach of a Community Protection Notice (Section 48); 

(b) be authorised to issue notices under Section 47(3), Section 47(6) and 49 
(6) of the  ASBCPA in respect of Community Protection Notice works in 
default; 

(c) have authority to authorise Community Protection Notice work in default to 
be carried out under sections 47(2) and (3) of the ASBCPA; 

(d) be authorised persons for the purposes of Section 63 and Section 68 of 
ASBCPA (enforcement of   Public Spaces Protection Orders); and 

(e) be authorised to issue a Closure Notice for a period of up to 24 hours.  

Page 84



 
 
 
 
 
3.0 Details of Consultation  
 
3.1 There has been no consultation.  
 
4.0 Conclusion  
 
5.1 The report is for noting 
 

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
(including Health & Safety, Equality & Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, 
Sustainability and Rural Proofing) 
 
The delegations authorised by the Leader will ensure that appropriate action can be taken in 
the interests of community safety  
 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
Legal Services will be able to advise in individual circumstances on the appropriate use of 
the powers contained in the Act. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
There are no direct financial implications arising from this report.  Many of the powers 
replace existing legislation, and the powers will be exercised within existing staff resources    
 

OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
 
Human Resources: 
None 
 
Information Services: 
None 
 
Property: 
None 
 
Open Spaces: 
None 
 

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
The Section 151 Officer has been consulted and has no further comments.  
 
 

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
The report has been prepared by the Monitoring Officer in her role as Chief Officer 
(Governance).  

Page 85



 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
None 

Contact Officer: Mrs S Taylor 
Telephone:  01524 582025 
E-mail: STaylor@lancaster.gov.uk 
Ref:  

 
 

Page 86



COUNCIL  
 

Members’ Allowances Scheme - Report of the 
Independent Remuneration Panel  

17th December 2014 
 

Report of Chief Officer (Governance) 
 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

To enable Council to consider members’ allowances for 2015/16, in the light of a report 
from the Independent Remuneration Panel. 

 

This report is public 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS  

(1) Council is asked to consider the recommendations put forward by the 
Independent Remuneration Panel, and to approve a Members’ 
Allowances Scheme for 2015/16 

1.0 Introduction 

1.1 The Council is required by the Local Authorities (Members’ Allowances) 
(England) Regulations 2003 to make an allowances scheme for each year.  
The Regulations require that before an authority makes or amends a scheme, 
it must have regard to the recommendations made to it by an independent 
remuneration panel 

1.2 The report of the Independent Remuneration Panel is attached to this report 
for consideration by the Council.   

2.0 Proposal Details 

2.1 The recommendations of the Independent Remuneration Panel are set out in 
its report, and the Chairman and other members of the Panel have been 
invited to attend the meeting to present the report and to answer any 
questions.  

2.2 Members will note that the report recommends that the basic allowance, 
which is required by law to be the same for each member, be increased from 
£3,300 to £3,350, an increase of just over 1.5%. This would be the first 
increase in the basic allowance since 2009/10. The Panel recommends that 
the special responsibility allowances, carers’ allowances and travel and 
subsistence allowances remain unchanged. 

2.3 Members will also note that with regard to car parking, the Panel’s preference 
would be for the Member Car Parking Permit to be withdrawn, and for 
members, on production of a valid receipt to be reimbursed for the cost of 
parking in long stay car parks.  However, the Panel recognises that in the 
past the Council has not accepted this recommendation, and the Panel is 
content for the current dual system to continue whereby members may either 
be reimbursed for each car parking ticket purchased, or may purchase a 

Agenda Item 20Page 87



member permit and receive no reimbursement towards the cost of parking.      

3.0 Details of Consultation  

3.1 The attached report presents the recommendations of the Independent 
Remuneration Panel, which the Council is required to have regard to in 
making any decisions about the allowances scheme.  

4.0 Options and Options Analysis (including risk assessment) 

4.1 It is open to Council to accept the Panel’s report in its entirety, or with 
amendment.  Council does not have to accept the recommendations of the 
Panel, but the Regulations require that it must have regard to them in making 
its decision.   

5.0 Conclusion  

5.1 Council is asked to approve a Members’ Allowances Scheme for 2015/16, to 
take effect following the elections. 

 

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and Rural 
Proofing) 

None directly arising from this report. 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

The relevant regulation is set out in the report. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

The provisional 2015/16 budget for members’ basic allowances is £203,900 and for special 
responsibility allowances £86,500 giving a total of £290,400, which could be redistributed 
between basic and special responsibility allowances.  These figures are based on the 
current year’s budget plus estimated inflation; they will be updated as appropriate to reflect 
the decisions of Council.  There are separate budgets for carers’ allowance and travel 
allowance. 

The special responsibility allowances actually payable will depend on the number of 
members appointed to Cabinet by the Leader in May 2015, and on whether there is any 
duplication of member roles, given that the scheme provides for any member to receive only 
one special responsibility allowance. 

 

OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

Human Resources: 

None 

Information Services: 

None 

Property: 

None 

Open Spaces: 

Page 88



None 

 

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS 

The Section 151 Officer has been consulted and has no further comments. 

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 

The Monitoring Officer has prepared this report as the officer supporting the Independent 
Remuneration Panel.  

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

None 

Contact Officer: Mrs Taylor 
Telephone:  01524 582025 
E-mail: STaylor@lancaster.gov.uk 
Ref:  

 
 

 

Page 89



  Independent Remuneration Panel 
 
 
  

1 

 

 
 
 
Report To:  Lancaster City Council  
  
From: The Independent Remuneration Panel 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 

Recommendations For Members’ Remuneration  

For The Municipal Year 2015/2016 
 

 

 

Report to Council on Wednesday 17th December 2014 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 90



  Independent Remuneration Panel 
 
 
  

2 

 

 

 

Report Contents 

 

Section Page 

Panel Remit  3 

Panel Membership 4 

Background 4 

Summary of Recommendations 4 

Supplementary Allowances 6 

Approach of the Panel 8 

Basic Allowance 10 

Special Responsibility Allowances 11 

Dependents’ Carers’ Allowances 12 

Travel and Subsistence Allowances 12 

Cost of Parking 13 

Information and Communication Technology 14 

Co-optees’ Allowance 14 

Pensions 14 

Member Champions 15 

Costs of Recommendations  15 

Acknowledgements  15 

Appendix 1: Recommended Members’ 
Allowances Scheme 

16 

Appendix 2: Background Bibliography 35 

Appendix 3: Witnesses Interviewed by the 
Panel 

36 

 

 

 
 

Page 91



  Independent Remuneration Panel 
 
 
  

3 

 

 

 

PANEL REMIT  

1.1 The Lancaster City Council Independent Remuneration Panel (IRP) was established in 
accordance with Local Authorities (Members’ Allowances) (England) Regulations 
2003. 

1.2 A local authority is required to establish and maintain an Independent Remuneration 
Panel to provide it with recommendations on a scheme of allowances to be paid to 
members and others.  The authority must have regard to the recommendations of its 
IRP before it makes or amends its members’ allowance scheme.  

1.3 The allowances payable under a local authority scheme of allowances are as follows: 

· Basic Allowance (Each local authority must make provision in its scheme of 
allowances for a basic, flat rate allowance payable to all members of the authority 
which must be the same for each member). 

· Special Responsibility Allowance (Each authority may also make provision for 
payment of special responsibility allowances for those members who have 
significant responsibilities e.g. leader of the council, member of the 
executive/cabinet, presiding at meetings of committees, acting as spokesperson for 
a political group). 

· Dependents’ Carers’ Allowance (Each authority may also provide for the 
payment of a dependents’ carers’ allowance to those members who incur 
expenditure for the care of children or other dependents whilst undertaking 
particular duties). 

· Travelling and Subsistence Allowance (Each authority may also provide for the 
payment of a travelling and subsistence allowance to its members, including co-
opted members). 

· Co-optees’ Allowance (Each authority may also provide an allowance to any co-
opted and appointed members of a council’s committees or sub committees). 

1.4 The IRP can also make recommendations to the local authority on the backdating of 
allowances, annual adjustments to allowance levels and entitlements to pensions. The 
Regulations also set out the circumstances in which allowances can be withheld from 
members. The Scheme provides that any Councillor may forgo all or part of any 
allowance to which they are entitled. 

Page 92



  Independent Remuneration Panel 
 
 
  

4 

 

 

2. PANEL MEMBERSHIP 

2.1 There are currently four members on the panel, all of whom were appointed following 
a public recruitment process. The members and their terms of office are as follows: 

 Colin Everett is a retired Local Government Finance Officer He was appointed to the 
IRP in 2009 and is the Chairman of the Panel.  

Unity Lawler is a Finance Manager for the family business with experience in Local 
Government and research in academic institutions.  She was appointed to the IRP in 
2010.  

Pat Loryman is a retired Local Government Information Technology Officer, and 
previously experience in the public and private sector. She was appointed in 2010. 

Janice Wilson is a qualified Cumbria Blue Badge Tourist Guide.  She is a former 
Local Government Officer in Human Resources, specialising in Learning and 
Development.  She was appointed to the IRP in 2010. 

 

3. BACKGROUND TO LANCASTER CITY COUNCIL SCHEME OF ALLOWANCES 
 
3.1 The current Members Allowances Scheme has been reviewed on a regular basis. 

3.2 There were no pay increases for local government employees in 2010, 2011 and 
2012. Whilst there was a 1% pay increase in 2013 an increase for members was not 
applied.   

3.3 The Regulations require an authority before the beginning of each year to ‘make’ the 
scheme for the payment of allowances in that year.   

3.4 The Regulations require an authority to publish the payment of allowances. 

 

4.0 SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS 

In accordance with its responsibilities under the Local Authorities (Members’ 
Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003, the Independent Remuneration Panel (IRP) 
has reviewed the current scheme of allowances in place for members of Lancaster 
City Council and makes the following recommendations, to be effective following the 
Lancaster City Council elections in 2015. 

4.1 Basic Allowance 

a) The Panel recommends an increase to the basic allowance of slightly over 1.5% to 
give a new basic allowance of £3350, to take effect following the local elections to the 
city council in 2015. 

 

 

 

 

Page 93



  Independent Remuneration Panel 
 
 
  

5 

 

4.2 Special Responsibility Allowances 

b) The Panel recommends the following levels and rates of SRAs 
 

 

Allowance Proposed 
Amount (pa) 

Current 
Amount (pa) 

Leader of the Council and Chairman of the Cabinet £11, 060  £11, 060  
Deputy Leader of the Council £6,530 £6,530 
Cabinet Members £5,530  £5,530 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee Chair  £4,145  £4,145 
Budget and Performance Panel Chairman  £3,315  £3,315 
Planning Committee Chairman  £4,285  £4,285 
Licensing Regulatory Committee Chairman £4,285 £4,285 
Licensing Act Committee Chairman  £715  £715 
Licensing Act Hearings Sub Committtee Chairman  £435  £435 
Personnel Committee Chairman  £3,270  £3,270 
Audit Committee Chairman  £2,280  £2,280 
Appeals Committee Chairman  £290  £290 
Council Business Committee Chairman  £1,400  £1,400 
Standards Committee Chairman  £1,210  £1,210 
Leader of Opposition Groups (allocated on a pro rata 
basis) 

 £5,530  £5,530 

 

c)  The Panel recommends that the Council should continue to adhere to the established 
conventions that no member should receive more than one SRA and that no more 
than 50% of elected members should receive an SRA.   

d) The Panel recommends that detailed role profiles be prepared for each role qualifying 
for an SRA to assist with future evaluation of responsibilities, complexity and time 
commitment. 

4.3 Part 8 of the Constitution 

The Recommended Members Allowance Scheme, amended as a result of this report is 
attached as Appendix 1. 

 

 

 

  

 

 

Page 94



  Independent Remuneration Panel 
 
 
  

6 

 

5.0 SUPPLEMENTARY ALLOWANCES  

5.1 Dependents’ Carers’ Allowances 

5.2 The Panel recommends that the current levels of allowance should remain 
unchanged. 

5.3 Travel and Subsistence Allowances 

The Panel recommends that the current levels of allowance should be remain 
unchanged and are in line with HMRC guidelines. 

 

Type of Vehicle First 10,000 miles Above 10,000 miles 
 

Cars and vans 45p per mile 25p per mile 
Motorcycles 24p per mile 24p per mile 
Cycles 20p per mile 20p per mile 

 

5.4 Cost of Vehicle Parking 

5.5 The Panel stands by its previous recommendation made in the report dated 16th 
November 2011.  This read as follows: 

5.6 ‘The Panel would recommend, as a starting point, that, where there are convenient 
public transport links, elected members should be encouraged to use public transport 
in appropriate circumstances. 

 
5.7 The Panel noted that the view had been expressed that the current arrangements with 

regard to car parking were unfair. The Panel felt that it would be fair to everyone if the 
member permit facility was withdrawn, and that where it is necessary for a member to 
travel by car, a long stay car park only should be used, and the actual cost of car 
parking be reimbursed on presentation of a receipt from the ticket machine.  

5.8 The panel recommended that the Scheme be amended accordingly.’ 

5.9 However, the Panel recognises that this recommendation was not accepted by 
Council, and that the current arrangements which give members the option of either 
purchasing a member permit, or receiving reimbursement on production of a valid car 
park ticket, will continue. 

5.10 ICT 

5.11 The panel is currently awaiting confirmation on future ICT provision to councillors and 
will not be making a recommendation at this stage. 

5.12 Co-optees’ Allowance 
 
5.13 The Panel has no recommendation to make in this report. 

5.14 Pensions 

5.15 The Panel recommends no change in the current arrangements regarding pensions. 

Page 95



  Independent Remuneration Panel 
 
 
  

7 

 

5.16 Financial Implications 

5.17 The recommended allowance scheme would cost £288,460 in respect of basic and 
special responsibility allowances, whilst the travel and subsistence allowances totalled 
£6,438.92 and £4,562 in 2012/13 and 2013/14 respectively. 

5.18 The cost of the recommended scheme, in respect of basic and special responsibility 
allowances, would represent 1.7% of the Council’s projected budget of £16,874,000 in 
2015/16. 

5.19 These figures are based on the current position regarding holders of SRA positions. 
Therefore there is the potential for costs to go up or down in the course of the year. 

 

Page 96



  Independent Remuneration Panel 
 
 
  

8 

 

 

6.0 APPROACH OF THE PANEL 

6.1 Context 

6.2 The Panel began its work in June 2014.  One of our priorities has been to understand 
the context within which the Council operates and in which the Panel must undertake 
its review and make recommendations to the Council.     

6.3 The Panel received briefings from officers on the financial climate for the Council. The 
2014/15 budget approved in February 2014 sets out the challenge faced by the 
Council at a time of reduced funding and rising demand for services.  The Council has 
already made savings over the period 2010-2013.  The Panel recognises that future 
savings will need to be implemented over the next few years, as directed by central 
government. 

6.4 The Panel has also taken account of the Council Plan and the scale of change 
required. 

6.5 Methodology 

6.6 Mindful of the operating context of the Council, the Panel undertook extensive 
research to enable it to fulfil its remit: 

 
· A review of the current allowance scheme to understand its history and rationale; 
· A review of comparative allowance data from peer councils and national and local 

data on pay trends in order to ‘benchmark’ the current position of the Council’s 
allowance scheme; 

· A questionnaire survey of all members to understand the time they devote to their 
role as city members and their special responsibility roles (where applicable).  Of 
the 60 members surveyed, 18 responded - a response rate of 30%. In addition, all 
members were given the opportunity to meet with the Panel if they wished; 

· Attending council to gain an appreciation of the roles performed by members in 
practice. Whilst cabinet and committee meetings have not been attended to date, 
this is likely to be included in the future. 

· A review of relevant literature and reports on the role of members and their 
remuneration as well as consideration of the approach adopted by the Independent 
Parliamentary Standards Authority in their review of MPs Pay and Pensions (July 
2013).  Details of the most relevant material consulted are listed in Appendix 2; 

· Meetings with members and members of the executive to gain a more in-depth 
understanding of specific roles and responsibilities and to seek views on the pros 
and cons of the current scheme of allowances. The individuals who met with the 
Panel are listed in Appendix 3 and the Panel  is very grateful to them for their 
assistance; 

· Training to ensure that it had a sound grasp of the Regulations and its 
responsibilities as a Panel. 

 
6.7 Public Consultation 
 
6.8 The Panel is considering undertaking future consultation with the public and private 

sectors to assist its approach to revising the members’ allowance scheme.  The Panel 

Page 97



  Independent Remuneration Panel 
 
 
  

9 

 

would hope to make use of the Council’s existing consultation methods, such as Voice 
Your Views, to gain an insight into public perception.   

 
 
6.9 Principles Underpinning an Allowance Scheme 
 
6.10 The Panel considered that it should have a broad understanding of the role of a 

councillor in order to establish an effective scheme of allowances.   The Panel favours 
the view stated by the Government in its response to the Government Select 
Committee Report: Members on the Frontline published on 10 January 2013: 

 
“In the Government’s view, the core principles of being a councillor are those of 
community service and volunteering.  The aim and motivation of every 
councillor should be to make things better for the people they represent, and 
the Government’s reforms to establish localism are designed to give those 
wishing to serve their communities the best possible opportunities for improving 
their local areas.  The Government is quite clear that members are and 
should fundamentally be volunteers and does not wish to see any move 
towards professionalising the role through members becoming full time 
salaried staff.” 
 

6.11 The Panel also reviewed the various approaches over the years to produce a definitive 
set of principles to underpin a scheme of allowances.  From this work, the Panel 
concluded that the following principles (taken from a submission on members’ 
remuneration to the Members Commission 2007-2009 chaired by Dame Jane 
Roberts) were appropriate for a scheme of allowances for the City Council: 

 
· The basic allowance should encourage people from a wider range of backgrounds 

and with a wide range of skills to serve as local members 
· Those who participate in and contribute to the democratic process should not 

suffer unreasonable financial disadvantage 
· Members should be compensated for their work and the compensation should 

have regard to the full range of commitment and complexity of their roles 
· The system should be transparent, simple to operate and understand 
· The system should not encourage the proliferation of meetings or provoke 

members into spending more time on council business than is necessary 
· The level of remuneration should relate to a commonly accepted benchmark such 

as the median male non-manual salary. 
 
6.12 In addition another important principle is set out in Government Guidance document 

“New Council Constitutions: Guidance on Regulation for Local Authority Allowances 
2002” 

 
“It is important that some element of the work of members continues to be voluntary - 
that some hours are not remunerated. This must be balanced against the need to 
ensure that financial loss is not suffered by elected members, and further to ensure 
that, despite the input required, people are encouraged to come forward as elected 
members and that their service to the community is retained.” 

Page 98



  Independent Remuneration Panel 
 
 
  

10 

 

7.0 BASIC ALLOWANCE 

7.1 Current Arrangements 

7.2 All 60 Members receive a basic allowance of £3,300 per annum.  In accordance with 
the Regulations, this allowance is intended to recognise the time commitment of 
members including the inevitable calls on their time such as meetings with officers and 
constituents.  It is also intended to cover relevant incidental costs. 

7.3 Review 

7.4 The basic allowance has remained at £3,300 per annum since 2010. 

7.5 The Panel sought the views as to the adequacy of this level of basic allowance.  From 
the members’ questionnaire survey, 39% of those who responded felt that the 
allowance was adequate.  Of the 61% who did not feel that it was adequate their views 
ranged from concerns that the allowance would not attract young people into local 
politics and precluded full-time employment (56% of those responding to the survey 
were retired).  A number felt that the allowance was not adequate compensation for 
the time spent on the role and should be raised, at least in line with inflation. Some 
considered that what was required was fewer but better paid members.  As 70% of 
Members did not respond to the survey, the Panel concluded that they had no strong 
views about the adequacy of the basic allowance. 

7.6 The Panel sought comparison peer group local authorities 

7.7 In determining an appropriate rate of basic allowance the Panel also had  regard to 
the following: 

 
· the overall relatively low earnings in the immediate local economy  
 
· despite an increase in the national economy, this has not been  reflected in 

pay levels 
 

· the level of pay increase received by Council employees in 2013/14 
(The IRP was informed that employees received a 1% increase in pay from 1 April 
2013.  This followed a three year period of no increases) 
 

· the time commitment of members   
 

· the fact that being a councillor has long been recognised as a form of 
voluntary public service 

 
 

7.8 Recommendation 

7.9 That the basic allowance be increased by 1.5%, giving a new basic allowance of 
£3350 per annum, to take effect following the Lancaster City Council elections in 
2015. 

 

 

Page 99



  Independent Remuneration Panel 
 
 
  

11 

 

8 SPECIAL RESPONSIBILITY ALLOWANCES (SRAs) 

8.1 Current Arrangements 

8.2 The current range of SRAs is as follows: 

Allowance Amount (pa) 
Leader of the Council and Chairman of the Cabinet £11, 060  
Deputy Leader of the Council £6,530 
Cabinet Members £5,530  
Overview and Scrutiny Committee Chair  £4,145 
Budget and Performance Panel Chairman  £3,315 
Planning Committee Chairman  £4,285 
Licensing Regulatory Committee Chairman £4,285 
Licensing Act Committee Chairman  £715 
Licensing Act Hearings Sub Committee Chairman  £435 
Personnel Committee Chairman  £3,270 
Audit Committee Chairman  £2,280 
Appeals Committee Chairman  £290 
Council Business Committee Chairman  £1,400 
Standards Committee Chairman  £1,210 
Leader of Opposition Groups (allocated on a pro rata basis)  £5,530 

 

8.3 Review 

8.4 The SRAs for Members have been reviewed regularly. 

8.5 The Regulations specify that whilst additional responsibilities may be unique to 
particular members, “it may be that all or most members have some such 
responsibility to varying degrees.  Such duties may not lead to a significant extra 
workload for any one particular member above another.  These sorts of responsibilities 
should be recognised as a time commitment to council work which is acknowledged 
within the basic allowance and not responsibilities for which a special responsibility 
allowance is recommended” (paragraph 73, New Council Constitutions: Guidance on 
Regulation for Local Authority Allowances). 

8.6 The Panel reviewed the levels of responsibility, workload and time commitment of the 
roles attracting SRAs. The absence of detailed role profiles for the roles receiving 
SRAs was of concern to the Panel and needs to be addressed. 

  
8.7 Recommendations 
 

8.8 The IRP recommends that there are no changes to Special Responsibility  
Allowances. 

· The Panel recommends that the Council should continue to adhere to the established 
conventions that no member should receive more than one SRA and that no more 
than 50% of elected members should receive an SRA.   

Page 100



  Independent Remuneration Panel 
 
 
  

12 

 

· The Panel recommends that detailed role profiles be prepared for each role qualifying 
for an SRA to assist with future evaluation of responsibilities, complexity and time 
commitment. 

9 DEPENDENTS’ CARERS’ ALLOWANCES 

9.1 Current Arrangements 
 
9.2 The Council provides for the payment of a dependents’ carers’ allowance to members 

who incur expenditure on the care of children aged 14 years and under, or other 
dependants whilst undertaking particular duties where there is medical or social work 
evidence that care is required.  The duties which qualify are set out in the Regulations. 

 
9.3 Review 
 
9.4 The Panel noted the low level of claims in this area.  
 
9.5 There were no significant issues raised in the members questionnaire in respect of this 

allowance therefore the Panel concluded that the allowance was sufficient to meet the 
needs of the Council. 

 
9.6 Recommendation 
 
9.7 The Panel recommends that the current levels of allowance should remain 

unchanged. 

10.0 TRAVEL AND SUBSISTENCE ALLOWANCES 

10.1 Current Arrangements 
 
10.2 Arrangements are in place to enable members to claim the costs of travel and 

subsistence associated with undertaking approved duties.  
  
10.3 The Panel remain concerned that the Council changed the IRP recommendation on 

travel from outside council boundaries for meetings without due regard for its full 
implications. 

 
10.4 Review 
 
10.5 The Panel considers that the mileage rates payable for the use of cars/vans, 

motorcycles and cycles should remain aligned to the HMRC rates.  
 
10.6 The Panel recommends that the list of approved duties for the payment of travel and 

subsistence allowances should be in the schemes of allowances.  
 
10.7 The Panel may undertake a more extensive review of subsistence allowances at its 

next review.   
 
10.8 Recommendation 

Page 101



  Independent Remuneration Panel 
 
 
  

13 

 

10.9 That the HMRC rates of travel allowances should apply: 

Type of Vehicle First 10,000 miles Above 10,000 miles 
 

Cars and vans 45p per mile 25p per mile 
Motorcycles 24p per mile 24p per mile 
Cycles 20p per mile 20p per mile 

 
11.0 COST OF PARKING 

11.1 Current Arrangements 
 
11.2 All members are currently eligible to purchase annual parking permits. This covers 

parking in any car park managed by the council, and can be used at any time 
regardless of whether or not the member is on council business. 

 
A member who has purchased such a permit is not permitted to claim reimbursement 
for any parking authorised by the permit.  However, a member who chooses not to 
purchase such a permit receives reimbursement of any parking fees that may be 
incurred in the course of approved duties. 

 
11.3 Review 
 
11.4 The Panel reviewed the current arrangements, the members questionnaire and sought 

the opinion of those members interviewed.   
 
11.5 Recommendation 
  

11.6 The Panel refers members to their recommendation of November 2011:  

‘The Panel would recommend, as a starting point, that, where there are convenient 
public transport links, elected members should be encouraged to use public transport 
in appropriate circumstances. 

 
The Panel noted that the view had been expressed that the current arrangements with 
regard to car parking were unfair. The Panel felt that it would be fair to everyone if the 
member permit facility was withdrawn, and that where it is necessary for a member to 
travel by car, a long stay car park only should be used, and the actual cost of car 
parking be reimbursed on presentation of a receipt from the ticket machine. 

 
The panel recommend that the Scheme be amended accordingly.’ 

11.7 However, the Panel recognises that this recommendation was not accepted by 
Council, and that the current arrangements which give members the option of either 
purchasing a member permit, or receiving reimbursement on production of a valid car 
park ticket, will continue. 

 

 

Page 102



  Independent Remuneration Panel 
 
 
  

14 

 

12.0 INFORMATION AND COMMUNICATION TECHNOLOGY (ICT) 

12.1 Current Arrangements 
 
12.2 There have been recent changes to councillors’ remote access to the IT network, owing to the 

requirements that had to be met in order to comply with the government standards for 
connection to the Public Services Network.  IT officers are currently reviewing the options for 
broadband connection that will be required for members, and will report to the Panel in due 
course.   

 
12.3 Review 
 
12.4 The Panel reviewed the current arrangements, the members questionnaire and sought 

the opinion of those members interviewed  
 
12.5 Recommendation 
 
12.6 The Panel has no recommendation to make in this report, and is awaiting the 

decision of officers on future ICT provision. 

 
13.0 CO-OPTEES’ ALLOWANCE 
 
13.1 Current Arrangements  

 
Each authority may also provide an allowance to any co-opted and appointed 
members of a council’s committees or sub committees.  No appointments requiring an 
allowance have been made. 

13.2 Review 
 
13.3 The Panel reviewed the current arrangements. 
 
13.4 Recommendation 
 
13.5 The Panel has no recommendation to make in this report. 

14.0 PENSIONS 

14.1 Current Arrangements 
 
14.2 The 2003 Regulations provide that, following a recommendation from its Panel, a local 

authority can make provision in its scheme of allowances for members to be able to 
join and enjoy the benefits of a pension scheme.  No such provision exists in the 
current scheme of members’ allowances. 

 
14.3 Review 
 
14.4 The Panel is aware that some local authorities have made provision in their schemes 

for some or all members to join the Local Government Pension Scheme following 
recommendation to that effect from their IRPs.  The Panel has also been informed that 

Page 103



  Independent Remuneration Panel 
 
 
  

15 

 

with effect from 1 April new regulations mean that members are not able to join the 
Local Government Pension Scheme. 

 
14.5 Recommendation 
 
14.6 The Panel recommends no change in the current arrangements regarding pensions. 

 

15.0 MEMBER CHAMPIONS 

15.1 Current Arrangements 

15.2 The Panel are aware of the role of Member Champions within the Council, and 
recommended in July 2013 that the Members’ Allowances Scheme be amended to 
permit reasonable travel and subsistence claims from Champions carrying out their 
role, in line with the current rates for travel within and outside the district. 

15.3 Review 
 
15.4 The Panel intends to review the role of Member Champions in a future report to 

Council. 
 
15.5 Recommendation 
 
15.6 The Panel does not have a recommendation to make in respect of Member 

Champions at this point. 
 

16.0 COSTS OF RECOMMENDATIONS 

16. The Scheme of Members’ Allowances currently in place costs £285,460 per 
 annum. 
 
16.2 The Scheme of Members’ Allowances now recommended by the IRP would cost 

£288,460 per annum. 

17.0 ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

17.1 The IRP wishes to thank Peter Baines and Sarah Taylor for their invaluable assistance 
and support during this review.

Page 104



 
 

16 

 

 
 
 

PART 8 

 

RECOMMENDED 
MEMBERS’ ALLOWANCES 

SCHEME 
 

Page 105



 
 

17 

 

Part 8  

Members’ Allowances Scheme 
 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 

1.1 The scheme outlined in this document was adopted following a full review by the 
Independent Remuneration Panel in accordance with the Local Authorities 
(Members’ Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003.  The Panel carried out the 
review between June and December 2014.  This Scheme, which takes effect from 
May 2015, reflects the option adopted by Council on the 17th December 2014.  A 
further review will be carried out after 4 years (i.e. for implementation no later than 
May 2019).   

 

2.0 BASIC ALLOWANCE 

2.1 Basic allowance is to be paid to all Members, and is intended to recognise a time 
commitment expected of all Members, including such inevitable calls on their time as 
meetings with officers and constituents and attendance at political group meetings.  It 
is also intended to cover incidental costs such as the use of homes and private 
telephones. 

2.2 Each Member is entitled to £3,350 per annum, which will be paid monthly. 

2.3 In addition to the Basic Allowance, all Members will be provided with a laptop and 
printer together with a suitable broadband connection to enable them to access the 
Council network.  Where Members use their own broadband connection for such 
purposes a payment of a monthly amount equivalent to that paid by the Council for 
the provision of the service will be paid which can be used by the Member as 
payment (in part or in full) to their own Service Provider.  Where a member wishes to 
utilise their own PC or laptop, rather than use a Council provided laptop, this must be 
the subject of prior agreement with the Council’s Information Services Application 
Manager, and the Council may enable a remote access facility for that Member. 

2.4  In order to comply with the requirements of Data Protection legislation the Council 
will, in addition, pay for the registration of each Councillor under the Data Protection 
Act. 

3.0 SPECIAL RESPONSIBILITY ALLOWANCE 

3.1 A special responsibility allowance will be paid in addition to any entitlement to basic 
allowance for those Members who have significant responsibilities.   

3.2 The Members receiving special responsibility allowance and the allowances payable 
are as follows:- 

 2015/16 

Leader of the Council and Chairman of the Cabinet £11,060 

Page 106



 
 

18 

 

Deputy Leader of the Council £6,530 

Cabinet Members £5,530 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee Chairman £4,145 

Budget and Performance Panel Chairman £3,315 

Planning Committee Chairman £4,285 

Licensing Regulatory Committee Chairman £4,285 

Licensing Act Committee Chairman  £715 

Licensing Act Hearings Sub-Committee Chairmen £435 

Personnel Committee Chairman £3,270 

Audit Committee Chairman £2,280 

Appeals Committee Chairman £290 

Council Business Committee Chairman 

Standards Committee Chairman 

£1,400 

£1,210 

Leader(s) of Opposition Group(s) (to be allocated to 
leaders of groups who are “in opposition”, ie who are not 
represented on Cabinet.  The sum specified is to be 
divided between the leaders of any such groups which 
have four or more members, in proportion to the size of 
their respective groups.)     

£5,530 

 

3.3 No Member is entitled to more than one payment from the Scales identified above. 

3.4 It will be for individual Members who would qualify for more than one special 
responsibility allowance to inform the Head of Governance as to which allowance 
they would wish to be allocated, otherwise it will be assumed that the highest 
allowance is to be paid. 

4.0 CARERS’ ALLOWANCE 

4.1 The Council will make reasonable payments for the reimbursement of the care of 
dependent relatives living with the Elected Member.  Full details of the Carers’ 
Allowance Scheme are attached at Appendix A. 

5.0 PART PAYMENTS 

5.1 In the case of basic and special responsibility allowances, payment will only be made 
for the period during which a person performs the duties for which these allowances 
are payable. Where a member (or co-optee) is suspended or partially suspended 
from his responsibilities or duties as a member of the Council, in accordance with 
Part III of the Local Government Act 2000 or regulations thereunder, the part of basic 
allowance or special responsibility allowance payable to him in respect of the period 
for which he is suspended or partially suspended may be withheld by the Council.   

Page 107



 
 

19 

 

6.0 REPAYMENTS 

6.1 Where payment of any allowance has already been made in respect of any period 
during which the member concerned is suspended or partially suspended from his 
responsibilities or duties as a member of the Council in accordance with Part III of the 
Local Government Act 2000 or regulations made thereunder, or ceases to be a 
member of the Council or is in any other way not entitled to receive the allowance in 
respect of that period, the member (or co-optee) shall repay to the Council on 
demand such part of the allowance as relates to any such period. 

 

7.0 REVOCATION 

7.1 Basic and special responsibility allowances will be paid automatically unless notice is 
received in writing from the Member concerned revoking the entitlement.  All such 
notices should be delivered to the Head of Financial Services. 

8.0 CLAIMS 

8.1 Claims for travel and subsistence allowances should be submitted monthly after the 
end of the month in which the entitlement to the allowance arose and in any event no 
later than 3 months from that date.  Claims must be made on the official claim form 
available from the Head of Financial Services. 

8.2 Completed claim forms should be forwarded to Governance (Democratic Services). 
Claims will be checked on receipt in Democratic Services and, when verified, 
forwarded to Financial Services for payment.    Those received in Democratic 
Services by the 20th of a month will be paid on the 15th of the following month.  
Claims received in Democratic Services after the 20th cannot be guaranteed to be 
paid the following month. 

8.3 Payments are made net of income tax, through the PAYE system used for salaried 
employees.  Bank details are, therefore, required for each Member.  If a Member 
changes their bank details, the revised details should be provided to the Head of 
Financial Services. 

9.0 TRAVEL AND SUBSISTENCE ALLOWANCES 

9.1 In addition to the Members’ Allowances Scheme, travel and subsistence allowances 
are payable.   
 

9.2 A full schedule of rates payable for travel and subsistence and eligible duties is 
attached at Appendix B, and the approved duties for which travel and subsistence 
allowances are payable are set out in Annexes 1-3. 

 

9.3 All such travel and subsistence payments are payable to independent and parish 
members of the Council’s Standards Committee when attending meetings or training 
in connection with their duties on that committee or its sub-committees. 

 

9.4 For the purposes of the payment of travel expenses, all travel will be deemed to have 
commenced from the Member’s current address or, if this is not within the 
administrative area of the Council, from the address through which the Member 

Page 108



 
 

20 

 

qualified to stand for election. However, for the purposes of attending one meeting of 
the full Council only and during the summer vacation only, travel from an address 
within the UK mainland will be reimbursed to an Elected Member who is registered as 
a full time student and who does not at the time of the meeting have an address 
within the administrative area of the Council. No subsistence or overnight allowances 
will be paid. 

10.0    LGA ALLOWANCES 
 

10.1 For those Members of the Council who have accepted political appointments on the 
LGA the Council’s policy for the payment of Carers Allowances and Travel and 
Subsistence Allowances is set out at Appendix C. 

 

11.0 PUBLICATION 

 

11.1 The Council is required to publish details of the Members’ Allowances Scheme and 
the total amounts received by each Member.  The Head of Governance is 
responsible for this matter. 

12.0 MAYORAL AND DEPUTY MAYORAL EXPENSES 

 

12.1 These expenses are paid to the Mayor and Deputy Mayor to reflect the additional 
expenditure that arises with these positions. 

 

12.2 The level of Mayoral allowances will be:-   2015/16 
   

    Mayor  £6,720  

      Deputy Mayor £1,335  

 

13.0 REVIEW OF SCHEME 

13.1 The Independent Remuneration Panel will review the Scheme as and when 
requested, and in any event before May 2019, and will consider whether any annual 
index-linked increases are appropriate at any time.. 

13.2 The Independent Remuneration Panel will monitor the Scheme. 

13.3 Minor revisions are the responsibility of the Chief Executive in consultation with the 
Chairman of the Independent Remuneration Panel. 

13.4 Any queries or matters of clarification or determination as to Members’ entitlements 
to any provisions of this scheme shall be ultimately determined by the Chief 
Executive 

 

Page 109



 
 

21 

 

14.0 QUERIES 

14.1 Any specific queries regarding the entitlement to the scheme should, in the first 
instance, be addressed to the Chief Officer (Governance) (telephone 582025).  
Queries regarding claims and payments should be addressed to the Exchequer 
Payments Team in Financial Services . 

 

Page 110



 
 

22 

 

 

 

CARERS’ ALLOWANCE SCHEME 
 

1.0 Legality 

(a) The scheme is established by the Council under the Local Authorities 
(Members Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003.  The Carers’ Allowance 
is payable in respect of the approved duties set out in Annexes 1-3 of 
Appendix B.  The scheme requires Councillors claiming the allowance to 
demonstrate and certify that carer expenses are actually and necessarily 
incurred in the conduct of their official duties. 

 

2.0 Entitlement 

 

(a) The scheme provides for payments to be made to Councillors in respect of 
care for “dependent relatives” living with the Member.  For the purposes of the 
scheme, “dependent relatives” are defined as: 

 

 (i) children aged 14 or under; 

 (ii) elderly relatives requiring full-time care; and 

 (iii) relatives with disabilities who require full-time care. 

 

(b) The allowance is payable for care provided by carers registered by a 
Councillor with the Authority (see paragraph 6.0(b) for details).  In the case of 
(i) above, under no circumstances will the allowance be payable to another 
parent, the parent’s spouse or partner.  In the case of (ii) and (iii) above, 
under no circumstances will the allowance be payable in respect of care 
provided by a member of the Councillor’s household. 

(c) For meetings or duties within the Council’s boundaries as set out in Annexes 
1, 2 and 3, the allowance will be paid for the duration of the meeting or 
otherwise approved duty plus an allowance for up to one hour’s travelling time 
before and after the meeting.  For duties outside the Council’s boundaries, 
the allowance will be paid for the duration of the duty plus the actual travelling 
time to and from the venue.  In all instances, total time claimed should be 
rounded to the nearest half-hour. 

 

 

 

Page 111



 
 

23 

 

3.0 Rates of Allowance 

(a) The actual cost of care will be reimbursed, up to a maximum of £8.35 per 
hour, irrespective of the number of dependants. 

 

(b) Where a dependent relative requires specialist professional care, the full cost 
of care will be allowed, with the prior written approval of the Head of 
Governance see paragraph 6 (b)). 

4.0 Claims Procedures 

(a) Members wishing to apply for Carers’ Allowance must submit an application 
form to the Head of Governance, declaring that: 

(i) claims made will only be made in respect of a named dependent 
relative (or relatives) as defined in the scheme; 

(ii) claims will only be made in respect of the entitlements set out in 2.0 
above; 

(iii) receipts will be provided in support of all claims; and 

(iv) where a specialist professional carer is to be engaged, that this is a 
necessary expense for which full reimbursement will be claimed. 

 

(b) Members are required to notify Democratic Services in the event of their 
entitlement to Carers’ Allowance ending. 

(c) All claims will be processed by Financial Services through the Council’s 
payroll system.  In exceptional circumstances, and with the approval of the 
Head of Financial Services, advance payments may be made in cash and 
subsequently adjusted through the payroll. 

5.0 Taxation and National Insurance Contributions 

 Advice from the Council’s taxation consultants is that payments made under such a 
scheme will be subject to Income Tax and NIC’s unless an arrangement can be 
reached with the Inland Revenue and dispensation not to tax obtained on the basis 
that the payments are reimbursement of costs actually and necessarily incurred. 

Because of the potential taxation and NIC implications, all payments must be 
processed through the Council’s payroll system. 

Negotiations are being entered into with the local Inland Revenue office with a view 
to agreeing the principle of a dispensation not to tax any Carers’ Allowances payable. 

6.0 Administration 

 

(a) The scheme is an integral element of the Council’s Members’ Allowances 
Scheme, and responsibility for supervising, maintaining and reviewing the 

Page 112



 
 

24 

 

scheme is assumed by the Head of Governance in conjunction with the Chief 
Executive and the Independent Remuneration Panel. 

 

(b) Signed applications for registration of a carer are to be submitted by Members 
for approval by the Head of Governance.  Approved applications will be 
retained by Democratic Services and a copy forwarded to Financial Services. 

 

(c) Claims for payment of the allowance should be submitted by Members to 
Financial Services on the revised standard Members’ Allowances forms.  All 
claims must be supported by a signed pro-forma receipt (in the case of care 
provided by a non-professional carer) or a receipted official invoice in the 
case of a specialist carer.  Financial Services will check all claims for approval 
of entitlement, accuracy and reasonableness of duties and times claimed, and 
submission of supporting receipts and invoices. 

 

(d) Any queries regarding entitlement to the allowance, or individual claims, will 
be referred in the first instance to Democratic Services.  Should a dispute 
arise as to the eligibility of a claim, this will be referred to the Head of 
Governance or Chief Executive for decision.  Should agreement not be 
reached the matter will then be referred to the Independent Remuneration 
Panel for arbitration. 

7.0 Audit 
 

 Internal Audit will review the systems for payment of Members’ Allowances on a cyclical 
basis and include sample testing of Members’ Allowances transactions in annual probity 
programmes. 

Page 113



 
 

25 

 

APPENDIX B 

 

TRAVEL AND SUBSISTENCE ALLOWANCES PAYABLE 
 

Travelling Allowances 

 

(A) Public Transport (except taxis and aircraft)  

 

(i) The rate must not exceed the ordinary standard class fare or any available 
saver fare, but the Council may generally or specially determine to substitute 
first for standard class fare. 

(ii) Supplementary allowance may be paid for expenses actually incurred on 
Pullman Car or a similar supplement, reservation of seats, deposit or portage 
of luggage and sleeping accommodation for overnight journeys, but in this 
last case the maximum overnight subsistence allowance is reduced by one-
third. 

 

(iii) All long distance rail journeys and sea-travel bookings must be made by 
Members Services on behalf of Councillors, to seek the most cost-effective 
deal within current parameters. 

 

(iv) For journeys by public transport the cost of any private vehicle travel to and 
from the point of public transport may also be reimbursed at the rate set out in 
B below. 

 

(v) For journeys within the Council’s administrative area valid receipts must be 
produced. 

 

(vi) For journeys outside the Council’s administrative area where the journey has 
been undertaken by car, the equivalent of a standard class rail fare as 
determined by Members Services on receipt of the claim shall be payable, 
subject to this being less than the payable rate set out in (B) below. 

 

 (B) Private Vehicle – for journeys within the City Council’s administrative area:  

 

(i) By motor cycle 24p per mile and by motor car - 45p per mile.  (The rates 
payable are those recommended by the HM Revenue & Customs and will be 
increased in line with their guidance.) 

  

(ii) Cycling/other non-motorised transport allowance (in all cases) - 20p per mile 
 

Page 114



 
 

26 

 

For journeys outside the Council’s administrative area, the lower of the above 
mileage allowance or the relevant standard class rail fare will be paid. However the 
cost of any private vehicle travel to and from the point of public transport may also be 
reimbursed at the rates set out above. 

Car parking charges may be reimbursed on production of a valid receipt.  However, 
where a Member chooses to purchase a Member Car Parking Permit, the Council will 
not make any reimbursement towards the cost of parking within the district. 

 
Supplementary payments may be made for tolls and ferries actually incurred, on 
production of a valid receipt.  

 

(C) Taxis and Hire Vehicles 

 

(i) Taxis:  in cases of urgency or where there is no reasonably available public 
transport, the fare plus any reasonable gratuity paid.  In other cases, the fare 
by appropriate public transport. 

 

(ii) Hire Vehicles:  the rate appropriate if the Member had owned the vehicles, 
unless the Council approves additional amounts up to the actual hiring cost. 

 

(D) Aircraft 

 

(i) The rate applicable to travel by appropriate alternative transport plus any 
amount of attendance or financial loss or subsistence allowance saved by 
travelling by air. 

 

(ii) But if the Council generally or specially resolves that the saving in time is so 
substantial, then – 

 (a) the ordinary or available cheap fare by regular service; or 

(b) where no such service is available or in the case of emergency, the 
fare  

actually paid. 

 

(iii) The Chief Executive has discretion to authorise air travel. 

 

(iv) All bookings must be made by Democratic Services on behalf of Councillors. 

 

Page 115



 
 

27 

 

 

 

Subsistence Allowance 

 

(i) In case of an absence, other than an overnight absence from home, subsistence 
allowance is payable as follows – 

 

Breakfast (when more than 4 hours away from normal place of residence) 

Members on approved duties who leave home before 7.00 a.m. to attend a 
location outside the Council’s boundary, may claim breakfast expenses as 
follows - 

 

Breakfast, on production of a valid receipt Up to £5.85 

Breakfast, (in London), on production of a valid receipt Up to £8.50 

Breakfast, (in or out of London), where unable to produce a receipt £3.20 

 

Lunch (when more than 4 hours away from normal place of residence) 

Members on approved duties outside the Council’s boundary from 11.45 a.m. 
to 1.30 p.m. may claim lunch expenses as follows – 

 

Lunch, on production of a valid receipt Up to £5.85 

Lunch, (in London), on production of a valid receipt Up to £8.50 

Lunch, (in or out of London), where unable to produce a receipt £3.20 

 

Evening Meal (when more than 4 hours away from normal place of residence) 

Members on approved duties who have not returned home by 7.30 p.m. may claim an evening 

meal as follows – 

 

Evening meal, on production of a valid receipt Up to £11.45 

Evening meal, (in London), on production of a valid receipt Up to £17.00 

Evening meal, (in or out of London), where unable to produce a receipt £5.85 

In the case of an overnight absence - £90.60 

Page 116



 
 

28 

 

For an overnight absence in Central London £103.40 

 

(ii) The value of free meals must be deducted from the allowance.  Where main meals 
are taken on trains during which there is an entitlement to a day subsistence 
allowance, the reasonable cost of meals (including VAT) may be reimbursed in full.  
In such circumstances, reimbursement for the cost of a meal would replace the 
entitlement to the day subsistence allowance for the appropriate meal period. 

 

(iii) All accommodation bookings should be made by Democratic Services.   

 

(iv) Where pre-booked the cost of hotel meals will be paid by the Council. 

 

Eligible Duties 

 

Approved duties eligible for claiming travel and subsistence allowances are set out in 
Annexes 1, 2 and 3. 

 

Page 117



 
 

29 

 

 

Annex 1 

 

 

Approved Duties - Meetings of the Authority 

Council 
Committees established by Council and any sub-committees established by 
those Committees, currently: 

Personnel Committee 

Audit Committee 

Appeals Committee 

Licensing Regulatory Committee 

Licensing Act Committee 

       Licensing Act Sub-Committees  

Planning and Highways Regulatory Committee 

Scheduled Planning Briefings 

Standards Committee 

       Standards Sub-Committees 

Council Business Committee 
 

Page 118



 
 

30 

 

Cabinet 

Committees established by Cabinet 

Cabinet Liaison Groups established by Cabinet 

Scheduled Cabinet Briefings 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
Task Groups established by Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Budget and Performance Panel 

Joint Committees: 

Joint Committee for Revenues and Benefits 

Appraisal Panel 

Page 119



 
 

31 

 

Annex 2 

Approved Duties - Outside Bodies 
 

Note: All the following bodies are currently operating with one or more Council-nominated 
representative.   

 

Organisation 

Arnside & Silverdale AONB Unit 
Board of the Lancaster and District Chamber of Commerce 
Board of Trustees of Skerton Charities 
Board of Trustees of the Lancaster Charity 
Carnforth Station and Railway Trust Company Limited 
Community Safety Partnership 
Court of the University of Lancaster 
Crook O'Lune Advisory Committee 
Dukes Playhouse Board of Directors 
Forest of Bowland AONB Joint Advisory Committee 
Friendship Centre Management Committee 
George Fox School Educational Charity 
Health and Wellbeing Partnership 
Health Scrutiny Committee 
Heysham Mossgate (Community Facilities) Company Limited 
Heysham Nuclear Power Station Local Community Liaison Council 
Historic Towns Forum 
Homelessness Forum 
Lancashire Leaders Meeting 
Lancashire Tourism Forum 
Lancashire Waste Partnership 
Lancaster & District Multi Agency Forum on Domestic Violence 
Lancaster & Morecambe Fairtrade District Steering Group 
Lancaster & Skipton Rail User Group 
Lancaster Business Improvement District (BID) Management Group 
Lancaster District Children’s Trust Board 
Lancaster District CVS 
Lancaster Ripley Church of England Education Trust 
Lancaster University Council 
Leeds-Morecambe and Settle-Carlisle Railway Development Partnership 
LGA Coastal Issues Special Interest Group 
LGA Executive 
LGA Rural Commission 
LGA Urban Commission 
Lune Park Children’s Centre 
Lune Valley Transport Enterprise 
Marsh Community Centre Management Committee 
Morecambe Bay Partnership 
Museums Advisory Panel 
National Association of AONBs 
North Lancashire Citizens Advice Bureaux 

Page 120



 
 

32 

 

Organisation 

North Lancashire Local Action Group Executive Group 
North West Local Authority Employers’ Organisation 
North West Home Safety Council 
North West Local Authorities Employers' Organisation 
North West Rural Affairs Forum 
Preston and Western Lancashire Racial Equality Council 
Rainbow Centre, Morecambe 
Relate Lancashire, Lancaster District 
Reserve Forces and Cadets Association for NW of England and Isle of Man 

 

Page 121



 
 

33 

 

 
Annex 3 

 

 

Approved Duties - Other Duties  

Attendance at Conferences/Seminars to which the Council or Cabinet has 
nominated a delegate 

Media Receptions 

Scheduled, Formal Meetings with Chief Executive/Chief Officers 
Mayoral and other public ceremonies/launches etc approved by the Council or 
Committee of the Council 

Scheduled, Formal Meetings with Trade Unions 

Scheduled, Formal Meetings of Cabinet / Overview and Scrutiny meetings / 
Working Groups 

Reasonable travelling expenses and subsistence to Member Champions 
appointed by Council in carrying out their Champion’s role. 

 

 

Notes: 

The essential criteria for these, and any other such duties that may arise, is that they must 
be formally structured and diarised elements of Council business.  The inclusion of other 
duties within this definition will be at the discretion of the Head of Governance 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 122



 
 

34 

 

Appendix C LGA Scheme of Members Allowances - City Council Policy 

The LGA's current scheme of members' allowances became be effective from April 2003.  
The main features of the scheme are: 

· Members of all Executives are paid an annual lump sum 'Responsibility Allowance' 
reflecting both the time which might be spent and the level of responsibility involved 
in carrying out these posts; no other attendance allowance is paid; 

· The LGA pays travel and subsistence for meetings at which a Member has been 
appointed in a representative role on behalf of the LGA.  The City Council pays the 
travel and subsistence costs for other meetings. 

· The LGA pays carers allowance in respect of all approved duties and to members 
representing the LGA on outside bodies. 

· Allowances paid by the association are index-linked to the principal local government 
pay settlement. 

Page 123



Independent Remuneration Panel 

 
 
 

35 

 

 
 

Appendix 2 

Background Bibliography 

1. The Local Authorities (Members' Allowances) (England) Regulations 2001 
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2001/1280/contents/made 
 

2. Many of the issues addressed by the Panel are referred to in “Members on the 
frontline”  Communities and Local Government Committee - Sixth Report  
January 2013   
http://www.publications.parliament.uk/pa/cm201213/cmselect/cmcomloc/432/43202.h
tm 

And : 
 
Government Response to the House of Commons Communities and Local 
Government Select Committee Report: “Members on the frontline” 
Presented to Parliament by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local 
Government by Command of Her Majesty March 2013 
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/14209
4/8582.pdf 

 
3. A methodology for fixing the basic allowance and using a ‘public sector 

discount’ has evolved and this has been codified by Dr Declan Hall
 
of the 

School of Public Policy, University of Birmingham - see Members Commission 
report ‘Members Remuneration – Models, Issues, Incentives and Barriers’, 
Department of Communities and Local Government, December 2007.   
http://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/20080910134927/http://communities.gov.u
k/documents/localgovernment/pdf/584026.pdf 

 
4. The Panel also had access to the report  “MPs’ Pay and Pensions: A New 

Package  July 2013” 
http://parliamentarystandards.org.uk/payandpensions/Documents/10.%20MPs'%20P
ay%20and%20Pensions%20-%20A%20New%20Package%20-
%20Summary%20Document.pdf 
 

5. CACI: Paycheck: Household Income:   
Lancashire & Districts: 2013. 
http://www.lancashire.gov.uk/corporate/web/?siteid=6236&pageid=36486&e=

e 
 

6. Representing the Future - The report of the Members Commission, December 
2007. 
http://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/20080910134927/http://www.comm
unities.gov.uk/documents/localgovernment/pdf/583990.pdf 

 

Page 124



Independent Remuneration Panel 

 
 
 

36 

 

Appendix 3 

 

Witnesses Interviewed By Panel 

 

 
- Councillor Abbot Bryning (Labour) 

Special Responsibility Allowance: Cabinet Member and Portfolio Holder with 
Responsibility for Finance, Revenues and Benefits and ICT 

 

- Councillor Tony Johnson (Conservative) 

 

- Councillor Paul Woodruff (Free Independent Group) 

 

- Councillor Peter Williamson (Conservative) 

Special Responsibility Allowance: Leader of Opposition Group 

 

- Councillor Paul Gardner (Labour) 

Special Responsibility Allowance: Personnel Committee Chairman 

 

- Councillor Roger Dennison (Independent Group) 

Special Responsibility Allowance: Leader of Opposition Group 

 

- Councillor Liz Scott (Labour) 

 

 

Page 125



 CABINET  
10.00 A.M.  4TH NOVEMBER 2014 
 
PRESENT:- Councillors Eileen Blamire (Chairman), Janice Hanson (Vice-Chairman), 

Jon Barry, Abbott Bryning, Tim Hamilton-Cox, Karen Leytham, Ron Sands 
and David Smith 

  
 Officers in attendance:-  
 Mark Cullinan Chief Executive 
 Sarah Taylor Chief Officer (Governance) and Monitoring Officer 
 Nadine Muschamp Chief Officer (Resources) and Section 151 Officer 
 Andrew Dobson Chief Officer (Regeneration and Planning) 
 Liz Bateson Principal Democratic Support Officer 
 
50 MINUTES  
 
 The minutes of the meeting held on Tuesday 7 October 2014 were approved as a 

correct record.  
  
51 ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS AUTHORISED BY THE LEADER  
 
 The Chairman advised that there were no items of urgent business.  
  
52 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
 No declarations were made at this point.   
  
53 PUBLIC SPEAKING  
 
 Members were advised that there had been a request to speak at the meeting from a 

member of the public in accordance with Cabinet’s agreed procedure, as set out in 
Cabinet Procedure Rule 2.7, with regard to the Dukes - Lease Renewal and the Dukes – 
Review of Service Level Agreement (Minutes 56 & 57 refer). 
 
Councillor Blamire declared an interest at this point in her capacity as a member of the 
Board of the Dukes, and indicated that she would not chair, speak or vote on these 
items. 
 
Councillor Hanson, the Vice-Chairman took the chair. 
  
Ivan Wadeson, Executive Director of the Dukes, accompanied by Sian Johnson, Chair of 
the Board at the Dukes, addressed the meeting and responded to questions from 
members.  

  
 Councillor Blamire took the Chair  
  
54 URGENT BUSINESS REPORT  
 
 (Cabinet Member with Special Responsibility Councillor Blamire) 

 
Cabinet received a report from the Chief Officer (Governance) to advise members of 
actions taken by the Chief Executive, in consultation with the relevant Cabinet Members. 

Agenda Item 22 Page 126



CABINET 4TH NOVEMBER 2014 
 

Councillor Leytham proposed, seconded by Councillor Blamire:- 
 
“That the recommendation, as set out in the report, be approved.” 
 
Councillors then voted:- 
 
Resolved unanimously: 

(1) That the actions taken by the Chief Executive, in consultation with the relevant 
Cabinet Members in accordance with the Scheme of Delegation, in respect of the 
following, be noted:- 

FUNDING BID TO DCLG FOR TRANSFORMATION CHALLENGE AWARD 

(1) That the Chief Executive under urgent business agrees to Lancaster City Council 
submitting an application to DCLG Transformation Challenge Award subject to 
there being no additional cost implications for the city council. 

(2) That should the bid be successful, acceptance of the funding is delegated to 
Chief Officer (Resources) subject to due diligence being completed. 

(3) That the General Fund Revenue Budget is updated accordingly, split across 
relevant financial years as appropriate. 

(4) That consultation is undertaken with a view to waiving call in, in accordance with 
Overview and Scrutiny procedure rule17, to enable the decision to be 
implemented immediately. 

Officer responsible for effecting the decision: 
 
Chief Officer (Governance) 
 
Reasons for making the decision: 
 
The decision fulfils the requirements of the City Council’s Constitution in advising 
Cabinet of urgent decisions taken by the Chief Executive in accordance with the City 
Council’s Scheme of Delegation.  

  
 Councillor Hanson took the Chair at this point, as Councillor Blamire had declared 

an interest in the following items.  
  
55 EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 
 It was moved by Councillor David Smith and seconded by Councillor Sands:- 

 
“That, in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press 
and public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business, on the 
grounds that it could involve the possible disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of that Act.” 
 
Members then voted as follows:- 
 
Resolved unanimously: 

Page 127



CABINET 4TH NOVEMBER 2014 
 

(1)  That, in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 
press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business, 
on the grounds that it could involve the possible disclosure of exempt information 
as defined in paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of that Act.    

  
56 THE DUKES, LANCASTER - LEASE RENEWAL  
 
 (Cabinet Member with Special Responsibility Councillor Hamilton-Cox) 

 
Cabinet received a report from the Chief Officer (Resources) to provide an update on the 
proposed details for the lease renewal for the Dukes.  The report was exempt from 
publication by virtue of paragraph 3, of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 
1972. 
 
The exempt report was for information only and therefore no options were presented for 
Cabinet’s consideration. 
 
Councillor David Smith proposed, seconded by Councillor Sands:- 
 
“That the recommendation, as set out in the exempt report, be approved.” 
 
Councillors then voted:- 
 
Resolved: 
 
(7 Members (Councillors Barry, Bryning, Hamilton-Cox, Hanson, Leytham, Sands 
and David Smith) voted in favour.  Councillor Blamire had declared an interest in 
this item and did not participate in the discussions or vote.) 
 

(1) That Cabinet notes the content of the report and that further progress and any 
outcome of this matter be presented during the 2015/16 budget process. 

 
Officer responsible for effecting the decision: 
 
Chief Officer (Resources) 
 
Reasons for making the decision: 
 
The arts is identified in the City Council’s Corporate Plan as a contributor to achieving 
the City Council’s priority of Sustainable Economic Growth.  Cabinet notes that The 
Dukes presented a new draft business plan and 5 year financial plan to Arts Council 
England in October 2014 and this will be shared with officers and members in early 
December once feedback has been received from the Arts Council England and it has 
been given approval by the Dukes’ Board of Directors.   

  
57 THE DUKES, LANCASTER – REVIEW OF SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENT  
 
 (Cabinet Member with Special Responsibility Councillor Sands) 

 
Cabinet received a report from the Chief Officer (Resources) which provided an update 
on the existing Service Level Agreement in the context of potential new lease and rent 
arrangements. The report was exempt from publication by virtue of paragraph 3, of 

Page 128



CABINET 4TH NOVEMBER 2014 
 

Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 
The report was for information only and therefore no options were presented in the 
exempt report for Cabinet’s consideration. 
 
Councillor Barry proposed, seconded by Councillor Sands:- 
 
“That the recommendation, as set out in the exempt report, be approved.” 
 
Councillors then voted:- 
 
Resolved: 
 
(7 Members (Councillors Barry, Bryning, Hamilton-Cox, Hanson, Leytham, Sands 
and David Smith) voted in favour.  Councillor Blamire had declared an interest in 
this item and did not participate in the discussions or vote.) 
 

(1) That Cabinet notes the content of the report and that further information is 
considered in due course as part of the 2015/16 budget process. 

 
Officers responsible for effecting the decision: 
 
Chief Officer (Regeneration & Planning) 
Chief Officer (Resources) 
 
Reasons for making the decision: 
 
The arts is identified in the City Council’s Corporate Plan as a contributor to achieving 
the City Council’s priority of Sustainable Economic Growth.  Cabinet notes that The 
Dukes presented a new draft business plan and 5 year financial plan to Arts Council 
England in October 2014 and this will be shared with officers and members in early 
December once feedback has been received from the Arts Council England and it has 
been given approval by the Dukes’ Board of Directors.  
  

  
  
 Chairman 
 

(The meeting ended at 10.40 a.m.) 
 

Any queries regarding these Minutes, please contact 
Liz Bateson, Democratic Services - telephone (01524) 582047 or email 

ebateson@lancaster.gov.uk 
 

MINUTES PUBLISHED ON THURSDAY 6th NOVEMBER, 2014.   
 
EFFECTIVE DATE FOR IMPLEMENTING THE DECISIONS CONTAINED IN THESE MINUTES: 
FRIDAY 14th NOVEMBER, 2014.   
 

Page 129



 CABINET  
10.00 A.M.  2ND DECEMBER 2014 
 
 
PRESENT:- Councillors Eileen Blamire (Chairman), Janice Hanson (Vice-Chairman), 

Jon Barry, Abbott Bryning, Tim Hamilton-Cox, Karen Leytham, Ron Sands 
and David Smith 

   
 Officers in attendance:-  
   
 Mark Cullinan Chief Executive 
 Nadine Muschamp Chief Officer (Resources) and Section 151 Officer 
 Mark Davies Chief Officer (Environment) 
 Andrew Dobson Chief Officer (Regeneration and Planning) 
 Suzanne Lodge Chief Officer (Health and Housing) 
 Liz Bateson Principal Democratic Support Officer 
 
58 MINUTES  
 
 The minutes of the meeting held on Tuesday 4 November 2014 were approved as a 

correct record.  
  
59 ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS AUTHORISED BY THE LEADER  
 
 The Chairman advised that there were no items of urgent business.  
  
60 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
 No declarations were made at this point.   
  
61 PUBLIC SPEAKING  
 
 Members were advised that there had been 4 requests to speak at the meeting from 

members of the public in accordance with Cabinet’s agreed procedure, as set out in 
Cabinet Procedure Rule 2.7.  Karen Chaplin and Andrew Kenyon had registered to 
speak on the Charter Market Review (Minute 62), with Helen Hicks and Rachel-Ann 
Powers having requested to speak on the Storey – Tasting Garden (Minute 63 refers). 
  

  
62 CHARTER MARKET REVIEW  
 
 (Cabinet Member with Special Responsibility Councillor Barry) 

 
Karen Chaplin and Andrew Kenyon who had registered to speak in accordance 
with the City Council’s agreed procedure and Cabinet Procedure Rule 2.7 
addressed the meeting on this item and responded to questions raised by Cabinet 
Members. 
 
Cabinet received a report from the Chief Officer (Environment) which provided options 
for the layout of the market once the Square Routes work has been completed.   
 
The options, options analysis, including risk assessment and officer preferred option, 

Page 130



CABINET 2ND DECEMBER 2014 
 

were set out in the report as follows: 
 
Is a more radical overhaul of the Charter Market required than what officers have 
consulted on? 

Some have suggested that the Council lacks a well thought out business plan and 
strategy for the market, and that without one the full potential of the city centre will not be 
realised and furthermore decisions cannot really be taken on the layout of the market. In 
putting forward this view it is suggested that a key point to consider is whether the newly 
refurbished Market Square should be left solely for entertainment / events and for people 
to congregate.  The officer view of this is that actually the City Council is very clear in its 
view of the market. These have been articulated via the considerations made in arriving 
at the Square Routes project and the subsequent consultations and are underpinned by 
the Council’s ethos and particularly the need for the Council to act as a steward. The 
Council’s view of the market can be summed up as- 

 
The market is an attraction that makes the city centre an attractive and vibrant place and 
should be managed to take account of other users and to make sure it achieves high 
standards. 

 
The question is then to what extent does the Council feel it needs to further ‘plan’ the 
market to achieve the above?  
 
The Council could take the view that to achieve the above it wants to completely 
overhaul the market. Some Councils have adopted a very interventionist route to market 
provision. To the extreme where the market is effectively an outdoor shopping mall with 
homogenised stalls selling prescribed products that complement what the shop based 
businesses offer. Other Councils have followed a less extreme route but have in place a 
very prescribed plan for their markets nonetheless. Such plans are still very 
interventionist in that they will specify which goods can be sold and from which pitches, 
where the goods should come from, the Council may also supply the stalls. 

 
It would also be perfectly valid for the Council to take the view, as it has to date, that, as 
it is, the market supports the Council’s strategic objectives. The current model of market 
provision is financially self –sufficient, creating no burden for the Council tax- payer and 
making a contribution to delivery of key Council priorities. The ongoing management 
input from the Council is streamlined to keep down costs and is focussed on day to day 
management activities that ensure that the market operates smoothly (e.g. managing 
pitches and stall location, ensuring traders comply with standards, complementing the 
other range of City Centre activities, collecting fees from traders). In this model traders 
bear the vast majority of the risk. The success or otherwise of individual traders, and the 
wider market, is largely determined by whether consumers want to buy the products. 
Critics of this approach will argue that shop based businesses suffer from increased 
competition because  of lack of regulation and that the City Centre as a whole suffers 
because the overall look and appearance of the market is not tightly regulated. 

 
Feedback from residents, visitors, users of the market and traders would suggest that 
generally people do not feel there is need to radically overhaul the market. Consumers 
actually seem to like the eclecticism and diversity of the Charter market.  Those that 
suggest that the market is in need of a radical overhaul, say that now is the time to do 
so. 

Page 131



CABINET 2ND DECEMBER 2014 
 

If Cabinet take the view that a radical overhaul is required then the view put forward that 
a business plan and strategy for the market needs to be developed and agreed is the 
best way forward.  A radical overhaul will require significant officer input in terms of 
developing and agreeing a development plan. It would also be reasonable to expect that 
once implemented much more management input would be required in the day to day 
running of the market, which will require additional resources. In addition to this it will 
further extend the waiting time before a decision on the layout of the market is made. 
Already it is clear there is considerable uncertainty and resulting friction. This is of 
course a side effect of any change but is raised so that Cabinet are aware there is 
further potential were Cabinet to request a radical overhaul. 
 
There has also been some suggestion that the BID would be best placed to deliver and 
manage the market. Whilst no detail of how this could work is available the principle of it 
and the potential implications of it would seem to be contrary to the Council’s aims, 
objectives and ethos. It would effectively mean a delegation of stewardship. 

 
Cabinet are therefore requested to consider whether a radical overhaul of the Charter 
Market is actually needed. If so consideration should be given to setting up a working 
group to develop a strategy and plan for future provision of the market. 

 
If Cabinet take the view that a radical overhaul is required then no further decisions are 
required at this stage.   However, if Cabinet take the view that no radical overhaul is 
required then consideration of a number of proposals is requested. These proposals are 
likely to be seen by some as being too regulatory. In response to this clearly a balance is 
needed. Even if Cabinet determine that a radical overhaul isn’t required it is clear that as 
stewards of the City Centre the Council does have a responsibility to ensure a generally 
acceptable standard for the market. Having such a light touch that the market 
deteriorated into a city centre car boot sale would be to nobody’s advantage either. 
Therefore the questions Cabinet are requested to consider are:- 

 

How should current market pitches be laid out / and presented? 
 
In the latest round of consultation 2 draft layouts were proposed (See Appendix B to the 
report). 
 
Layout A-  
Based around the current footprint of the market, Market Street, Market Square, 
Cheapside. This option means that all existing permanent traders will still be able to 
trade from pitches within this footprint (although in some cases the pitches will be 
smaller) 

 

• Reduces the amount of stalls in Market Square by 2.  
• Only allows food stalls in Market Square. 
• Distributes pitches for existing stalls between Market Street, Market Square, 

Cheapside. 
• New traders will be allocated pitches on Church Street / New Street if there are 

none vacant in Market Street, Market Square, Cheapside. (To encourage take 
up these will be free for an initial period). 

• Existing traders will be given the opportunity to relocate to Church Street for a 
rent free period, on a voluntary basis 

Page 132



CABINET 2ND DECEMBER 2014 
 

• Comes with the proviso that the standard of appearance of market stalls is 
maintained to a standard specified by the Council. 

• Sets out the maximum size of pitch that will be allowed at each location. The 
pitch sizes have been selected to work in the given location and to allow for as 
many pitches as possible. 

 
Layout B-  
 
Deliberately alters the current footprint of the market so that there are only pitches on 
one side of Cheapside. This means that some existing permanent traders will be moved 
to new pitches in Church Street. Pitches will still remain in Market Street and Market 
Square. 
 
• Reduces the amount of stalls in Market Square by 2 
• Only allows food stalls in Market Square. 
• Distributes pitches for existing stalls between New Street, Market Street, Market 

Square, Cheapside (one side only) and Church Street. 
• Existing traders allocated pitches on Church Street will be allowed them free for 

a limited period. 
• New traders will be allocated pitches on Church Street / New Street. (To 

encourage take up these will be free for an initial period). 
• Comes with the proviso that the standard of appearance of market stalls is 

maintained to a standard specified by the Council. 
• Sets out the maximum size of pitch that will be allowed at each location. The 

pitch sizes have been selected to work in the given location and to allow for as 
many pitches as possible. 

 
Note– in both options within the boundaries set out above the plan would be to seek to 
accommodate traders’ views on where they were located as far as we reasonably could. 
Clearly though in both options there will need to be some movement of stallholders (e.g. 
in plan B it would not be simply a case of moving the traders who were displaced from 
Cheapside into Church Street - consideration would need to be given to what was best 
for the market) and some stallholders may have reduced pitches from previously. 

 
Layout A is generally preferred by shoppers and market traders.  
From a financial perspective option A is the best option for the Council. 
 
Layout B is generally preferred by shop based businesses as it distributes the market 
around a larger area and takes positive action to use Church Street. Shop based 
businesses say that will increase footfall to Church Street (albeit only on 2 days per 
week). Traders generally say that they would sooner stop trading than trade on Church 
Street. 

 
Neither layout is supported by those who say that now as the plinth is in place in Market 
Square there is an opportunity to further add to be vibrancy of the city centre by using it 
for entertainment events on Saturdays. To allow this Market Square should be kept 
clear. In turn the added footfall from the entertainment will benefit the market and shop 
based businesses. 

 

Page 133



CABINET 2ND DECEMBER 2014 
 

How much should pitches cost?  
 

Based on consultation it’s clear that pitches in Cheapside and Market Street are viewed 
by existing traders as the best to trade from. Current charges for pitches are £1.35 sq/m 
with £15 being the minimum charge. There is usually a waiting list for traders. 

 
Traders are provided with a pitch immediately in the newly upgraded public realm of City 
Centre, with an existing footfall, which is likely to increase. Looking at comparable 
markets the current amount charged for pitches is very low. In some places comparable 
pitches are charged at double this amount.  The cost of pitches has increased very little 
over the last few years. It is therefore proposed that from April 1st, 2015 the charge 
increases to £1.80 sq/m and £20.00 minimum charge.  

 
The charge for traders wishing to trade from Church Street will remain £1.35 sq/m with 
£15 being the minimum charge. However for new traders wishing to trade from Church 
Street there will be an initial 6 month period where no fees will be charged.  Clearly this 
proposal could result in reduced income and would not be welcomed by all traders. It 
would however encourage traders to think about where they might want to be located 
and what sort of products might they want to sell.  The forecast financial implications of 
this are set out in the financial implications box in the report. 

 
Proposal Concessionary pitches, street cafes etc. 
 
Besides Charter Market pitches the City Council also charges for the use of a number of 
concessionary pitches in the City Centre and also licenses a number of street cafes. 
There is clearly a need to ensure that these also complement the wider aims of the City 
Centre.  As things stand further some further work is needed to review the locations and 
fees for concessionary pitches. Further work is also needed to ensure that street cafes, 
concessionary pitches and market pitches all work together.  Cabinet are requested to 
delegate the implementation of this review to the Chief Officer (Environment) in 
consultation with the Cabinet Members responsible for Markets and Regeneration. 
 
Councillor Barry proposed, seconded by Councillor Hanson:- 
 
 
“(1)  That Layout A be approved with the following revisions: 

• inclusion of two extra stalls on Market Street (one at the top of Golden Ball Lane 
and one in between pitch 11 and pitch 21)  

• To extend the length of stall 34 from 10 m to 12 m but with the loss of the dogleg  
• Not to impose a food only restriction on stalls in Market Square but ensure that 

only attractive stalls are sited in that area to maintain the improved appearance 
of the square. 

 
 
(2) That Cabinet reaffirms that traders are expected to follow market rules on matters 

such as appearance of stalls, tidiness of stalls, leaving the pitch clean and tidy, not 
encroaching beyond the pitch, being courteous to other city centre businesses etc.  
Furthermore officers are instructed to ensure that market rules are followed at all 
times and to take immediate action against traders who do not wish to comply with 

Page 134



CABINET 2ND DECEMBER 2014 
 

the market rules. 
 
(3) That from April 2015 the cost of pitches on Market Square, Market Street and 

Cheapside be increased from £1.35 to £1.50 per square metre with a minimum 
charge of £16.00.  Existing traders wishing to trade from Church Street/New Street 
to be charged at £1.35 per square metre and £15 minimum charge and new traders 
requesting a pitch on Church Street/New Street be given an initial 6 month period 
where no fees will be charged. 

 
(4) That the implementation of the review of City Centre concessions, street pitches etc. 

be delegated to the Chief Officer (Environment) in consultation with the Cabinet 
Members responsible for Markets and Regeneration.” 

 
Councillors then voted:- 
 
Resolved unanimously: 
 
(1)  That Layout A be approved with the following revisions: 

• inclusion of two extra stalls on Market Street (one at the top of Golden Ball Lane 
and one in between pitch 11 and pitch 21)  

• To extend the length of stall 34 from 10 m to 12 m but with the loss of the dogleg  
• Not to impose a food only restriction on stalls in Market Square but ensure that 

only attractive stalls are sited in that area to maintain the improved appearance 
of the square. 

 
(2) That Cabinet reaffirms that traders are expected to follow market rules on matters 

such as appearance of stalls, tidiness of stalls, leaving the pitch clean and tidy, not 
encroaching beyond the pitch, being courteous to other city centre businesses etc.  
Furthermore officers are instructed to ensure that market rules are followed at all 
times and to take immediate action against traders who do not wish to comply with 
the market rules. 

 
(3) That from April 2015 the cost of pitches on Market Square, Market Street and 

Cheapside be increased from £1.35 to £1.50 per square metre with a minimum 
charge of £16.00.  Existing traders wishing to trade from Church Street/New Street 
to be charged at £1.35 per square metre and £15 minimum charge and new traders 
requesting a pitch on Church Street/New Street be given an initial 6 month period 
where no fees will be charged. 

 
(4) That the implementation of the review of City Centre concessions, street pitches etc. 

be delegated to the Chief Officer (Environment) in consultation with the Cabinet 
Members responsible for Markets and Regeneration. 

 
 
Officers responsible for effecting the decision: 
 
Chief Officer (Environment) 
 
Reasons for making the decision: 
 
The decision is consistent with the ethos of stewardship set out in the City Council’s 
Corporate Plan; ensuring the social, economic and environmental wellbeing of the local 

Page 135



CABINET 2ND DECEMBER 2014 
 

area.  The decision allows for implementation of the new charter market layout in 
January 2015. Once Officers allocate pitches to stallholders they will continue to monitor 
and adjust as necessary. Only fundamental changes will be referred back to Cabinet. 
  

  
63 STOREY - TASTING GARDEN  
 
 (Cabinet Member with Special Responsibility Councillor Hanson) 

 
Helen Hicks and Rachel-Ann Powers who had registered to speak in accordance 
with the City Council’s agreed procedure and Cabinet Procedure Rule 2.7 
addressed the meeting on this item and responded to questions raised by Cabinet 
Members. 
 
At this point Councillor Barry declared an interest in view of his involvement with 
the Friends of the Storey Gardens. 
 
Cabinet received a report from the Chief Officer (Environment) which sought a decision 
on the future of the tasting garden. 
 
The options, options analysis, including risk assessment and officer preferred option, 
were set out in the report as follows: 
 
OPTION 1- Consider that restoration of the artwork is a priority for the Council and 
that in its role as a steward the Council should properly lead on it. 
 

In order to arrive at this option Cabinet would need consider the following- 
 

• What actual evidence is there that this is generally what our citizens want?  
• How would the restoration be funded?  If the Council was to allocate resources 

for the Garden, in effect they would need to be redirected from another initiative 
or activity.  Realistically, therefore, it could be viewed that the Council does not 
have the resources to directly fund restoration and if so, external funds would 
need to be raised. We have been told that there are likely to be funds available 
out there. Experience tells us that obtaining external funding can be a 
complicated and time consuming exercise, depending on the regime under which 
funding is being sought, and match funding may well be required.  

• How would the project be resourced? As stated above just raising the funds 
could be time consuming and complicated. Due to the need to prioritise and 
focus on core activities the Council does not have available officer time or 
expertise that could be allocated to this, if such a route was chosen. Therefore, 
Cabinet would need to consider this as an area for growth, as appropriate. 

• How would the restored project be maintained? The ongoing maintenance of the 
artwork would be intensive and would again require ongoing growth – this need 
is a very real difficulty given the financial outlook. 

• Even if funds are available obtaining them could take a number of years, 
depending on the route chosen, and in any event the timescales would not fit 
with the review of the Storey operation, required by 2017/18. What does the 
Council do with the garden in the interim and how will that support the Storey 
business plan?  What about the future?  What would need to change? 

 

Page 136



CABINET 2ND DECEMBER 2014 
 

OPTION 2- Consider that restoration of the artwork is a  priority for the Council, 
but only on the firm basis that it was resource- and risk- free for the authority, and 
so could only take place if full responsibility could be transferred, in some way, to 
a third party. 

 

In order to arrive at this option Cabinet would need to consider the following- 
 

• The Council are properly stewards of the garden. How would 
transferring/delegating this responsibility to a third party fit with that? 

• What evidence is there that the general desire of our of citizens is that a valuable 
space is delegated to a third party to manage in the hope that funds can be 
raised to restore the artwork therein? 

• What would happen if the third party lost interest in the project, or got into 
difficulties, especially bearing in mind previous experience? 

• How would the long term maintenance of the project be funded and managed? 
• How would this fit in with the business plan of the Storey, and the requirement for 
the operation to be reviewed prior to 2017/18? 

• What would happen to the garden whilst the funds are being raised? 
 

Cabinet need to be aware that gaining satisfactory answers to these questions may 
prove impossible – there is no guarantee that this option is viable and it could tie up 
much Officer time pursuing it, to no avail. 

 
OPTION 3- Accept that ideally the artwork would be restored and would support 
the wider aims of the Storey and provide an attraction for our citizens but that the 
reality is that the policy and financial context of the Council mean that this is an 
unrealistic option. Therefore the most realistic option is to make the very best of 
the gardens, within the resources we have, and in a way that goes to meeting the 
needs of our citizens and the business plan for the Storey. The details to be 
determined through the masterplanning process that Cabinet have already 
agreed. 

 
In order to arrive at this option Cabinet would need to consider the following- 

 
• What is the current and future financial position of the Council and what are the 
competing priorities? 

• This option may be seen by some as not supporting wider aims and objectives 
for arts and culture in the District. However, this needs to be balanced by the fact 
that the Council already provides considerable ongoing support to arts and 
culture within the District. 

• The view expressed by many citizens is that what really matters is that the 
gardens are brought back into use. Done properly this option could support the 
wider plans for the Storey and could (subject to testing through the masterplan 
process) reasonably include use of the garden to promote arts and culture. 

• There is already an active ‘Friends of ’ group who the Council could continue to 
work with to improve the gardens in the short term and deliver aspects of the 
masterplan once agreed. 

• This option is based around the current financial realities facing the Council so 
would be designed to be delivered within existing resources, and could fit with 
the future review of the wider Storey operation. 

 

Page 137



CABINET 2ND DECEMBER 2014 
 

Cabinet are requested to agree in principle the way forward. Whatever option is chosen 
it is expected further more detailed reports will be brought back to Cabinet.  
 
Councillor Blamire proposed, seconded by Councillor Hanson:- 
 
“(1)   That a further report be prepared with information on governance/land ownership 

issues, and a timescale together with a masterplan with two options: one option 
being the reinstatement of the artwork, the other a more broadly based 
opportunity for people to use the Storey Gardens.   

 
(2) That if following consideration of the report and masterplans, the decision is 

taken to restore the Tasting Gardens, the Council will not look to do that itself 
but would expect the supporters of the Tasting Gardens to undertake this 
recognising that there would be a cost implication to the City Council which 
would be responsible for any ongoing maintenance costs.” 

 
Councillors then voted:- 
 
Resolved: 
 
(7 Members (Councillors Blamire, Bryning, Hamilton-Cox, Hanson, Leytham, 
Sands and Smith) voted in favour and 1 Member (Councillor Barry) abstained.) 
 
(1)     That a further report be prepared with information on governance/land ownership 

issues, and a timescale together with a masterplan with two options: one option 
being the reinstatement of the artwork, the other a more broadly based 
opportunity for people to use the Storey Gardens.   

 
(2) That if following consideration of the report and masterplans, the decision is 

taken to restore the Tasting Gardens, the Council will not look to do that itself 
but would expect the supporters of the Tasting Gardens to undertake this 
recognising that there would be a cost implication to the City Council which 
would be responsible for any ongoing maintenance costs. 

 
 
Officer responsible for effecting the decision: 
 
Chief Officer (Environment) 
 
Reasons for making the decision: 
 
The decision recognises the polarisation of views.  The Council has a clearly defined 
strategy for the Storey Institute and this includes the recognition that the gardens are an 
integral part of the business plan for the facility. This will be addressed in the 
forthcoming report and draft masterplans. 
.    

  
 The meeting adjourned at 11.35am and reconvened at 11.45am.  
  
64 SMOKEFREE PLAY AREAS - INTRODUCTION OF A VOLUNTARY CODE  
 
 (Cabinet Members with Special Responsibility Councillors Leytham and Smith) 

Page 138



CABINET 2ND DECEMBER 2014 
 

 
Cabinet received a report from the Chief Officer (Health and Housing) which sought 
approval to introduce a voluntary code of no smoking within children’s play areas and 
young people’s play facilities located in parks and open spaces owned by the Council. 
 
The options, options analysis, including risk assessment and officer preferred option, 
were set out in the report as follows: 
 
 Option 1: Approve the 

introduction of a voluntary 
code of no smoking in 
Council owned play areas. 

Option 2: Do not approve 
the introduction of a 
voluntary code of no 
smoking in Council owned 
play areas.  

Advantages Reduce child exposure to 
smoking and help to 
decrease the number of 
young people starting to 
smoke.  
Decrease cigarette litter such 
as cigarette butts, empty 
packets and wrappers to 
make play areas more 
pleasant and to protect 
wildlife. 
Encourage play area users to 
discourage smokers in play 
areas.  
Project contributes to health 
and wellbeing targets. 

None 

Disadvantages Cost of installing the signs. 
There may be opposition from 
smokers who feel we 
shouldn’t go beyond the 
statutory controls.  
 

Missed opportunity to work 
in partnership with county 
public health to help 
address a health and 
wellbeing issue. 

Risks Future maintenance costs 
could be high. However, this 
is unlikely as the signs will be 
of robust quality and require 
little maintenance.  

Reputational risk – not 
implementing this would be 
at odds with our health and 
wellbeing priority. 

 
 

Option 1 – The introduction of a voluntary no smoking code is entirely consistent with the 
Council’s health and wellbeing corporate priority and can be achieved with minimum 
impact on Council resources. 

 
Councillor Leytham proposed, seconded by Councillor David Smith:- 
 
“That the recommendation, as set out in the report, be approved.” 
 
Councillors then voted:- 
 

Page 139



CABINET 2ND DECEMBER 2014 
 

Resolved: 
 
(7 Members (Councillors Blamire, Bryning, Hamilton-Cox, Hanson, Leytham, 
Sands and Smith) voted in favour, and 1 Member (Councillor Barry) abstained.) 
 
 
(1) That the introduction of a voluntary code of no smoking within Council owned 

play areas, skate parks and multi-use play areas be approved. 
 
Officer responsible for effecting the decision: 
 
Chief Officer (Health and Housing) 
 
Reasons for making the decision: 
 
Reducing child exposure to smoking and de-normalising tobacco use within the 
community is desirable to try to reduce smoking uptake rates amongst young people.  
Smoking is still a major public health problem and implementing a voluntary code of no 
smoking in play areas is one way of the Council contributing to addressing the health, 
social and financial impacts of smoking.  In addition, smoking related litter should reduce 
in play areas and this also addresses another important priority of the Council.  

  
65 CORPORATE PERFORMANCE MONITORING 2014/15  
 
 (Cabinet Member with Special Responsibility Councillor Bryning) 

 
Cabinet received a report from the Chief Officer (Resources) which presented the 
corporate performance and financial monitoring reports at quarter 2 of the 2014/15 
performance monitoring cycle. 

Following the approval of the Corporate Plan on 16 July 2014, Officers have been 
developing the performance monitoring process to ensure the ‘right’ measures are in 
place and that they can be measured accurately and appropriately.  Planned 
performance reporting in Quarter 2 has been deferred in light of a revised performance 
management framework currently being developed and actions arising from a recent 
Investors in People assessment.  The report therefore focussed on financial, property 
and treasury management activities. 

The second quarter’s update on Property matters was included at Appendix B to the 
report, and the position with regards to treasury management activities was included at 
Appendix C to the report. 

 
Councillor Bryning proposed, seconded by Councillor Barry: 
 
“That the recommendations as set out in the report be approved.”  
 
Resolved unanimously: 
 
(1) That the report be noted. 
(2) That the Treasury Management report, as set out at Appendix C to the report, be 

referred on to Council for noting. 
 

Officer responsible for effecting the decision: 

Page 140



CABINET 2ND DECEMBER 2014 
 

 
Chief Officer (Resources) 
 
Reasons for making the decision: 
 
The Council’s Performance Management Framework requires the regular reporting of 
operational, as well as financial performance. 
  

  
66 BUDGET AND POLICY FRAMEWORK UPDATE 2015/16  
 
 (Cabinet Member with Special Responsibility Councillor Bryning) 

 
Cabinet received a report from the Chief Officer (Resources) which provided an update 
on the Council’s financial position to help inform development of Cabinet’s budget 
proposals.  Given that the Local Government Settlement had not yet been received, the 
report was an interim update only, primarily for information and no specific options were 
put forward. 
 
Councillor Bryning proposed, seconded by Councillor Sands:- 
 
“That the recommendations, as set out in the report, be approved.” 
 
Councillors then voted:- 
 
Resolved unanimously: 
 
(1) That Cabinet notes the draft budgetary position for current and future years as 

set out in the report, accepting that this is an interim update. 
 
(2) That the update be referred on to December Council for information. 
 
Officer responsible for effecting the decision: 
 
Chief Officer (Resources) 
 
Reasons for making the decision: 
 
To note the latest position and to provide an update to full Council.   
  

  
67 EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 
 It was moved by Councillor David Smith and seconded by Councillor Leytham:- 

 
“That, in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press 
and public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business, on the 
grounds that it could involve the possible disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of that Act.” 
 
Members then voted as follows:- 
 

Page 141



CABINET 2ND DECEMBER 2014 
 

(6 Members (Councillors Blamire, Bryning, Hanson, Leytham, Sands and Smith) 
voted in favour and 2 Members (Councillors Barry and Hamilton-Cox) voted 
against.) 
 
Resolved: 
 
(1)  That, in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 

press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business, 
on the grounds that it could involve the possible disclosure of exempt information 
as defined in paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of that Act.   

  
  
68 SITES OFF BAILRIGG LANE, SCOTFORTH, LANCASTER (Page 15) 
 
 (Cabinet Member with Special Responsibility Councillor Hamilton-Cox) 

 
Cabinet received a joint report from the Chief Officer (Regeneration and Planning) and 
Chief Officer (Resources) to approve the freehold and leasehold disposal of the land 
south of Bailrigg Lane, Lancaster (the ‘Science Park’ site).  The report was exempt from 
publication by virtue of Paragraph 3, of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 
1972. 
 
The options, options analysis, including risk assessment and officer preferred option, 
were set out in the exempt report. 
 
Councillor Hanson proposed, seconded by Councillor Bryning:- 
 
“That the recommendation, as set out in the exempt report, be approved.” 
 
Councillors then voted:- 
 
Resolved: 
 
(6 Members (Councillors Blamire, Bryning, Hanson, Leytham, Sands and Smith) 
voted in favour and 2 Members (Councillors Barry and Hamilton-Cox) abstained). 
 
(1) That the land south of Bailrigg Lane, Lancaster, as shown edged red and 

coloured blue on the plan attached,  be disposed of on the terms and conditions 
as set out in section 2 of the exempt report. 

 
Officers responsible for effecting the decision: 
 
Chief Officer (Resources) 
Chief Officer (Regeneration and Planning) 
 
Reasons for making the decision 
 
The Lancaster Science Park (or Innovation campus) is a long-standing regeneration 
priority of the Council and is identified as such in the Local Development Framework 
Core Strategy.   
 
The Council’s acquisition of the land was funded by the former North West Development 

Page 142



CABINET 2ND DECEMBER 2014 
 

Agency (NWDA) to facilitate specifically the Science Park idea.  This places significant 
restrictions and obligations on the Council in terms of its disposal of the land and also on 
the future use and development of the site. 
 
Furthermore, the Corporate Property Strategy requires that the Council review its asset 
base and only retain those assets required to meet its agreed objectives and priorities.  
Where assets are not required for this purpose, generally they should be disposed of at 
best value.  This sale allows the Council to improve the management of its assets  

  
  

 
 
 

 Chairman 
 

(The meeting ended at 12.20 p.m.) 
 
 

Any queries regarding these Minutes, please contact 
Liz Bateson, Democratic Services - telephone (01524) 582047 or email 

ebateson@lancaster.gov.uk 
 
MINUTES PUBLISHED ON TUESDAY 9TH DECEMBER, 2014.   
 
EFFECTIVE DATE FOR IMPLEMENTING THE DECISIONS CONTAINED IN THESE MINUTES:  
WEDNESDAY 17TH DECEMBER, 2014.   
 
 

 

Page 143


	Agenda
	8 LEADER'S REPORT
	9 Financial Referrals: Treasury Management and Budget Update
	Annex A (TM Progress Qtr2 Cabinet 041214) Final.pdf
	Annex B - (GF Budget Report Cabinet 021214) Council 171214.pdf
	Annex B (i) App A GF Revenue Budget Forecast.pdf
	Annex B (ii) App B GF Variance Analysis.pdf
	Annex B (iii) App C GF Revised Capital programme.pdf

	10 Referral from Council Business Committee - Attendance at Outside Bodies
	11 Referral from Council Business Committee - Committee Timetable 2015/16
	Committee Timetable report

	12 Notice of Motion - Opposition to driver-only trains
	13 Notice of Motion - Transatlantic Trade and Investment Partnership
	App A Key facts TTIP Council motion 171214
	App B ISDS TTIP Council motion 171214
	App C Govt myths v facts TTIP Council motion 171214

	14 Notice of motion - 5-year housing land supply statement
	15 Recordings of Meetings
	16 Review of Polling Districts and Polling Places 2014
	17 Allocation of Seats to Political Groups
	18 Local Plan for Lancaster District 2011 - 2031: The Adoption of the Development Management and Morecambe Area Action Plan Development Plan Documents
	Appendix_3_Planning_Contributions_Advisory_Note_4_Dec_2014

	19 Amendment of the Executive Scheme of Delegation to Officers Œ Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014
	20 Members™ Allowances Scheme - Report of the Independent Remuneration Panel
	Council 171214IRP appendix (IRP report).pdf

	22 MINUTES OF CABINET
	Cabinet mins 2 December


